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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHA VIORAL HEALTH

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 vw^'w.dhhs.nh.gov

April 7, 2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to amend an existing contract with Harbor Homes, Inc. (VC#155358), Nashua, NH, which was
competitively procured, to continue providing program support for NH Recovery Community
Organizations and Recovery Centers and, at the request of the Opioid Abatement Trust Fund
Advisory Commission, to expand current services to include opioid abatement programming, by
exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $17,840,868 from
$22,024,000 to $39,864,868, and extending the completion date from June 30, 2025 to June 30,
2027, effective May 4, 2025, upon Governor and Council approval. 15% Federal Funds, 8%
General Funds, 78% Other Funds (Governor's Commission Funds and Opioid Abatement Funds).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 23, 2022, Item
#33, amended on December 21, 2022, Item #26, and most recently amended on September 20,
2023, Item #35.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust
budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through
the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is two-fold. First, this request exercises an available contract
renewal option for the Contractor to continue to provide program support and capacity
development to 10 Recovery Community Organizations (RCOs) that provide peer recovery
support services at 21 recovery centers statewide. The Contractor will continue to ensure the New
Hampshire RCO Standards of Excellence are maintained across all RCOs.

Second, under the direction of the Opioid Abatement Trust Fund Advisory Commission
(Commission), this request adds programming supported by the Opioid Abatement Trust Fund
that was previously administered through stand-alone contracts. In order to streamline contracts
and oversight, the Contractor will expand their existing subcontracts with Archways. SOS
Recovery, and TLC Family Resource Center. The Contractor will now support Archways' Youth
Program and Community Correction Program; SOS Recovery's Peer Strength program; and TLC
Family Resource Center's Drop-in Program. These agreements are focused on serving
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Individuals affected by opioid use disorder and co-occurring substance use and mental health
conditions.

Approximately 61,500 peer recovery support services including recovery coaching,
telephone recovery support sessions, and in-center activities, are provided annually.

The RCOs serve NH residents, aged 18 and older, families, and caregivers seeking to
gain, maintain, or enhance recovery from substance misuse. The Contractor will continue to serve
as the RCOs Facilitating Organization and provide services such as project management, training
and technical assistance, billing functions, compliance monitoring, quality improvement
assistance, data collection, and monitoring of outcome measures. The Contractor will also
continue to provide outreach services and supplies to individuals who are experiencing housing
Insecurity or are unhoused.

The Department will continue to monitor services through the review of monthly, quarterly,
and annual reports, to ensure:

•  Individuals in recovery from substance misuse, including opioid and/or stimulant
use disorders, receive comprehensive recovery support services;

•  Certified Recovery Support Workers, on staff at NH RCOs, receive supervision as
required by the NH Board of Licensing for Alcohol and Other Drug Use
Professionals; and

•  Individuals receiving recovery coaching demonstrate significant improvement,
statistically, in development of physical, mental, social, and cultural assets that
support maintenance of recovery.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to an additional five (5)
years and six (6) months, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its
option to renew services for two (2) of the three (3) years available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, access to community-based
peer recovery support services will be limited. Additionally, with fewer individuals gaining and
maintaining recovery, the Department's strategy to address substance misuse and substance
use disorders may be negatively impacted.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number (ALN) 93.959, FAINs TI087053 and
Tlb88120.

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional General
Funds will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

^
Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



PRF-2022-BbAS-05-PEERR-03- PRESS-FO FISCAL DETAILS FY22-27

05-95-92-920510-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION

FOR behavioral HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, SABG ADDITIONAL (100% Federal Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 074-500585 Community Grants 92055501 $280,000 . $0 $280,000

2023 074/500585 Community Grant 92055501 $720,000 $0 $720,000

Subtotal $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000

05-95-92-920510-33820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other
Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 74-500585 Community Grants 92058501 $545,000 $0 $545,000

2023 ,74-500585' Community Grants 920585001 $505,000 $0 $505,000

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92058501 $795,000 $0 $795,000

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92058501 $1,475,000 $0 ' $1,475,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Re!
92058501 $1,475,000 $0 $1,475,000

2026 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92058501 $0 $1,800,000 $1,800,000

2027 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92058501 $0 $1,800,000 $1,800,000

Subtotal $4,795,000 $3,600,000 $8,395,000

05-95-92-920510-33840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34%
General Funds)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 074-500585 Community Grants 92057501 $0 $0 $0

2023 074-500585 Community Grants 92057501 $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057502 $2,000,000 $0 $2,000,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel
92057502 . $2,000,000 $0 $2.00q;000



2026 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

arid Re!
TBD $0 $1,320,000 $1,320,000

2026 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svs
TBD $0 $680,000 $680,000

2027 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Re!
TBD $0 $1,320,000 $1,320,000

2027 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svs
TBD $0 $680,000 .$680,000

Subtotal $5,000,000 $4,000,000 $9,000,000.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR
BEHAVORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% FEDERAL
FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2022 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Svs
92057048 $575,000. $0 $575,000

2023 074-500585 Community Grants 92057048 $575,000 $0 $575,000

2023 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057058 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057058 $680,000 $0 $680,000

2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 $1,725,000 $0 $1,725,000

2025 074-500589
Grants for Pub Asst

and Rel
92057062 $575,000 $0 $575,000

.. •• . - Subtotal $5,630,000 $0 $5,630,000

05-95-92-922010-41170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS; HHS: DIVISION
FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALH SERVICES, CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT (100% GENERAL
FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class / Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget

Increased

(Decreased)

Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92056505 $650,000 $0 $650,000

Subtotal $650,000 $0 $650,000

05-95-92-920510-39500000 HEALTH AMD SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES DEPT. OF; HHS: DIV

FOR BEHAVIORIAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, OPIOID ABATEMENT TRUST FUND (100%

OTHER FUNDS)

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Budget
Increase

(Decrease)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2024 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92053950 $2,121,000 $0 $2,121,000



2025 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92053950 $2,828,000 $156,990 $2,984,990

2026 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92053950 $0 $5,041,939 $5,041,939

2027 102-500731
Contracts for Prog

Svc
92053950 $0 $5,041,939 $5,041,939

Subtotal ^$4,949,000 $10,240,868 $15,189,868

Grand Total $22,024,000 $17,840,868 $39,864,868



Docusign Envelope ID: 83235ABB-8B02-4C3D-BB46-F4CE3C08C6FD

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3

This Amendment to the Peer Recovery Support Services Facilitating Organization contract is by and
between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Harbor Homes, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 23, 2022, (Item #33), amended on December 21, 2022, (Item #26), and most recently amended
on September 20, 2023, (Item #35), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the
terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read: .

June 30, 2027

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$39,864,868

3. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Scope of Services, Section 2.1, lead-in only, to read:

2.1. The Contractor shall provide facilitating organization services for the . 10 currently
subcontracted Recovery Community Organizations (RCOs) in NH that provide Peer
Recovery Support Services (PRSS) to individuals with Substance Use Disorder (SUD) and
their families. The Contractor shall ensure services include, but are not limited to:

4. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Scope of Services, Section 2.2, lead-in only, to read:

2.2. The Contractor shall enter into subcontracts with the 10 existing RCOs, within 90 days of the
contract effective date. The Contractor shall:

5. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #3, Scope of Services, Section 2.20. State Opioid Response Grant
Standards, lead-in only, to read:

2.20. State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant Standards (Effective through 5/3/2025)

6. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Scope of Services, by adding Section 2.21, to read:

2.21. Opioid Abatement Trust Fund Advisory Commission-Funded Proorams

2.21.1. The Contractor shall expand their current subcontract with Archways to include
the operation of a Youth Program that provides supports to students experiencing
Opioid Use Disorders (OUD) and any co-occurring Substance Use Disorders
(SUD)/Mental Health (MH) issues or who have been affected by OUD and/or any
co-occurring SUD/MH issues within their family. The Contractor shall ensure the
Archways Youth Program:

2.21.1.1. Offers two (2) youth-focused components: Seven Challenges® (SC)
and Alternative Peer Groups (APG) youth-focused treatment and
recovery support programs and services for youth" with OUD, in

Harbor Homes, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials.

RFP-2022-08H-05-PEERR-A03 Page 1 of9 Dale
v7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID; 83235ABB-8B02-4C3D-BB46-F4CE3C08C6FD

accordance with national industry standards.

2.21.1.2. Provides Recovery Coaches/Family Support Workers;

2.21.1.3. Maintains policies and procedures forSC and APG NH;

2.21.1.4. Maintains collaborative relationships with existing communityrbased
program sites and schools;

2.21.1.5. Maintains outreach materials and social media presence for SC and
APG;

2.21.1.6. Facilitates weekly SC and APG sessions at 3-4 sites;

2.21.1.7. Collects and analyzes evaluative data for continuous quality
improvement with NH Human Services'Research Institute (HSRI); and

2.21.1.8. Ensures personnel who coordinate and implement the Youth Program
are Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSWs), Licensed Drug and
Alcohol Counselors, or Master Licensed Drug and Alcohol Counselors
and are trained in required curriculum for AGP and SC through the
Building Futures Together program.

2.21.2. The Contractor shall expand their current subcontract withv-Archways to include
the operation of a Community Correction Program (CCP) that supports recovery
services for individuals with ODD and any co-occurring SUD/MH issues or
individuals who have experienced an overdose. The Contractor shall ensure the
Archways CCP:

2.21.2.1. Assists Individuals, following release from DOC facilities, with
navigating recovery support systems and accessing health and
wellness, housing, employment, and other professional and non-
professional services;

2.21.2.2. Is available in community settings for individuals experiencing
homelessness;

2.21.2.3. Maintains policies and procedures;

2.21.2.4. Maintains an enrollment process;

2.21.2.5. Maintains outreach materials;

2.21.2.6. Facilitates meetings with the Community Corrections Team on a
schedule mutually agreed upon between Archways and the
Department;

2.21.2.7. Collects evaluative data to analyze for continuous quality
improvement; and

2.21.2.8. Ensures personal providing services at any affiliated DOC location
meets qualifications and safety standards in collaboration with DOC.
as approved by the Department.

2.21.3. The Contractor shall expand their current subcontract with SOS Recovery to
include the operation of a Peer Strength Expansion (PSE) program to increase
access to peer recovery support services for individuals aged 18 years and older,
who are experiencing SUD and/or OUD, and are involved in the NH criminal justice
system. The Contractor shall ensure the SOS Recovery PSE program:

2.21.3.1. Offers in-person and telehealth services;

2.21.3.2. Screens and assesses individuals for the presence of S

Harbor Homes. Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials.
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OUD;

2.21.3.3. Provides population-appropriate recovery approaches to meet the
needs of populations served:

2.21.3.4. Provides recovery support services, including, but not limited to:

2.21.3.4.1. Development of wellness plans.

2.21.3.4.2. Vocational and educational sen/ices.

2.21.3.4.3. Employment support services.

2.21.3.4.4. Housing support services.

2.21.3.4.5. Transportation services, direct or by referral.

2.21.3.4.6. Other services as needed to address Social

Determinants of Health.

2.21.3.5. Collaborates with community partners, serving various populations, to
ensure the provision of comprehensive recovery support services.

2.21.3.6. Ensures staffing is sufficient to enhance existing capacity for current
treatment court and correctional site partnerships; and to target
expansion of services to new treatment court, corrections, and
probation/parole office locations in priority regions that have unmet
resource needs, including Strafford, Rockingham, Coos, Cheshire,
and Carroll counties.

2.21.4. The Contractor shall expand their current subcontract with TLC Farriily Resource
Center to include the operation of a recovery center located in Lebanon, NH. The
Contractor shall ensure the recovery center:

2.21.4.1. Meets all requirements for recovery centers identified in this
Agreement.

2.21.4.2. Is accessible in multiple ways, including, but not limited to walk-in,
phone, and virtual meetings.

2.21.4.3. Provides services at no cost to individuals with OUD and/or a co-
occurring SUD and MH, and include, but are not limited to:

2.21.4^:3.1. Resource navigation and connection that addresses
basic needs, including, but not limited to housing,
transportation, and food.

2.21.4.3.2. Assistance applying for public benefits through NH Easy.

2.21.4.3.3. Assistance enrolling in recovery support programs and
services, including, but not limited to peer recovery
coaching, recovery support groups, home visiting
services, and parent education services.

2.21.4.3.4. Direct financial assistance with expenses that affect
sustained recovery and treatment adherence including,
housing, utilities, transportation, childcare. food, and
healthcare.

2.21.4.3.5. Telephone recovery and peer support.

2.21.4.3.6. Support . accessing behavioral health services, as
appropriate and clinically indicated. includinaTHsctf not
limited to medications for SUD. inpatient or o^^t^tient

Harbor Homes, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
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treatment programs, and .child and family therapy
services.

2.21.4.4. Engages and encourages community partners, through outreach and
marketing, to refer individuals who have, or are at risk of developing,
ODD and/or co-occurring SUD/MH issues to the Drop-in Program,
including employers, peer recovery specialists, primary and behavioral
healthcare professionals, community members.

2.21.4.5. Ensures:

2.21.4.5.1. Appropriate staffing levels are maintained at the Drop-In
Program location, necessary to perform and carry out all
of the functions, requirements, roles and duties in this
Agreement.

2.21.4.5.2. Program staff and volunteers are CRSWs or obtain
CRSW certification within one (1) year of their date of
hire, in accordance with the New Hampshire Board of
Licensing for Alcohol and Other Drug Use Professionals.

2.21.4.5.3. Program staff and volunteers are trained to conduct
intakes to facilitate efficient enrollment in additional

recovery support services.

2.21.4.5.4. Each CRSW, at a minimum:

2.21.4.5.4.1. Provides resource navigation and refers
individuals to services that address the

Social Determinants of Health;

2.21.4.5.4.2. Assists individuals with applying for direct
financial assistance for expenses and
supplies that affect recovery and
treatment;

2.21.4.5.4.3. Coordinates the disbursement and

tracking of direct financial assistance
funds;

2.21.4.5.4.4. Provides direct support with accessing
behavioral health, .treatment services,
and recovery supports including
advocacy, application process, arranging
transportation, and ■ providing/securing
financialassistance;

2.21.4.5.4.5. Conducts screenings and provides
support for the ' referral - and intake
process for additional Contractor or
partner programs;

2.21.4.5.4.6. Maintains adequate walk-in coverage of
the Drop-In Programs;

2.21.4.5.4.7. Trains and manages volunteers
providing telephone recovery' and peer
support;and

2.21.4.5.4.8. Builds and maintains compTUrtftif&tion
with community partners for refef^^ and

Harbor Homes, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor ilnitials
4/2/2025
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resource navigation.

2.21.4.5.4.9. Facilitates the compilation and upkeep of
a resource list for staff and a website list

for the TLC community.

2.21.4.5:4.10. ;Maintains weekly logs of the duties listed
above to assist the Department in
tracking progress of the program outlined
'in this Agreement.

2.21.4.5.5. Volunteer Coordinator, at a minimum, recruits, trains, and
supervises volunteers.

7. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Scope of Services, by adding Section 4.7 to read:

4.7. Reporting for OAC Funded Programs

4.7.1. The Contractor shall collect annual reports from OAC funded programs identified in
Section 2.21, in a format as required by the OAC and provide the reports to the
Department, no later than August of each calendar year, for distribution to the
OAC. The Contractor must ensure the OAC reports are broken out by program and
include:

4.7.1.1. Name, mailing address, and physical address of each OAC funded program;

4.7.1.2. Time period covered by the report;

4.7.1.3. Date the report was prepared;

4.7.1.4. A detailed account of funding spent on approved uses;

4.7.1.5. Number of individuals served;

4.7.1.6. Aggregated and de-identified demographic information for individuals
served. Information in the annual report must ensure that no individual can
be directly or indirectly identified by the data submitted or the content of the
annual report; and

. 4.7.1.7. An analysis of the impact(s), successes and challenges of the project{s),
program(s), and/or service(s) funded

8. Modify Exhibit 8, Amendment #2, Scope of Services, Section 5.1.1 to read:

5.1.1 A minimum of 21 Recovery Centers and 10 RCOs are open and providing PRSS;

9. Modify Exhibit B, Amendment #2, Scope of Services, by adding Section 9 to read:

9. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

9.1. General Requirements

9.1.1. If applicable, upon early termination or expiration of the Agreement the parties
agree to cooperate in good faith to effectuate a secure transition of the services
("Transition Services") from the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable,
the new Contractor ("Recipient") engaged by the Department to assume the
services. Ninety (90) days prior to the.end-of the contract or unless otherwise
specified by the Department, the Contractor must begin working with the
Department and if applicable, the Recipient to develop a Data Transition Plan
(DTP). The Department shall provide the DTP template to the Contractor.

9.1.2. The Contractor must assist the Recipient, in connection with the transition from
the performance of Services by the Contractor and its End Users-i't©' the
performance of such Services. This may include assistance with ih^^cure

Harbor Homes, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials —
4/2/2025

RFP-2022-DBH-05-PEERR-A03 Page 5 of 9 Date
v7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: 83235ABB-8B02-4C3D-BB46-F4CE3C08C6FD

transfer of records (electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data
(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such Service from the hardware,
software, network and telecommunications equipment and internet-related
information technology infrastructure ("Internal IT Systems") of Contractor to the
Internal IT Systems of the Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any
third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in connection with the Transition
Services.

9.1.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or software licenses (Tools) was
purchased or created to.manage, track, and/or store Department Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried and returned to the
Department, along with the inventory document, once transition of Department
data is complete.

9.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the Contractor and its End
Users shall be provided to the Department and if applicable the Recipient in a
timely manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed to be Services for
purposes of this Agreement.

9.1.5. In the event the data Transition extend beyond the end of the Agreement, the
Contractor agrees that the Information Security Requirements, and if applicable,
the Department's Business Associate Agreement terms and conditions remain
in effect until the Data Transition is accepted as complete by the Department.

9.1.6. In the event the Contractor has comingled Department Data and the destruction
or Transition of said data is not feasible, the Department and . Contractor will
jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements
prior to destruction, refer to the terms and conditions of the Department's DHHS
Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

9.2. Completion of Transition Services

9.2.1. Each service or transition phase shall be deemed completed (and the transition
process finalized) at the end of 15 business days after the product, resulting from
the Service, Is delivered to the Department and/or the Recipient in accordance
with the mutually agreed upon Transition plan, unless within said 15 business
day term the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue requiring additional
time to complete said product.

,9.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the Contractor will have 30
days to destroy the data per the terms and conditions of the Department's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

9.3. Disagreement over Transition Sen/ices Results

9.3.1. In the event the Department is not satisfied with the results of the Transition
Service, the Department shall notify the Contractor, in writing, stating the reason
for the lack of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final product or at any
time during the data Transition process. The Parties shall discuss the actions to
be taken to resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not reached,
at any time the Department shall be entitled to initiate actions in accordance with
the Agreement.

10. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 32% Federal funds:
f  Innial

1.1.1. 14% State Opioid Response (SOR) Grant, as awarded by the US qei^^ment

Harbor Homes, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor lnitials_
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of Health and Human Services (US DHHS), Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Assistance Listing Number (ALN)
#93.788:

1.1.1.1. SOR2Project, as awarded on August 9, 2021, FAIN TI083326;

1.1.1.2. SOR 3B Project, as awarded September 23, 2022, FAIN TI085759:
and

1.1.1.3. SdR 3B Project, as awarded on September 1, 2023, FAIN TI085759:

1.1.2. 18% Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, as awarded by
" the US DHHS. SAMHSA, ALN #93.959 on:

1.1.2.1. March 11, 2021, FAIN 71083509;

1.1.2.2. September 16. 2021, FAIN TI083464;

1.1.2.3. February 10. 2022, FAIN 11084659;

1.1.2.4. June 15. 2023, FAIN B08TI085821;

1.1.2.5. May 28, 2024, FAIN TI087053; and

1.1.2.6. February 24, 2025, FAINTI088120.

1.2. 9% General funds; and

1.3. 59% Other funds:

1.3.1. 21% Governor's Commission; and

1.3.2. 38% Opioid Abatement Trust Fund.

11. Modify Exhibit 0, Payment Terms. Section 3, to read:

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreement and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit 0-1. SFY2022 Budget through Exhibit C-7. Amendment #3, SFY2027
Budget.

12. Add Exhibit 0-5, Amendment #3. SFY2025 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by .
reference herein.

13. Add Exhibit 0-6, Amendment #3, SFY2026 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

14. Add Exhibit 0-7, Amendment #3, SFY2027 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

—Inhial

Harbor Homes, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor lnitials_

RFP-2022-DBH-05-PEERR-A03 Page 7 of 9 Date
v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment
remain in full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective May 4, 2025, upon Governor and
Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire

Department of Health and Human Services

4/3/2025

Date

^OoeuSlgncd by:

Name: Katja s. fox

Title: Director

Harbor Homes, Inc.

4/2/2025

Date

■Signed by:

Name:

Title: ceo

Harbor Homes. Inc.

RFP-2022-DBH-05-PEERR-A03
V. 7.12.23

A-S-1.3

Page 8 of 9
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

PDocuSigned by:
Tii8T»ia44w moe...

Date Name: ""''y" cuarino

Title: Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: - (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Harbor Homes, Inc. A-S-1.3

RFP-2022-DBH-05-PEERR-A03 Page 9 of 9
V, 7.12.23
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Exhibit C-5, Amendment #3

SFY2025 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Harbor Homes. Irw.

Budget Request for
Indirect Cost Rate:

Budget Period:

Peer Recovery Support Services Fadtitating Organization
4t.3l%Salaryand Benefits Only
SFY25 5rV202S«f3(V2025

1

Line.Hem ; •

Total Program Cost ' General Operations & Remaining RCOs Homeless Outreach ' ,OAC,Funded Projects (3 RCOs) - •
Direct Indirect Total Direct ' Indirect Total "Direct Indirect Total ' Direct Indirect Total

Total Salary/Wages $  7.995 S  3.303 $  11,297 s  - . $  ■- 5 S S . S $  7,995 $, 3:303 S 11,297
Emplovee Benefits J  2.105 $  870 S  2.975 5 %- 5 $. .- s  - $ '$•" 2.105 $  .870 s 2.975
Consultants % $ % ;$ - - s $ $ $ S - • .. 5 $
Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IVto2CFR 200. S S s S  .. . 5. -s . . $

'  P

S  .. i-A-- s  - - s
Supplies - Educational S $ J  ---•r::" $• $  - -  .. . S-'a. -■ J
Supplies • l^b $ s $ $ $ - .■ - $ - -- s •S -- - s J
Supplies - PhannacY s $ $ s  - s $ s $ S $-■ • *

Supplies • Medical $ s $ $  - •. . .$■ s •$ f -- • $  ... $ •• . 5
Supplies • Office s $ $. • ^ . •$ • - ;• s $ $ . -• ■ j $  ■ i • r 5
Travel s $ S 5- - - , $ 5 s - $ $ S  • $ - . .. j
Occupancy 5 $ 5 $. •- $ s $ . 5 j $  •:
Software % s --- - . i 5 -r • $  - ~  . 5' - j
Other - Marketing / Communications % % •S. - . 5< :

$ S  - ' s  :■ 5 $ J
Other - Education and Traininq s % 'S $  V - $ $ $ • . A- .- $' $
Other - Telephone $ s s- • . S S $ $ s S  - $ - . J
Other - Audit S Legal s $ % -s -. S-V"--£.r . $  - I 5 $ S  w- — $  - $
Other - insurarKe s $ $  - - -- -- s •• $ $ S- • $ S  ' J
Other - (please specify) % % -$ - . - 5 - - s $ - . . $ .5 - ••• • .s J
Other - (please specify) % s $ S  ••'it;-- S - „ - i-:. ■■
Other • (please specify) $ $ S 5  - •, 'S-: - - . s S' • $ - - - $ s
Other - (please specify) $ $ 5 $  -. •• • $• ■ • $ $ .$ - ; $ 5
Subreapient Contracts - RCOs %  142.718 s $  142.718 $- ... - ■- ■$ . • $ • . .$"• i  142.7)8 :$• $  142,718
Subreapient Contracts • Hornless
Outreach $  ' t $  ' $  • $  - $ . I'.. S  ••""-"r $
■r ^ -.TOTAL .. : $  152,818 % V 4.172 5  "156,990 $• •  • 5 • " J  • •• ■ $  .• $ • 152,818 5  -4,172 5  . 156,990

Indirect As A Percent of Direct 41.31S

Calculated on Salary and Benefits only - cannot exceed 41.31% NICRA

156,990.00
10% at S14.272 for salary, benefits and indirect to support 3 RCOs

HartMT Homes, Inc.
RFP-2022-eDAS-05-PEERR-01-A03
Exhibit C-5. Amendment j»3. SFY2025 Budget Vendor Intlials. _ _ _D8ieSlgne^7373025
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Exhibit C-e, Amendment #3

$FY2026 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: Harbor Homes, Inc.

Budget Request for
Indirect Cost Rate;

Budget Period:

Peer Recovery Support Services
45.48% Salary and Benefits Only
SFY26 7/1/2025-6C0/2026

-adlitating Organization

Total Program Cost General Operations & Remaining RCOs Homeless Outreach .  OAC;Funded Projects (3 RCOs)
Line item Direct... Indirect - Total Direct Indirect.. Total Direct Indirect . Total 1 .Direct" Indirect ToUl
Total Saiarv/Wages S 619,575 % 281.782 $  901.357 $-. • 563.432 $-256,249 S 819.681 S 10.630 $ -4.834 S  15.464 s • :.■•: .45.512 S  20.699 $  66.211
Employee Benefits % 181,721 S 82.647 5  264.368 S • 165,255 S- 75.158 s 240.413 S 3,116 $ 1.418 S  4,536 s 13,349 $  6.071 S  19.420
Consultants % 35,000 $ S  35,000 . 35,000 5 35.000 $ S $ $ S
Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200. J -$-• $-•. .i-. $

• „

$
Supplies - Educational s $ s % s s  . . s. $  . $
Supplies - Lab J s S- ■ % $ $ - $ 5  .. . . ..

$
Supplies - Pharrrtacy $ $ s s $ %  ■- ■ s  •- .
Supplies - Medical $ s -$ • . - %■= s - ■~i.~ $_
Supplies - Office $  6.000 $ S  6,000 $ ■- -6.000 S  6,000 $ $ - ■ s
Travel %  30,000 % 5  30.000 s •■30,000 $  • • %  30.000 $ $ .$ s
Occupancy S  18,000 % $  18.000 $ - •-.18,000 5; - %  18.000 s $  - -■ $ ■ ■ - • 5 j
Software $  280.500 s 5  280,500 s .260.500 $. $  280.500 5  • . J $ s  --- j
Other - Martteiing / Communications S  20.000 $ %  20.000 .$ 20.000 S S  20,000 s $  . -. . $ -$ • - . $ $
Other - Education and Training $  53.578 s 5  53,578 s • •53.578 $  - $  63,578 s $ - ■ s $ A $
Other - Telephorw S  4.500 $ S  4.500 s- • - 4,500 $  . S  4.S00 $ s

- $ 5
Other • Audit s Legal $  1.320 s 5  1.320 5' • ,i;320 .$ . . S  V320 $ $ s

- S  ' ■ j
Other - Insurance S  5,100 5 %  5.100 s 5,100 $ $  5.100 $ -$ - $ S $ j
Other - (please speafy) $ S % .$ . • $ S s s s s ~ - $
Other • (please speaM $ S - -S - - ■ % TS--' •••--.•• $
Other - (please speafy) $ % s % s  - - s  , . - • :% $ •s - $
Other - (please specify) s % s s s $ $ -s - ■ . $
Subreapient Contracts - RCOs $  7,042.216 $ S  7.042.216 $ 6.185,908 $ i  6,185.908 s  • - $ $ - - - . 856.308 5  1 S  856.308
Subreapient Contracts - Hornless S
Encampment Outreach $  180,000 s . $  180.000 % . S-. '■ $ $ 180.000 S S  180.000 -S'. . 7 '$

— 'TOTAL .  8,477.510 $ 364,429 S  •8.841.939 $.• 7.368,593 5 331.407 $  7,700,000 s 193,746 s :  6,252 S  200,000 $  . '  915,169 5 . 26,770 S  ,941,939
Totals should not exceed these amounts S 6.841,939.00 $ 200,000.00 i 941.939.00
Indirect As A Percent of Direci 45,A8% 10% totaling $85,631 for salary, benefits, and indirect to support 3 RCOs

(0.00)

Harbor Homes. Irtc.
RFP-2022-BOAS^5-PEERR-01-A03
Exhibit C-6. Amendment #3. SFr'2026 Budget

vendor Initials. .OateSigne<^/t^025
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ExhIMt C-7, Amendmsnt #3

SFY2027 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Seivices

Contractor Nime: Harbor Homes. Irw.

Budget Request for Peer Recovery Support Services Fadliiating Organization
Indirect Cost Rate; 45.46% Salary and Benefits Ortly

Budget Period: SFY27 7/1/2026-6f30«J27

l.ine Item

Total Salary/Wages

Employee Bertefits

Equipment

Irxlirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200,1 and

Appendix rv to 2 CFR 200.

Supplies - Educational

Supplies ■ Lab

Supplies • Pharmacy
Supplies ■ Medical

Supplies ■ Office

Occupancy

Other ■ Marteting / Communicalions

Other • Education and Training

Other ■ Telephone

Other ■ Audit 6 Legal

Other - (please spedfy)
Other ■ (please specifyl
Other • (please specify)
Other ■ (please spedfy)

Subredpieni Contracts ■ RCOs

Sulsredpieni Contracts - Homeless
Outreach

TOTAL'

Totals Should not exceed these amounts'

Total Program Cost

Indirect

619,575

161,721

35,000

16,000

5.100

180.000 S

$ 281,782 S

8,477.510 1 5 364,429

264.366

35.000

Indirect As A Percent ol Direct

30,000

18,000

280.500

20.000

53.578

4,500

1,320

5,100

7,042.216

8,841,939

General Operations & Remaining RCO^

■ S- 165.255

S  .-35.000

3- 280,500

S"- 4,500

$ • 1,320

S 6.185,908

S- 256.249

240,413

1.320

. 7,700.000

Homeless Outreach.

Indirect

3,116

45.48%

- 200.000

OAC Funded Projects (3 RCOs)..

5

5- 915.169

200,000.00

5- 26.770

941.939.00
10% totaling 885,631 for salary, benefits, arxi irtdirea to support 3 RCOs

Harbor Homes, inc.

RFP-2022-BOAS-05-PEERR-01.A03

Exhibit C-7. Amendment *3, $FY2027 Budget
Date Sign'SW025
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby ceitity that HARBOR HOMES, INC. is a New

Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 15, 1980.1 further certify that all
fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing as far as this office is
concerned.

Business ID: 62778

Certificate Number 000675SH)38

N

^3

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 28th day of August A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 , Joel Jaffe , hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Harbor Homes. Inc. d/b/a Harbor Care .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on April 2 , 2025 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Henry Och. President and CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Harbor Homes. Inc. dA)/a Harbor Care to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State

(Name of Corporation/LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

•DocuSigntd by:

4/2/2025

.DnP<»07C3aB411.

Signature of Elected Officer
Name:

Title: Board chairman

Rev. 03/24/20
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HARBHOM-OI

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

SKARAM

OATEOOUNVmY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIRCATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR /VLTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. TXIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURERIS) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certincate holder Is an AODITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGAHON IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require en endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not conferrights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

Pf^ooucER License#A6R8150
Clark Insurance
One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

ea): (603) 622-2855 no);(603) 622-2854
lnfofficlarklnsurance.com

mSURERfSI AFFORDING COVFRAGE NAKi

MsuRERA:Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

PISURED

Hartxrr Homes, inc.
77 Northeastern Blvd
Nashua, NH 03062-3128

INSURER B: Columbia Casualty 31127

MSURER C:

MSIIRFR n T

INSURER E:

MSURStF:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CWTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS

MSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
AWX SUBR

vwo POLICY NUMBER
POUCY EFF
IMMrtMVYYYYJ

POLICY EXP
fMwnnfYYwi UMTTS

A X COKMERCIALGliNERAL UABIUTY

PHPK2572322 7/1/2024 7/1/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE ,  1.000,000
CLAIMSAIAI DAMAGE TO RENTED j  1,000,000

,  20,000

PERSONAL a ADV MJURY ,  1,000,000

ca

X

X

VL A06RE0ATE UMTT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 1 ISIft HTIlOC
other; Professional Liability

GENERAl AGGREGATE ,  3,000,000

PRODUCTS • COMPTOP AGO s  3,000,000
Prof Uabllity ,  1,000,000

A AU1rOHOBILE UABIUTY

PHPK2672327 7/1/2024 7/1/2026

COMBINED SINGLE UMir ,  1,000,000
X ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

)®^ONLY

SCHEDULED
MR'OS

BOOLY INJURY (Per Damnl •

BOOLY INJURY (Per ecddenn s

s

■

A X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAS

X OCCUR

CLAIMSMAOE PHUB870727 7/1/2024 7/1/2026

EACH OCCURRENCE f  6.000,000

AGGREGATE g  6,000,000
DED X RETENTICN* 10,000

t

WORKERS COtPENSATXM
AND EJm.OYERS'UABtUTY ^
/SNyPROPRCTORlPARTNERgXECUnVE | 1JjggEgM^EXCUJ0eO7 LJ
It yet detotw under
0£s6t1PTI0N OF OPERATIONS betaw

N/A

PER OTH-
flTATlJTF FR

EJ. EACH ACCJDENT t

EL DISEASE. EAEMROYFT 1

E.L DtSEAiSF. • POUCY 1IMIT s

B

B

Gap Medical Prof

claims made form

HMA7016126567

HMA7016126567

7/1/2024

7/1/2024

7/1/2025

7/1/2025

Each Claim

Aggregate Limit

1,000,000

3,000,000

' locations / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AddttkMUl Ranwks Sctwdula. mw bt attaclMd H mon tpoc* it rgqiarMQMedical Prof Llab: Excludes Coveraga included under the Federal Tort Claims Act (FTCA)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Department of Health & Human Services
State of New Hampshire

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE OEUVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

Concord, NH 03301

1

AUTHOROEO REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 26 (2016/03) ® 1988-2016 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD.
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATEIHIMNVrm)

4/1/2025

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(8) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is en ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or t>e endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms end conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Eaton & Berube Insurance Agency. LLC.
11 Concord Street
Nashua NH 03064

kaSe^ Kimberty H. Gutekunsl CIC
Exti: 603-689-7239

A^ESS: kgutekunstiQealonberube.cbm
MSURERIS) AFFOROtNG COVERAGE NAICf

INSURER A: Eastem Alliance Insurance Group
MSUREO HAR8H0(*01

Harbor Homes, inc.
dba Hartx}r Care
77 Northeastern Boulevard
Nashua NH 03082

MSURER B:

MSURERC:

MSURBIO: •

eisuRERE:

eiSURB^F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1670082005 REVISION NUMBER:

.THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOnvlTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO V/HICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

MSR
LTR '  ' TYPEOFMSURAMCE ru'WUTTT' POLICY NUMBER LAOTS

COKKERCIAL GIINERALUABILrTY

)E 1 [occur
•  •

EACH OCCURRENCE S

1 CLAMS4ilAI UAMAUE IDHLNILD
PREMISES /Ea oecurreneal s

MS) EXP (Any ana peraon)

PERSONAL A AOV Oi/URY s

6EIVLAOGREOATELBCT APPLIES PER:

POLICY 1 |5^ 1 IlOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE s

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO s

s

AU1roMosajELiABnjTy COMBINED SIMlfUMrr
(Ea BCddmll

ANY AUTO.

»EOULEO
rros
)N<AVNED
rros ONLY

BODILY (Pw paraon) 1

OV/NEO
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SC
AL 800a.Y INJURY (Per acddvV) s
NC
AIJ

PROPERTV DAMAOE
(Peracddonl) s

UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS UAB •

OCCUR

CLAIMS44A0E

EACHOCCLff^ENCE

AGGREGATE s

DED ! 1 RETENTIONS 1 t

A WORKERS COMPENSATION
AKO EMPLOYERS" LUBajTY y.,.
ANYPROPRCroR/PARTNEWEXECUnvE | 1
OFFICERMEMBEREXauOED?
(UandittryinNH) ' '
If yea, ««»*'•fibii under
OE^RIPTION OF OPERATIONS balw

!N/A

01-000014704G4)1 11/26«I24 11/26/2025 V  PER 01U
^  STATUTE ER

E.LEACHACCIOENT 11,000.000

E.L DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE S 1,000.000

E.L DISEASE • POUCY UMTT S 1.000.000

OESCRtPnON OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS r VEHICLES (ACORD 101. AdditiaralRemdrmSclwcM*, may Da BtlBcriidirnmspKeisrwiuind)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

state of New Hampshire :
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant St
Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBEO POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WTIH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AiminRITFn RFPRFAFNTATIVF

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name end logo ere registered marks of ACORD
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Harbor Care
HOUSING ̂  HEALTHCARE % VETERAN SERVICES

Our mission is to provide vital services, including housing and healthcare, to all in
our communities needing assistance.

Our vision is one where everyone gets to live safe, stable, and healthy lives, filled
with purpose, respect and dignity.

Harbor Care

Headquarters: 77 Northeastern Blvd Nashua, NH 03062 hope(S)harborcarenh.org

Phone: (603) 882-3616 www.harborcarenh.org



Docusign Envelope ID; 83235ABB-8B02-4C3D-BB46-F4CE3C08C6FD

BAKER

NEWMAN

NOYES

Harbor Homes, Inc. and

Affiliates d/b/a Harbor Care

Consolidated Financial Statements

and Supplementary Information

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Comparative
Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

With Independent Auditors' Report

Baker Newman & Noyes LLC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors

Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Harbor Care

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Haibor Care
(the Organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of June 30, 2024, the
related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements (collectively, the financial
statements).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Organization as of June 30,2024, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets,
their functional expenses and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors'
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinioa

ResponsibfliUes of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the fmancial statements in accordance
with accounting principles gener^y accepted in the United Stales of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are fi-ee fi-om material misstatement, whether due to firaud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as
a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued or available to be issued.
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To the Board of Directors

Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a Harbor Care

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. Misstalements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the Judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances,-but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Organization's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's 2023 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified
audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 27, 2023. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,2023, is consistent,
in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.
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To the Board of Directors

Harbor Homes, Inc. and Affiliates d/b/a HarborCare

Other Matter—Report on Supplementary Information

s  . , •

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion oh the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the financial statements as a whole.

LLC

Manchester, New Hampshire
October 23, 2024
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILUTES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2024 With Summarized

Comparative Information as of June 30, 2023

ASSETS

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2024 2023

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 3,268,279 $248,013 $ 3,516,292 $ 5,686,184
Restricted cash 773,159. — 773,159 780,450
Other accounts receivable, net 2,631,479 — 2,631,479 1,758,375
Patient receivables (FQHC) 366,074 — 366,074 394,556
Due from related organizations 100,201 — 100,201 96,059
Inventory 124,888 — 124,888 50,462
Other assets 121.484 — • 121.484 84.994

Total current assets 7,385,564 248,013 7,633,577 8,851,080

Property and equipment, net 24,877,535 - 24,877,535 24,704,350

Other noncurrent assets:

Investments 91,353 — 91,353 96,542
Beneficial interest in assets held by others — 248,995 248,995 227,408
Operating lease right-of-use assets 122,193 — 122,193 127,113
Other assets 171.189 _ 171.189 ■  169.206

Total other noncurrent assets 384,735 248,995 633,730 620,269

Total assets S32.647.834 $497.008 $34.17.5.699
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LIABiLiTlES AND NET ASSETS

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions

Current liabilities:

Current portion of notes payable

Current portion of operating
lease liabilities

Current portion of finance lease liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll, vacation and

related expenses
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:

Accrued payroll, vacation and
related expenses

Notes payable, net of current portion
Notes payable, tax credits

Notes payable, deferred
Operating lease liabilities, net of

current portion
Finance lease liabilities, net of

current portion.
Other liabilities

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$  558,862 $

66,928
19,174

1,840,354

605,373

302.652

3,393,343

691,657

12,438,087

287,643

7,169,749

55,365

35,501

336.358

21.014.360

24,407,703

8,240,131

8.240.131

497.008

497.008

2024

$  558,862

66,928

19,174

1,840,354

605,373

302.652

2023

$  528,615

66,578

1,132,643

630,581

328.706

3,393,343 2,687,123

691,657 655,051
12,438,087 12,987,789

287,643 343,583

7,169,749 7,169,749

55,365 61,656

35,501

336.358 422.344

21.014.360 21.640.172

24'407,703 24,327,295

8,240,131 9,012,699
497.008 835.705

8.737.139 9.848.404

See accompanying notes.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized

Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Without With

Donor Donor

Restrictions Restrictions 2024 2023
Support and revenues:

Support: .

Grants:

Federal $13,397,592 .$ $13,397,592 $12,347,174
State 7,863,035 — 7,863,035 6,886,846

Contributions 850,587 241,955 1,092,542 2,733,103
Net assets released from restrictions -

operations 305.041 (305.0411 _

Total support 22,416,255 (63,086) 22,353,169 21,967,123

' Revenues:

Patient service revenues (FQHC) 6,635,652 — 6,635,652 5,663,563
Patient service revenues (other) 4,489,456 — 4,489,456 4,507,336
Veterans Administration programs 4,803,605 _ 4,803,605 .  5,430,359
Rental income:

Resident payments 1,220,893 — 1,220,893 1,266,770
Other 616,778 — 616,778 508,201

Contracted services 128,904 — 128,904 150,773
Management fees 59,415 - 59,415 75,925
Other income 162,778 • - 162,778 91,146
Employee retention tax credit income 1.190.628 — 1.190.628

Total revenues 19.308.109 _ 19.308.109 17.694.073

Total support and revenues 41,724,364 (63,086) '  41,661,278 39,661,196

Operating expenses:
Program services- 33,692,295 — 33,692,295 31,988,457
Management and general 7,371,911 — - 7,371,911 6,311,023
Fundraising and development 637.031 _ 637.031 406.135

Total operating expenses
'

before depreciation and
amortization expense 41,701,237 - 41,701,237 38,705,615

Depreciation and amortization expense 1.425.055 _ 1.425.055 1.409.790
Total operating expenses 43.126.292 _ 43.126.292 40.115.405

Loss from operations (1,401,928) (63,086) (1,465,014) (454,209)
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized

Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Nonoperating revenue:
Gain on forgiveness of debt
Gain on sale of related organization

Investment return, net

Total nonoperating revenue

(Deficiency) excess of revenues
over expenses

Net assets released from restrictions -

capital acquisitions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Without

Donor

Restrictions

$

250,000

82.162

332.162

297.198

(772,568)

9.012.699

With

Donor

Restrictions

21:587

21.587

r297.l98)

(338,697)

835.705

2024

250,000

103.749

353.749

2023

$  398,747

(1,069,766) (41,499) (1,11 1,265)

61.898

460.645

.6,436

(1,1 11,265) 6,436

9.848.404 9.841.968

SAJHm S 9.848.404

See accompanying notes.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year. Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized

Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Management Eimdraising
Program and and

Services General Develooment 2024 2023

Personnel expenses: k

Salaries and wages $11,937,558 $4,572,516 $349,655 $16,859,729 $16,377,048
Payroll taxes 883,566 306,109 25,430 1,215,105 1,248,585
Employee benefits 2,396,342 969,501 33,316 3,399,159 2,834,201

Contract/professional services 638,719 195,420 52,400 886,539 .  914,429
Supplies:

Office 96,641 26,291 949 123,881 147,039
Medical/dental 92,629 —

— 92,629 92,470
Building and household 203,275 6,317 2,767 212,359 193,935

Client services:

Rental assistance 5,596,326 — — 5,596,326 4,592,000
Rental application fee 1,090 - - 1,090 611

Security deposit assistance 92,627 - — 92,627 1 16,916
Utility rebate ■  1 12,363 -

- 1 12,363 ■75,621
Emergency housing 4,184 -

- 4,184 28,373
Treatment and supportive services 62,1 15 325 - 62.440 58,958
Training and employment assistance 7,937 - - 7,937 4,441
Supportive services assistance 59,377 - 230 59,607 72,529
Activities, supplies and other assistance 54,805 850 55,367 1 1 1,022 99,109
Food, meals and nutritional assistance 256,857 1 — ■  256,858 269,460

Rent: office space 69,221 -
— 69,221 68,413

Condo association fees 18,968 — — 18,968 17,524
Building:

Maintenance and repairs 630,346 81,660 647 712,653 754,678
Utilities 683,663 73,943 941 758,547 949,211

Interest:

Mortgage 560,810 95,216 889 656,915 682,012
Other 1,232 -

- 1,232 10,181
Conference and conventions 66,209 12,050 3,766 82,025 74,485
Professional services 14,959 38,045 — 53,004 41,336
Accounting and audit services 12,465 116,323 - 128,788 1 17,504
Legal fees 6,911 126,842 - 133,753 98,953
Insurance:

Property and liability 115,248 6,292 80 121,620 96,890
Professional 31,427 249 — 31,676 118,504
Other - 96,266 - 96,266 319

Vehicle and transportation expenses 94,171 -
- 94,171 82,103
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized

Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30,2023

Management Fundraising
Program and and

Services General Develooment 2024 2023
Staff:

Transportation $  , 125,879 $  5,401 $  '2 $  131,292 $  159,077
Education and training 156,126 52,964 — 209,090 196,698
Hiring and recruiting 105,571 848 _ 106,419 17,213
Uniforms 4,176 —  . — 4,176 3.421

In-kind donation — — 28,380 28,380 13,055.
Operations:

Communication 1 129,006 62,454 802 192,262 266,164
Cable 15,761 544 7 16,312 11,867
Postage 14,131 8,168 965 23,264 , 21,257
Membership and subscriptions 85,492 37,867 5,207 128,566' 111,096
Equipment lease and maintenance 60,183 10,362 1,092 ,  71,637 71,721-

Software licenses, maintenance and fees 731,373 369,690 307 r,101,370 1,267,017
Subrecipient and subcontracts 5,602,773 25,670 _ 5,628,443 4,731,555
Property taxes 59,413 — —• 59,413 40,571
Direct program marketing and advertising 36,083 1,205 1,389 38,677 50,450
Marketing 1,219 4,843 6,748 12,810 20,955
Fundraising publications 5,887 956 60,067 66,910 37,013
Management and administrative fees 1

— —
— . 22,290

Service charges and fees 43,917 14,506 2,617 61,040 54,646
Fines and penalties 143 -

— 143 206
Staff and board expenses 12,799 52,704 3,001 68,504 40,262
Residual receipts recapture 26,089 _

— 26,089 14,254
Cost of goods sold 1,673,746. —

— ■  1,673,746 1,316,989
Allocation:

Support services 487 mi)

Total functional expenses
before depreciation and
arriortization expense 33,692,295 7,371,911" 637,031 41,701,237 38,705,615

Depreciation and amortization expense 1.074.911 349.638 506 1.425.055 1.409.790

Total functional expenses

See accompanying notes.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILUTES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized

Comparative information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

2024 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Change in net assets $(1,1 11,265) $  6,436
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

net cash (used) provided by operating activities:
Restricted contributions (241,955) (575,867)
Depreciation and amortization 1,425,055 1,409,790
Amortization of notes payable issuance costs 2,854 2,854
Amortization of tax credit liability (55,940) (55,940)
Unrealized loss (gain) on investments 5,189 (23,800)
Change in beneficial interest in assets held by others (21,587) (10,171)
Gain on forgiveness of debt - (398,747)
Gain on sale of related organization (250,000) —

Noncash lease expense (1,021) 1,121
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Other accounts receivables, net (873,104) 1,036,485
Patient accounts receivables 28,482 (62,092)
Due from related organizations (4,142) (46,024)
Inventory (74,426) 41,570
Other assets (38,473) 50,213
Accounts payable 707,711 124,848
Accrued payroll, vacation and related expenses 1 1,398 74,027
Other liabilities n 12.0401 107.932

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities (603,264) 1,682,635

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of related organization 250,000 —

Purchase of property and equipment f 1.534.2681 mi.oiii

Net cash used by investing activities (1,284,268) (941,011)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net payments on line of credit - (499,817)
Payments on notes and loans payable (522,309) (527,630)
Payments on finance lease liabilities (9,297) —

Restricted contributions 241.955 575.867

Net cash used by financing activities f289.6511 (451.5801

Net change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (2,177,183) 290,044

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year 6.466.634 6.176.590

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year S 4.289.431 ■'S6.466.634

10
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With'Summarized
Comparatiye Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Reconciliation of the consolidated statements of cash flow
to the consolidated statements of financial position;

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest

Noncash investing and financing activities:
Right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities

recorded upon adoption of ASC 842
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new

operating lease liabilities
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new

finance lease liabilities

2024

$3,516,292
773.159

2023

$ 5,686,184
780.450

$ 6.466.634

S  N/A $ 147.904

See accompanying notes.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized
Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accountine Policies

Harbor Homes, Inc. (d/b/a Harbor Care) (Harbor Flomes) is the largest entity included in a collaboration
of independent nonprofit organizations, sharing a common volunteer Board of Direclors, President/CEO,
and management team, that creates an innovative netu'ork to help New Hampshire families and
individuals solve many of life's most challenging issues. Known collectively as "Harbor Care," the
collaboration is an efficient and innovative approach to providing services to New Hampshire
community members each year. This holistic approach recognizes that individuality, dignity, good
health and wellness, self-respect, and a safe place to live are key to a person's ability to contribute to
society.

While each nonprofit organization in the collaboration is a separate legal entity with its own 501(c)(3)
public charity status, mission, budget, and staff, they share administrative resources whenever it is
efficient to do so, and collaborate on service delivery when it leads to better client outcomes. -

Most importantly, by sharing resources and working as one, the collaboration is able to coordinate and
better deliver a comprehensive array of interventions designed to empower individuals and families and
ultimately build a stronger community. Outcomes are enhanced through this model.

The members of the collaboration, and organizations included in these consolidated financial statements,
include the following entities:

•  Harbor Homes consists of Harbor Homes, Inc. and Harbor Homes Plymouth, LLC (HH Plymouth).
Today known as "Harbor Care", Harbor Homes provides housing, health care, behavioral health care
and services that address* social determinants of health to individuals and families who are

experiencing, or at risk of, homelessness. With specialized programs for veterans, people with
chronic behavioral health disorders and other disabilities, and other vulnerable populations, the
agency serves approximately 5,000 individuals each year in its housing and/or Federally Qualified
Health Center (FQHC) programming. Additionally, Harbor Care serves as the "Facilitating
Organization" for the State of New Hampshire, providing capacity development, technical
assistance, and backend administrative support to more than a dozen Recovery Community
Organizations throughout New Hampshire.. Outcomes include leading Greater Nashua's
achievement of an effective end to veteran homelessness, effectively ending homelessness among
those living with HlV/AlDS in Nashua, and substantially reducing chronic homelessness in the
Greater Nashua region to the lowest level since data was first tracked.

HH Plymouth is a single-member New Hampshire Limited Liability Company that supported the
development of Boulder Point, LLC (Boulder Point), a veterans housing project in Plymouth^NH.
HH Plymouth is a 0.01% investor member for Boulder Point and it is managed by Harbor Homes,
Inc. The entity does not directly serve clients.

Harbor Homes I. Inc. (HUD I) and Harbor Homes VI, Inc. (HUD VI) - provide residential services
to low-income individuals experiencing chronic behavioral issues or disability.

12
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized
Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued^
'A*

Welcoming Light, /uc.(WLI), Harbor Homes II, /wc.(HH II), Harbor Homes III, Inc. (HH III) and
HH Ownership. Inc. (HHO)-These fournonprofits provide residential services to the elderly and/or
low-income individuals experiencing chronic behavioral issues or disability, and were created as
separate entities by Harbor Flomes, Inc.'s Board of Directors in response to federal regulations.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism cl/b/a Keystone Hall (GNCA) is the holding company for
the facility and property that, through Harbor Care's programming and staff, provides Greater
Nashua's only comprehensive substance use disorder treatment center. Every year, the facility's
services (provided by Harbor Care) catalyzes change in hundreds of individuals, including those
experiencing homelessness, those without adequate insurance, and pregnant and parenting
women. No one is denied treatment due to an inability to pay. While in residential treatment, clients
have all basic needs met, including food, transportation, clothing, and integrated healthcare through
Harbor Care. Substance use disorder treatment services are evidence-based, gender-specific, and
culturally competent, and include residential (with a specific program for pregnant and parenting
women and their children), outpatient, intensive outpatient, and drug court services.

Healthy at Home. Inc. (HAH) provided in-home health care services as a Medicare-certified home

health agency. HAH helped clients address physical and behavioral health challenges to live full,
happy lives at home by providing consistent, compassionate care and daily-living assistance.
Ultimately, services kept clients in their own homes, and out of hospitals, institutions, or nursing
homes. Staff provided skilled nursing, physical therapy, occupational therapy, homemaking
services, respite care, and Alzheimer's care and dementia care.

On March 31, 2024, HAH entered into an asset purchase agreement with an unrelated entity for the
sale of HAH totaling $250,000. Effective May 31, 2024, HAH entered into a merger agreement in
which all assets and liabilities were merged with and into Harbor Homes. A Plan of Merger was
filed with the State of New Hampshire and Harbor Homes became the sur\'iving organization.
Simultaneous with this transaction, Harbor Homes, as successor by merger to HAH, completed the
sale with the unrelated entity. Harbor Homes received proceeds from the sale totaling $250,000 and
recognized a gain on the sale totaling $250,000.

SARC (Salem Association for Retarded Citizens) Housing Needs Board. Inc. (SARC) operates a
permanent supportive housing facility (Woodview Commons) in Salem, New Hampshire and
provides affordable, income based housing for individuals with disabilities. SARC serves eight
individuals annually.

Southern New Hampshire HIV/Aids Task Force. Inc. (the Task Force) provided HIV/AIDS ser\'ices

in New Hampshire. During fiscal year 2021, the programs and employees of the Task Force were
transitioned to Harbor Homes. Effective January 31, 2024, the Task Force was formally dissolved
with the State of New Hampshire and all remaining assets and liabilities were transitioned to Harbor
Homes.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized

Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

1- Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued^

Basis of Account m' e and Principles ofComolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Harbor Homes, HH Plymouth,
HUD I, HUD VI, WLI, HH II, HH III, HHO, GNCA, HAH (through the date of merger discussed
above), SARC and the Task Force (through the date of dissolution discussed above), collectively referred
to ̂  the Organization. All significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use ofEstimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those.estimates.

Cosh and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or less, and
which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, are considered to be cash and
cash equivalents. The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and
believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on these accounts.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists primarily, of cash received by the Organization for tenant deposits and certain
reserves as required by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA). The Organization maintains its restricted cash
in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant risks on these
accounts.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for services and programs. In
accordance with Accounting Standards Topic 326, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses, the
Organization makes ongoing estimates relating to the colleclability of accounts receivable and records
an allowance for estimated losses expected from the inability of its payors to make required payments.
The allowance for estimated credit losses is based on historical experience, an assessment of economic
conditions and a review of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed
uncollectible. Accounts receivable are reflected within the accompanying consolidated statements of
financial position within other,accounts receivable. The allowance for estimated credit losses was not
significant at June 30, 2024 or 2023.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized

Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30,2023

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net
realizable value. Unconditional contributions that are expected to be collected in future years are initially
recorded at fair value using present value techniques incorporating risk-adjusted discount rates designed
to reflect the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset. In subsequent years,
amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue in the consolidated statements of

activities. The allowance for uncollectible contributions is based on historical experience, an assessment
of economic conditions and a review of subsequent collections. Contributions are written off when
deemed uncollectible. Management has determined that no allowance is necessary. Contributions
receivable are reflected within the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position within
other accounts receivable.

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of return, are
not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met. Amounts
recorded as grants receivable represent cost-reimbursable federal and state contracts and grants, for
which the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses and/or the performance of certain requirements
have been met or performed. The allowance for uncollectible grants receivable is based on historical
experience and a review of subsequent collections. Management has determined that no allovvance is
necessary. Grants receivable are reflected within the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
position within other accounts receivable.

Patient Receivables

Patient receivables relate to health care services provided by the Organization's FQHC and other billable
services. For patient accounts receivable, when an unconditional right to payment exists, subject only
to the passage of time, the right is treated as a receivable. Patient accounts receivable for which the
unconditional right to payment exists are receivables if the right to consideration is unconditional and
only the passage of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.^ The estimated
uncollectible amounts are generally considered implicit price concessions that are a direct reduction to
accounts receivable and relate primarily to amounts due directly from patients. Estimated implicit price
concessions are recorded for all uninsured accounts, regardless of the aging of those accounts. Accounts
are written off when all reasonable internal and external collection efforts have been performed. The
estimates for implicit price concessions are based upon rhanagement's assessrnent of historical writeoffs
and expected net collections, business and economic conditions, and other collection indicators.
Management relies on the results of detailed reviews of historical write-offs and collections as a primary
source of information in estimating the collectability of its accounts receivable. Management believes
its regular updates to the implicit price concession amounts provide reasonable estimates of revenues
and valuations of accounts receivable. These routine, regular changes in estimates have not resulted in
material adjustments to the valuations of accounts receivable or period-to-period comparisons of
operations.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized
Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

1- Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Inventory

Inventory is comprised primarily of pharmacy items, and is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable
value determined by the first-ln, first-out method. No allowance has been provided as management
believes none of the inventory is obsolete.

Investments ■

Investments are carried at fair value in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.
See Note 5 for fair value measurement disclosures for investments. The Organization classifies its
investments as trading securities. Net investment return/loss (including realized and unrealized gains
and losses on investments, interest and dividends) is reported within nonoperating revenue and expense.

The Organization is the beneficiary of a certain trust held and administered by others. The interest in
the trust is recorded at fair value and such amount is included in net assets with donor restrictions, with
any resulting gains or losses reported as donor restricted investment income.

Property and Equipment

Pfopert>' and equipment additions over $10,000 for Harbor Homes and GNCA and $5,000 for all other
entities are recorded at cost, if purchased, and at fair value at the date of donation, if donated.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
ranging from 3 to 40 years, or in the case of finance leased assets or leasehold improvements,
amortization is the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or

otherwise disposed of, the cost and related depreciation and amortization is removed, and any resulting
gain or loss is included'in the consolidated statements of activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs
that do not improve or extend the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed.

The carr>'ing values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated
future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired,
an impairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There
were no indicators of asset impairment in fiscal years 2024 or 2023.

Notes Payable Issuance Costs

Costs associated with the issuance of notes payable are initially capitalized and amortized to interest
expense over the respective life of the related obligation. The unamortized portion of debt issuance costs
is presented as a component of long-term notes payable.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized
Comparative information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Assets

In accordance with GAAP, the Organization is required to report information regarding its financial
position and activities according to the following net asset classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions
and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization.
The Organization records restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the same reporting
period within net assets without donor restrictions. These net assets may be used at the discretion
of the Organization's management and the Board of Directors.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions
of the Organization, or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature,
whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

When a donor restriction expires (when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), restricted net assets are reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions and reported
in the statements of activities as either net assets released from restrictions for operations (for noncapital-
related items) or net assets released from restrictions for capital-related items.

Revenue and Revenue Recosnition

Support: The Organization recognizes contributions when cash, securities or other assets; an
unconditional promise to give; or a notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises
to give, that is, those with a measurable performance or other barrier and a right of return, are not
recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.

A portion of the Organization's revenue is derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state contracts
and grants, which are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or the incurrence of
allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has
incurred expenditures in compliance with specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received prior
to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as deferred revenue (within other liabilities) in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

Revenue: The performance obligation of delivering patient services is simultaneously received and
consumed by patients when services are provided, therefore the Organization recognizes patient service
revenues when the services are provided. Patient service revenues are reported at the amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Organization expects to be entitled in exchange for providing patient care.
The Organization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without
charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Since the Organization does not pursue collection
of amounts deiemiined to qualify as charity care, these amounts are not reported as revenue.
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized
Comparative information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

1. Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (ContinuedJ

The contractual relationships with patients, in most cases, also involve a third-party payor (Medicaid,
Medicare, and commercial insurance companies) and the transaction prices for the services provided are
dependent upon the terms provided by Medicaid, Medicare, and commercial insurance companies, the
third-party payors. The payment arrangements with third-party payors for the services provided to
related patients typically specify payments at amounts less than standard charges.. The Organization
receives reimbursement from Medicare, Medicaid and insurance companies at defined rates for services
to clients covered by such third-party payor programs. Management continually reviews the revenue
recognition process to consider and incorporate updates to laws and regulations and the frequent changes
in managed cafe contractual ternis resulting from contract renegotiations and renewals.

Settlements with third-party payors are considered variable consideration and are included in the
determination of the estimated transaction price for providing patient care. These settlements are
estimated based on the terms of the payment agreement with the payor, correspondence from the payor
and the Organization's historical settlement activity, including an assessment to ensure that it is probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the
uncertainty associated with the adjustment is subsequently resolved. Estimated settlements are adjusted
in future periods as adjustments become known.

The Organization recognizes revenue from Veterans Administration programs based on units of service
as services are provided. Revenue related to rental income, including rental vouchers; resident payments,
and other related costs, is recognized when the performance obligation of providing the space and related
costs is satisfied. Revenues derived from providing contracted services are recognized as the services
are provided to the recipients. All revenue paid in advance is deferred to the period to which it relates
or when the underlying event or rental takes place.

Donated Services

Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, and fundraising
and development activities; however, no amounts have been reflected in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements for such donated services, as no objective basis is available to measure the value.

Adverlisine Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled $ 12,810 and $20,955 for the years ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively.

Retirement Benefits

The Organization maintains a safe harbor contributory defined contribution retirement plan which covers
substantially all employees of Harbor Homes. Eligible employees may contribute up to maximum
limitations (set annually by the Internal Revenue Service) of their annual salary. After six months of
employment, the employee's contributions are matched by Harbor Homes. The employer match was
$651,266 and $603,844 for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FrNANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024 With Summarized
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1. Description of Organization and Summan' of Significant Accounting Policies fContinuedJ

The Organization also had another deferred compensation agreement with a certain executive. The
amount ultimately due to the executive was to be paid upon the employee attaining certain criteria,
including age. During fiscal year 2023, the amount due under the plan was paid in full and there is no
remaining balance for related assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2023. Total plan expense was
insignificant for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Employee Fnn2e Benefits

The Organization has an "earned time" plan. Under this plan, each employee "earns" paid leave for each
period worked. These hours of paid leave may be used for vacations, holidays and sick time. Hours
earned but not used are vested with the employee and only vacation hours incurred are paid to the
employee upon termination. The Organization accrues a liability for such paid leave as it is earned.

Employee Retention Tax Credit Income

In August 2023, Harbor Homes was deemed eligible for the Employee Retention Credit for Employers
(Employee Retention Credit) in the amount of $1,190,628 as provided for under the CARES Act. Harbor
Homes recognized $1,190,628 within support and revenues in the accompanying consolidated statement
of activities and changes in net assets for the year ending June 30,2024. The Employee Retention Credit
is a fully refundable payroll tax credit, totaling $1,190,628 based on qualified wages from January I,
2021 through June 30, 2021. The Organization is following the guidance in International Accounting
Standards No. 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
(IAS 20). While management believes they have complied with all terms and representations necessary
to qualify for the Employee Retention Credit, the claims remain subject to possible audit by the IRS.
The Consolidated Appropriations Act extended the IRS statutory deadline for auditing Employee
Retention Tax Credit claims to 5 years. The results on the Organization's consolidated financial
statements of potential future audits and investigations, if any, remain uncertain.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in
the consolidated statements of activities. The consolidated statements of functional expenses presents
the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated
among the programs and supporting services benefited.

Performance Indicator

(Deficiency) excess of revenues over expenses is comprised of operating revenues and expenses and
nonoperating revenue and expense. For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be
ongoing, major or central to the Organization's programs and services are reported as operating revenue
and expense. Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as nonoperating revenue or expense,
which includes net investment return/loss.

19



Docusign Envelope IDr83235ABB-8802-4C3D-B&46-F4CE3C08C6FD

HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. Description of Organization and Summary' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes

The Organization consists of not-for-profit entities, with the exception of HH Plymouth, as described in
.  Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (the Code), and is exempt from federal income taxes on

related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. The Organization believes that it has appropriate
support for the income tax positions taken and to be taken, and that its accruals for tax liabilities are

.  adequate for all open tax years based on an assessment of many factors including experience and
interpretations of tax laws applied to the facts of each matter. Management evaluated the Organization's
tax positions and concluded the Organization has maintained its tax-exempt status, does not have any
significant unrelated business income, has taken no significant uncertain tax positions that require
disclosure in the accompanying consolidated financial statements and has no material liability for
unrecognized tax benefits.

HH Plymouth is a single-member. New Hampshire Limited Liability Company, with Harbor Homes as
its sole member. HH Plymouth has elected to be treated as a corporation.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Organization determines if a contract meets the definition of a lease. A
lease is a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use of identified property,
plant, or equipment (an identified asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The
Organization determines if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time. The Organization assesses throughout the period of use whether the Organization has
both of the following: (1) the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset, and (2) the right to direct the use of the identified asset. This determination is reassessed
if the terms of the contract are changed. Leases are classified as operating or finance leases based on the
terms of the lease agreement and certain characteristics of the identified asset. Right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are recognized at lease commencement date based on the present value of the minimum
future lease payments.

The Organization's policy is to not record leases with an original term of twelve months or less on its
consolidated statement of financial position. The Organization recognizes lease expense for these short-
term leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liabilities are initially recorded based on the present value of lease payments over the expected
remaining lease term. Lease payments are comprised of fixed and in-substance fixed contract
consideration. The Organization has made a policy election not to separate lease components, nonlease
components, and noncomponents. The right-of-use asset is based on the lease liability, adjusted for
certain items such as lease prepayments or lease incentives received. Finance lease assets are amortized
on a straight-line basis, with interest costs reported separately, over the lesser of the useful life of the
leased asset or lease term. Operating lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis. Variable lease
payments are expensed as incurred.
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1- Description of Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued^

Certain-lease agreements include rental payments that are adjusted periodically for inflation or other
variables. In addition to rent, the leases may require the Organization to pay additional amounts for
taxes, insurance, maintenance and other expenses, which are generally referred to as nonlease
components. Such adjustments to rental payments and variable nonlease components are treated as
variable lease payments and recognized in the period in which the obligation for these payments was
incurred. Variable lease components and variable nonlease components are not measured as part of the
right-of-use asset and lease liability. Only when lease components and their associated nonlease
components are fixed are they accounted for as a single lease component and are recognized as part of a
right-of-use asset and lease liability. Total contract consideration is allocated to the combined fixed
lease and nonlease component. This policy election applies consistently to all asset classes under lease
agreements.

Certain leases contain clauses for renewal at the Organization's option with renewal terms as discussed
in Note 9. Payments to be made in option periods are recognized as part of the right-of-use lease assets
and lease liabilities when it is reasonably certain that the option to extend the lease will be exercised or
the option to terminate the lease will not be exercised, or is not at the Organization's option. The
Organization determines whether the reasonably certain threshold is met by considering contract, asset,
market, and entity-based factors.

The Organization's lease agreements do not contain any significant residual value guarantees or material
restrictive covenants imposed by the leases.

The Organization does not have any sublease agreements.

Subsequent Events ^

Events occurring affer the consolidated statements of financial position date are evaluated by
management to determine whether such events should be recognized or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 23, 2*024, which is
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

2. Liquidity and Availabilih'

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year of the date of the consolidated
statements of financial position consists of the following at June 30, 2024:

Cash and cash equivalents $3 268 279
Receivables ^ 2.997.552

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next year
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2. Liquidity and Avaiiabilih' (Continued)

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other contractual
commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of Its available funds. In addition to
financial assets available to meet general expenditures over the next year, the Organization operates with
a balanced budget and anticipates sufficient revenue to cover general expenditures not covered by donor-
restricted resources. As part of its liquidity management plan, the Organization also has revolving credit
lines available to meet cash flow needs.

3. Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of the following at June 30:

Operating reserves (required by HUD and NHHFA)
Reserve for replacements (required by HUD and NHHFA)
Residual receipt deposits (required by HUD and NHHFA)
Security deposits
Other

2024 2023

$ 76,024 $ 75,236
590,932 571,740

31,221 59,225

27,666 21,055

47.316 53.194

$773,159 smA^

4. Patient Accounts and Other Accounts Receivables

Other accounts receivable consist of the following at June 30:

2024 2023

Grants $1,951,260 $1,211,334
u^edicaid/Medicare 319,826 224,743
Residents and patients 266,635 294,081
Other 93.758 28.217

Patient receivables, related to the Organization's FQHC, consist of the following at June 30:

2024 2023

Medicaid/Medicare $242,063 $205,078
Other 124.01 1 189.478

£366.074 $394.556
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5. Investments and Fair Value Measurements

The Organization presents investments at fair value in compliance with the FASB in ASC Topic 820,
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. ASC Topic 820 establishes a framework for measuring fair
value and requires assets and liabilities measured at fair value be segregated into the following three
categories; (1) Level I, fair values obtained from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and
liabilities; (2) Level 2, fair values obtained from significant other observable inputs, such as quoted
prices for similar assets arid liabilities in active markets; and (3) Level 3, fair values obtained from
significant unobservable inputs. All of the Organization's investments measured at fair value are
measured using Level I inputs.

In December 2006, the Organization transferred funds to the New Hampshire Charitable Foundation
(NHCF) to establish an endowment fund with the Organization named as beneficiary. Under tenns of
the agreement, distributions from the fund can be made at the discretion of the NHCF Board of Directors
at such times and in such amounts and for such charitable purposes, as they deem appropriate, in keeping
with the purposes of the fund. The Organization elected for all distributions to be reinvested into the
fund. At the time of the transfer, the Organization granted variance power to NHCF. That power gives
NHCF the right to distribute the investment income to another not-for-profit organization of its choice
if the Organization ceases to exist or if the governing board of NHCF votes that support of the
Organization (a) is no longer necessary, (b) is incapable of fulfillment, or (c) is inconsistent with the
needs of the community. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the endowment fund has a value of $248,995 arid
$227,408, respectively, which is reported in the consolidated statements of financial position as a
beneficial interest in assets held by others. The Organization's legal interest is in its pro rata portion of
the trust and not the trust's underlying assets. The Organization's interest is valued based upon its pro
rata ownership of the total trust. As the actual assets are not readily available to the Organization, the
asset is considered to be level 3.

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the application of valuation techniques applied to
similar assets has been consistent.

Investments consist of the following at June 30:

2024

Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total

Equities $44,932 $ - $ - $ 44,932
Exchange traded funds 29,600 - - 29,600
Mutual funds 16,821 - - 16,821
Beneficial interest in assets held by others - - 248.995 248.995

£91.353 $^ £248.995 $340.348
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5. ■ Investments and Fair Value Measurements CContlnued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2023

.Equities $55,330 $ - $ - $ 55,330
Exchange traded funds 25,263 - - 25,263
Mutual funds 15,949 - - 15 949
Beneficial interest in assets.held by others - _ 227.408 227.408

$96.542 $_^ $227.408 $323.950

The table below presents information about the changes in the beneficial interest in assets held by others
for the years ended June 30:

Beginning balance, July 1,2022 $217,237

investment return, net of fees |q J7]

Ending balance, June 30, 2023 227,408

Investment return, net of fees 21 587

Ending balance, June 30, 2024

6. Property and Eauinment

Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30:

2024 2023

Land and land improvements $ 4,513,038 $ 4,491,238
Buildings and building improvements 35,127,224 34 181 194
Software 535,569 '5351569
Vehicles 521,686 499,343
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 873,091 664,088
Construction in progress 795.734 443.546

42,366,342 40,814,978

Less accumulated depreciation f 17.488.807^ (16.1 10.628^

$ 24.877.535 $ 24.704.350

Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $1,425,055 and $1,409,790 for the years ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively.
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Lines of Credit

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the Organization had the following lines of credit available;

Harbor Homes: $3,000,000 line of credit available from Enterprise Bank secured by all business assets.
The Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest payments at the Wall Street
Journal Prime Rate with a floor of 3.25% (8.50% at June 30, 2024). The line of credit expires
February 28, 2025. There was no outstanding balance on the credit line as of June 30, 2024 and 2023.

ONCA: $750,000 line of credit available from Merrimack County Savings Bank, due on demand, and
secured by all business assets. The Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest
payments at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00% (9.50% at June 30, 2024). The line of credit

provides the bank with a first lien on accounts receivable as collateral. There was no outstanding balance
on the line of credit at June 30, 2024 and 2023.

The agreements above contain certain financial and nonfinancial covenants. Management asserts all
debt covenant requirements have been met or waived as of year end.

8. Notes Payable

Notes Payable

Notes payable consisted of the following as of June. 30:

Monthly 2024 2023

Payment Interest Interest •Maturity Principal Principal
ProDcrtv/Securitv Amount Rate Tvdc Date Balance Balance

615 Amhcrst Street. Nashua, NH $19,631 4.00% Adjustable September 2042 $ 3,070,285 $3,178,642
75-77 Northeastern Boulevard,

Nashua, NH 15,311 3.92% Adjustable Februar)' 2052 3,079,713 3,139,409
75-77 Northeastern Boulevard,

Nashua, NH 6,177 5.00% Fixed September 2029 1,156,068 1,171,952
335 Somcr\'illc Street,

Manchester, NH 7,879 6.77% Adjustable December 2033 1,023,789 1,046,776
335 Somcr\'ille Street

Manchester, NH 6.193 4.57% Fixed December 2033 959,350 989,066
59 Factor)' Street, Nashua, NH 7,768 7.05% Adjustable October 2040 894,973 923,954

59 Factor)' Street, Nashua, NH 2.692 4.75% Adjustable October 2040 365,675 380,221
59 Factor)' Street, Nashua, NH 359 6.96% Adjustable October 2035 33,751 35,639
46 Spring Street, Nashua, NH 5,126 6.97% Adjustable December 2036 501,227 526,811
46 Spring Street, Nashua, NH 3.996 4.75% Fixed December 2036 445.041 471,165
45 High Street, Nashua, NH 5,018 3.12% Adjustable August 2030 337,511 386,349
12 Aubum Street, Nashua, NH 2,863 3.85% Adjustable December 2045 501,833 516.560

30 Allds Street, Nashua, NH 5,276 9.25%' Fixed December 2026 144,981 192,470
156 Chestnut Street, Nashua, NH 3,369 9.25%* Fixed Januar)' 2028 122,924 150,577
99 Chestnut Street, Nashua, NH 1,538 5.67% Adjustable April 2042 206,909 213,432
7 Trinity Street, Claremont, NH 1,401 3.75%* Adjustable October 2031 166,755 177,079
7 North Main Street, Antrim, NH 3.184 9.25%* Fixed May 2025 38.260

13,049,045
71.252

13,571,354
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8. Notes Payable (Continued)

Monthly 2024 2023
Payment Interest Interest Maturity Principal Principal

Propertv/Securitv Amount Rate Tn'pc Date Balance Balance

Notes payable issuance costs $ (52,096) $ (54,950)
Current portion' (558.862") (528.615)

• HUD issued and backed

Aggregate principal payments on the notes payable due within the next five years and thereafter are as
follows for the years ending June 30:

2025 S 558,862

2026 553,936
2027 555,717

2028 529,417
2029 530,775
Thereafter 10.320.338

Certain of the above notes payable contain various financial and nonfmancial covenants. Management
asserts all debt covenant requirements have been met or waived as of year end. The adjustable rate notes
payable adjust at various times during the life of the respective note and are primarily based off the
Federal Home Loan Amortizing Advance Rate, plus basis points ranging from 175 to 300 basis points.

Notes Payable. Tax Credits

Notes payable, lax credits consist of notes held by the Community Development Finance Authority
through the Community Development Investment Program, through the sale of tax credits to donor
organizations. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, these tax credits totaled $287,643 and $343,583, respectively.
The tax credits self-amortize over the term of the notes, which is generally 10 years.

Notes Payable. Deferred

The Organization has deferred notes outstanding, secured by real property. These loans are interest free,
and are not required to be repaid unless the Organization is in default with the terms of the loan
agreements or, for certain loans, if an operating surplus occurs within that program. The deferred loans
are subordinate to any nondeferred loan on the related property. Management asserts all debt covenant
requirements have been met for 2024.
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8. Notes Payable (Continued)

Deferred notes payable are as follows at June 30:

2024 2023

City of Manchester:
Somerville Street property $ 300,000 $ 300,000

City of Nashua;
Factory Street property 580,000 580,000
Spring Street property 491,000 491,000
Strawberry Bank condominium 80,000 = 80,000
High Street fire system 65.000 65.000

Total City of Nashua 1,216,000 1,216,000

HUD:

Strawberry Bank condominium 436,400 436,400

Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB):
Factory Street property 400,000 400,000
Somerville Street property 400,000 400,000
Amherst Street property 385.000 385.000

Total FHLB 1,I85,000^'> 1,185,000"'

New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority (NHHFA):
Amherst Street property 1,500,000 1,500,000
Factory Street property 982,349 982,349
Spring Street property 550,000 550,000
Somerville Street property 1.000.000 1.000.000

Total NHHFA 4.032.349^^' 4.032.349^^'

(1) Will be automatically forgiven at the end of the term
(2) Nonrecourse

S 7-169.749 $7.169.749

During fiscal year 2023, the FHLB Spring Street property deferred loan totaling $398,747 was
discharged by the mortgage holder as the project had reached the end of the Affordable Housing Program
(AI-IP) retention period and satisfied the terms of the AHP subsidy agreement. Accordingly, the
Organization recognized a gain on forgiveness of debt totaling $398,747 within nonoperating revenue
in the accompanying consolidated statement of activities and changes in net assets for the year ending
June 30, 2023.
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9. Leases

The Organization leases various office space and parking under noncancellable operating leases. The
original lease terms are one to five years with certain options for the Organization to renew the leases
for specific periods subsequent to the original lease terms. Theimonthly payments during 2024 ranged
from $750 to $3,500 and the leases expire at various periods through October 2027.

The Organization leases various vehicles under finance leases. The original lease terms are
approximately three years, with monthly payments ranging from $276 to $784 through March 2027.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are reported in the Organization's consolidated statements of
financial position as follows: ^

2024 2023

Operating leases:
Operating lease right-of-use assets $122.193 £127.113

Current portion of operating lease liabilities $ 66,928 $ 66,578
Operating lease liabilities, less current portion 55.365 61.656

Total operating lease liabilities

Finance leases:

Property and equipment, net £ 54.130 $,

Current portion of finance lease liabilities $ 19,174 $ -
Finance lease liabilities, less current portion 35.501 -

Total finance lease liabilities $ 54.675 £ -

Consolidated Statements of

Description Functional Expenses Classification

Operating lease expense Rent: office space $ 67,924 $ 63,978

Finance lease costs:

Amortization of right-of-use assets Depreciation and amortization $ 9,842 $ -
Interest on lease liabilities Interest expense-other 1,232 -
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9. Leases (Continued)

SuDplemenlal Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information is as follows for the fiscal years ended June 30;

2024 2023

Operating leases-operating cash flows (fixed payments) $ 67,824 . $ 62,677
Finance leases — finance cash flows (liability reduction) 9,297 -
Operating leases - right-of-use assets and operating lease ^

liabilities recorded upon adoption of ASU 842 N/A 147,904
Operating leases - right-of-use assets obtained in exchange

for new operating lease liabilities 100,647 40,600
Finance leases - right-of-use assets obtained in exchange

for new finance lease liabilities 63,972 -

Lease Term and Discount Rate

Lease term and discount rate are as follows for the fiscal years ended June 30:

2024 2023

Operating leases:

Weighted-average remaining lease term (in years) 2.0 2.4
Weighted-average discount rate 4.82% 3.24%

Finance leases:

Weighted-average remaining lease term (in years) 2.8 N/A
Weighted-average discount rate ' 4.10% N/A

At the lease commencement date, the discount rate implicit in the lease is used to discount the lease
liability if readily determinable. If not readily determinable or leases do not contain an implicit rate, the
Organization has made a policy election to use a risk-free rate as the discount rate for all classes of
underlying assets.
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9. Leases (Continued")

As of June 30, 2024, maturities of operating and finance lease liabilities for each of the following four
years were as follows:

Finance Operating
Leases Leases

2025 $21,058 $ 71,045
2026 21,058 45,000
2027 15,793 9,000
2028

- 3.000

Total minimum future lease payments 57,909 128,045

Less imputed interest (3,234)- (5,752)

Total lease liabilities

Lease Income

The Organization has entered into various agreements to lease certain office space and parking to other
organizations. These leases generally contain rent escalation clauses, unless either party provides
advance written notice of termination. All leases are determined to be operating leases. In 2024 and
2023, rental income (included in other rental income) was approximately $503,000 and $444,000,
respectively.

Scheduled future lease payments, excluding opportunities for future renewals, consist of the following
at June 30, 2024:

2025 $555,540
2026 497,680
2027 391,590
2028 184,689
2029 52,035
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10. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following at June 30:

2024 2023

Purpose:
Capital improvements $ 5,498 $365,727
Veterans programs 75,891 10,751
Miscellaneous 15,733 97,107
Special events - 1^933
Recruitment/retention/training - 108,240
Housing 62,009
Program support 51,917 -
Client assistance 36.965 24.539

248,013 608,297

Perpetuity:
Beneficial interest in assets held by others 248.995 227.408

11. Patient Service Revenues

The Organization recognizes patient ser\'ice revenue associated with services provided through its
FQHC to patients who have Medicaid, Medicare, third-party payor, and managed care plans coverage
on the basis of contractual rates for services rendered. For uninsured self-pay patients that do not qualify
for charity care, the Organization recognizes revenue on the basis of its standard rates for services
provided or on the basis of discounted rates if negotiated or provided by the Organization's policy. The
Organization accepts patients regardless oftheir ability to pay. A patient is classified as a charity patient
by reference to certain established policies, which define charity services as those costs for which no
payment is anticipated. The Organization uses federally established poverty guidelines to assess the
level of discount provided to the patient. The Organization is required to provide a full discount to
patients with annual incomes at or below 100% of the povert>' guidelines, but may charge a nominal fee.
If the patient is unable to pay the nominal fee, the amount is written off to charit>' care. All patients are
charged in accordance with a sliding fee discount program based on household size and household
income. No discounts may be provided to patients with incomes over 200% of federal poverty
guidelines.
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11. Patient Service Revenues (Continued)

Patient service revenues (FQHC) consists of the following for the years ended June 30:

2024 2023

Medicaid • $4,086,882 $3,317,574
Medicare 1,626,257 1,659,551
Third party ' 686,139 451,005
Sliding fee/free care 91,450 110,088
Self-pay 144.924 125.345

Other patient service revenues consists of the following for the years ended June 30:

2024 2023

Medicaid $4,343,507 $4,363,779
Medicare 78,031 92,055
Third party 24,936 33,377
Self-pay 42.982 18.125

12. Functional Expenses

The consolidated financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more
than one program or supporting function. Therefore^ those expenses require allocation on a reasonable
basis that is consistently applied. The majority of expenses are direct costs that are charged to the
applicable cost center, program, grant, and/or function. Costs that are not directly related to a cost center,
program, grant, and/or function, or allocated as noted below, are accumulated into an indirect cost pool
and charged using direct salaries, wages, and benefits as the allocation base. Certain individual cost
elements are charged on a direct allocation basis, as follows:

Salaries. Wages and Benefits

Except for certain key members of management, employees charge their lime directly to specific grants,
contracts, or other activities. Charges are supported by labor distribution reports and timesheet records,
which reflect the actual activities under each. Fringe benefits include unemployment insurance, workers'
compensation, FICA, health insurance, dental insurance, short-term and long-term disability, and
matching retirement contributions. Benefits are also directly charged, using a methodology similar to
that used for salaries and wages.
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12. Functional Expenses (Continued^

Occupancy Costs

Occupancy costs are allocated as follows:

•  interest on debt-financed property is allocated based on the purpose/use, of the property.
Rent is allocated based on square footage.

•  Utilities are charged based on the purpose/use of the property.
•  Depreciation is allocated based on the purpose/use of the property.

13. Related Party Transactions

Boulder Point is a related party to the Organization. The following is a summary of transactions between
the Organization and Boulder Point:

•  Boulder Point and Harbor Homes entered into a ground lease agreement in 2018. The lease called
for a one-time payment of $285,000 at inception of the lease. The lease terminates in June 21 16
with optional one-year renewals. At June 30,2024 and 2023, Harbor Homes has recorded $267,551
and $270,459, respectively, in deferred rent revenue, which is reflected within other long-term
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position.

•  Harbor Homes has an amount due from Boulder Point for project developer fees. At the end of each
fiscal year, Boulder Point repays Harbor Homes to the extent the project produces sufficient cash
flow. At June 30, 2024 and 2023, Harbor Homes has recorded $157,504 related to developer fees
receivable, which is reflected within other long-term assets in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position.

•  Harbor Homes recognized approximately $59,000 and $76,000 in management fee revenue from
Boulder Point for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and has also reflected
approximately $100,000 and $96,000, respectively, as due from Boulder Point within due from
related organizations in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position at June 30,
2024 and 2023.

•  Harbor Homes provides a guaranty of operating deficits of the Boulder Point project in the amount
of $275,000. Accordingly, in the event the project were to experience financial distress, Harbor
Homes would have a contingent liability for operating deficits up to $275,000. This risk has been
mitigated in part through the establishment of an operating reserve.

•  There is a loan between HH Plymouth and Boulder Point totaling $1,271,105. The loan is due to
HH Plymouth in a balloon payment in 2039 and is the last priority of note payable. The Organization
determined that the likelihood of repayment of this loan is low and collectability is not reasonably

..assured and therefore, the note receivable is fully reserved for by HH Plymouth as of June 30, 2024
and 2023.
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iiirlier

Hmimi*

Harbor

Hom<i H.

inr.

Harbor

Homes HI

IlK.

HH

OHnenhlp.
Inr.

Creoltr

Nashua

Council on
AlcoholItm

Heidlh)' al
Home, Inc.

Welcoalnt

SARC

Houslni
Needs

Soultiem Nil

HIV/AIDS
Task Force.

Inc.

Asseu

CuRcm assets:
Cash and cash equivalenis I 2J69.7IJ S  1.447 $  3387 $  2.830 $ 1324.307 S - S  3.833 S  8.848 S _ S S 3316.292 S 3.686.184
Restricted cash 464,dS9 23.173 48,810 .  15,359 103.274 - 39310 74322 . _ 773.159 780.430
Other accounts reeeivaUe, net 2.621,762 2348 288 782 - - 3,962 437 _ - 2.631,479 1.738373
Patient receivables (FQHIT) 366,074 - - - - - - - _ 1 366,074 394336
Due from rdaied orgsiirationr 3.810327 - - - 1,071.137 - - - - (4.788.283) 100,201 96,039
Invenlorx' 124,888 - - - - - - - _ _ 124,888 30,462
Other asMs 121.484 - - - - - - - - _ 121.484 84.994

Total current assets 9,778,942 28,870 32,403 18.971 2.407.738
-

31.127 83.807
-

(4.788.283) 7.6333J7 8,831.03(1

Piopett)' and etpapmenl. net 19312.102 213,722 167,875 239.324 4.148382
-

774,726 119.004
- -

24,877335 24.704330

Other noocuiroit Bseli;
Investments 91.3S3 - - - - - - - - _ 91.353 96.342
Beneficial Interest in assets held b>' others 248.993 - - - - - - _ _ _ 248.993 227.408
Operating lease righi-of-use assets' 2.102.326 - - - - - - - _ (1.980,133) 122.193 127.113
Other assets 171 189 - - - - - - - - - 171.189 169.206

Totd other noncurreni assets 2.613.863 - - - - - - 11.980.133) 633.730 620 269

Total assets S3I.604.907 $  244.592 S  220.280 $  238.495 $ 6356.320 $ _ $  825.853 S  202.811 S _ S(6.768.4I6) S33.I44.842 S34.175.699

UabUilies and Net Aiscli

CioTcnl liabililia:
Currenl ponion of rKMo potable
Curreni portion of operating lease liabilities
Currenl ponion of finance lease iiabiliiies
Due to rcialed orgmi/aiioni
Accounts pot able
Accrued pajroll, vacation

and ivIaM e.\p«ns<s
Other liabilities

Told current liabilities

Long-lerm liabilities:
Accrued pi)'roil. vacation

and ttlaied expenses
Notes pa>'ible, net ofcttrrent portion
Notes pa)'able. ia\ credits
Note pa)'able. deferred
Operating lease liabilities, net of

cioTvnl portion
FinatKe leoM liabilities, net of

current portion
Otba Iiabiliiies

Total long^erm liabilities
Told liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Without dortor restrictions
With dotror restrictions

Total net assets (drildt)

Total liabilities aid net nseti

* Consists ofHartror Homes, Inc.. HH Phmoulh. HUD I atd HUD VI

S  309,881 $  52,073 S  30322 S S  113.106 S - S  31,480 $  - S _ S S  338,862 S  328,613
355,786 - - - - - - - - (288,838) 66,928 66378
19,174 — — • — — • • 19,174 _

4,316,595 286,086 39372 23.932 - - 114,708 7.670 _ (4.788.283) ■ _ _

1,819,353 838 243
- - -

2,414 17304
- -

1,840,334 1,132.643

605,373 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 603.373 630.381
297,070 23<'"l 1.176 986 - - 998 38 - - 302.652 32X706

7.723.232 341361 71.013 24.938 II3I06
~

169.600 23332
~

(S.077.I4I) 3393343 2.687.123 .

691.657 691.657 655.051
8,860.879 92.908 92.602 - 2,903.083 - 488.613 - - - 12.438,087 12.987.789
287.643 - - - - - - - - - 287.643 343383

4,768.349
- -

316,400 1.883.000
- - - -

-

7.169.749 7.169.749

1.746.640
- - - - - - - -

(1,691.273) 33363 61,636

33301 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 33301 _

312.291 4.777 3.081 *17 - - 13338 2.034 - - 336.338 422.344

16.702.960 97.6*3 93.6*3 517.217 4.7*8.0*3 - 301 971 2 014 - (1.691.273) 21.014.360 21 640 172

24.426.192 439,046 166.69* 342,135 4.903,191
-

671,571 27.266
-

(6.768.416) 24.407.703 24327393

6.681,707 (194,434) 33,382 (283.660) 1,633.129 _ 134,282 173.345 . . 8340,131 9,012.699
497 008 - - - - - - - - - 497.008 833.705

7.178.713 (194.4341 33382 (283.660) 1.633.129 - 134.282 173.345 - - 8.737.139 9,848.404

S3I.6(M.907 S  244392 S  220.280 S  258.493 S 6356320 S _ S  823.833 S  202.811 S _ S(6.76S.416) S33.I44.842 S34,173.699
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Harii*r

Horon*

Harbor

Hornet II.

Inc.
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Hornet 111

Inr.
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OwDmbip,
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Grraier

Naihua
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lleallb)'al
Home, Inc."
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Housing
Needs

Board. Inc.

Southern Nil

HIV/AIDS

Tatk Forte.

Inc.
Support and Revenuct

Support:

Granu:

Federd $ 12,772,K?} S  143,051 J  119.535 S  35345 $ J S  157,448 S 88368 J  80.870 s $13,397392 $13347.174
Siale 7.803.035 - - - - _ _ _ _ _ 7,863,035 6,886,846

Contributions 919.001 UJ61 - - 114.599 17.477 29.832 _ 72 _ r.092.542 . 2.733.103
Told support 21.554.911 154,612 119.535 35345 114399 17.477 187.280 88.268 80.942

. 22353,169 21.967.123

Ret enus:

Padeni sertiee revenues (FQHC) 6,037,772 - - - _ _ _ _ ■> (2,120) 6,635,652 5.663363Paiioil ten-ice revenues (other) 3,298,355 - - - - 1,191,701 J _ (600) 4,489,456 4307336
Veterans Adnanisiralion progiana 4,803.605

-
-

-
- - - - _ 4,803,605 5.430,359

Rental income:
Resident pav-nienti K51.924 55,353 37.307 27.896 _ _ 193.618 54.795 _ _ 1,220,893 1366,770
Other Income 641,216 - - - 342.000 - _ _ _ (366.438) 616,778 508,201

Contracted senices 128,904 - - - - 33,000 _
_

_ (33,000) 128.904 150,773
Management fees 111,212 - - - - - _ _ (51,797) 59.415 75,925
Other income 161,607 (66) 422 - 6 - 809 _ _ 162.771 91,146
Entplcyec retention ta.t credit income 1.190.628 - - - _ _

_
_ 1 190 621

Total revenues 17,825,223 55.287 37.729 27.896 343.006 1324.701 194,427 54.795 (600) (453355) I9308.IU9 17.694.073
Total sigtpon and revenues 39J80,i34 209,899 157.264 63,441 456,605 1,242.178 381,707 143.063 80342 ^ (453355) 41,661.278 39,661,196

Operating expenses:
PTOgram sen icet 32,412,596 136,439 118.376 53,428 151,970 908342 173,213 114.843 8 (377,120) 33.692395 31,988.457'
Management and geteral 6,718,416 23.618 21.676 13.676 3,608 5%.926 48,273 21.953 _ (76,235) 7,371,911 6311,023Findnistng aid development 627,099 6.050 - - 3,832 - 50 _ _ 637.031 406.135

Total operating expenses before
deptedilion aid amortization expense 39,758,111 166.107 140,052 67,1(M 159,410 1305,468 221336^ 136,796 8 (453355) 41.701337 38,705.615

Depreciaian aid amortizalian expense I.I30J22 23 962 24386 15336 199 953 _ 24.349 6.147 _ 1 42.5 055 1.409.790
Total operating etpenses 40.888.633 190.069 164.638 82,640 359.363 1305.468 245.885 I42.W3 8 (453355) 43.126.292 40.115.405

(IXAS) incona from operations (i.508.499) 19.830 (7,374) (19.199) 97342 (263,290) 135,822 . 120 80.334 _ (1,465.014) (454309)

Nonopetaling revenue (expcRM):
Cain on foc^vetiess ofdebt _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _

398.747Can on sale of related orgsnization 250.000 - _ _ _
_ _ _ _ 250,000

Investment retun, net 64,816 944 1301 505 ■ 33.472 5 428 2378 _ _ 103,749 61,898
Net assets transfer (34.000) - - - 322.149 - _ (288.149) _

Total nonoperaling revenue (expense) 280,816 944 1301 505 33.472 322.154 438 2.278 1288.149) _ 353.749 460.645

Chmge in net assets (1,227,683) 20.774 (6,073) (18,694) 130,714 58,864 136.250 239$ (207,815) _ (1,111.265) • 6,436

Net assets (deficit), beginning of year 8.406398 (215.228) 59655 (264.966) I32I4I5 (58.864) 18032 173.147 207.815 . 9.848 44M 9.841.968

Net assets (deCdl), aid ofyear S 7,178.715 S 1194.454) S  53382 5 (283.660) S 1.653.129 S S  154,282 S 175345 S S $ 8.737.139 $ 9.S48.4(M

*  Coosisa ofHarbor Homet. lne..HH Phmouth, HUD I tndHUD VI
" Throughdsieof merger ■tdtsleenixtite Ml)'31,2024
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION - H.ARBOR HOMES. INC.

As5eu

Current asscu:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Other accounts receivable, net
Patient receivables (FOHC)
Due from related organi/jtiions
Inventory
Other assets

Total current assets

Propert)' and equipttteni, net

Other noncurrcnt assets:

Investments

Beiiericial interest in assets held by others
Operating lease righKf-use assets
Other assets

Total other notKurrent assets

Total assets

IJabilitics and Net Assets
Current liabilities:

Ciureni portion of notes payable
Current portion of operating lease liabilities
Current portion of finance lease liabilities
Due to related organizatiotts
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll, >'acation and related expenses
Other liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Notes payable, net of current portion
Notes payable, tax credits
NotM payable, deferred
Operating lease liabilities, net of current ponion
Finance lease liabilities. tKt ofcurrent portion
Other liabilities

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets (deficit):
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and net assets'(deficil)

. 2024 With Summarized Comparative Infoniiation for June 30,2023

Harbor HUD 1, HUD VI. HII Plymouth.
Homes. Inc. Inc. Inc. LLC 2024 2023

S  2.233.147 S 32.184 S 4.387 S S 2.269,718 S 3.653,801
349.557 69.177 45,955 _ 464.689 448,659 ■

2,616.828 2,199 2.735 _ 2,621,762 1,540.218
366,074 - - _ 366,074 394,556

3,810.327 - - _ 3,810,327 3,315,737
124,888 - - - 124,888' 50,462
121.484 - -

- 121.484 84.994
9.622,305 103.560 53.077

-
9.778,942 9.488.427

18.815,042 117.733 279,327
-

19,212,102 18.824,946

91,353 _ 91,353 96,542
248.995 - -

_ 248,995 227,408
2,102.326 - _

_ 2,102,326 2.387,801
171,189 I - - 171.189 168.606

2.613.863 - - - 2.613.863 2.880.357

S 31,051.210 s 221.293 S 332.404 s s 31.604.907 $ 31.193.730

S  299.134 s s 10.747 $ s 309.881 s 295,155
355.786 - _ _ 355.786 360,384
19,174 -

_ _ 19,174 _

2,800.154 12.295 233.041 1.271.105 4,316.595 2,887,046
1,798.535 20.734 84 _ 1.819,353 1,054.218
605.373 -

- •  605,373 606,775
296.048 328 694 - 297.070 312.239

6,174.204 33.357 244,566 1.271,105 i.il5,8)>

691,657 691.657 640,431
8.704,871 - 156,008 _ 8.860.879 9,166,698
287.643 - _ _ 287.643 343.583

4,768,349 - - _ 4.768.349 4.768.349
1.746.640 - - _ 1.746.640 2.028.538

35,501 - _ _ 35,501 _

308.642 2.568 1.081 - 312.291 323.916
16.543.303 2.568 157.089 — 16.702.960 17.271.515

iWi 401.655 1,271,105 24.426.192 iJ,787.335

7,836,695 185.368 (69,251) (1.271,105) 6,681.707 7,701,131
497.008 - - - 497.008 705.267

8.333.703 185.368 (^^.Jii) (1.271.105) 7.j7S.71i 8.406.398

S 31.051.210 s 221.293 s 332.404 S s 31.604.907 s 31.193.730
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HARBOR HOMES, INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/e JURBOR CARE

Supporc and Rrt'enuts
Support:
Granu:

Fed«r«l

Slate

Coniribulions
Tout support

Revenues:

Patient sen-ice res-enues (FQHC)
Patient sen-ice revenues (other)
Veterans Administration programs
Rental income:

Resident payments
Other

Contracted sen-ices
Management fees
Other income
Employee retention tax credit income

Total revenues

Total support and revenues

Operating e.xpenses:
Program sen-ices
Management and general
Fundraising and development

Total operating expenses before
depreciation and anrortization expense

Depreciation and amortization expense
Total operating expenses

(Loss) irKome from operations

Nonoperating revenue (expense):
Gain on foigiveness of debt
Gain on sale of related organization
Investment return, net
Net asset transfers

Total nonoperating revenue (expense)

Change in net assets

Net assets (deficit), beginning ofyear

Net assets (deficit), end ofyear

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES - HARBOR HOMES. INC.

; 30. 2024 With Summarized Comparative Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Harbor HDD 1, HUD Vl. HH Plymouth,
Homes. Inc. Inc. Inc. LLC 2024 2023

S  12,6)4.454 S  92,624 S  65.797 S S 12.772,875 S 11,812,881
7.863,035 - - _ 7,863,035 6.886,846
919.001 - - - •919,001 2,645,838

21,396,490 92,624 ,  65.797 - 21,554.911 21,345,565

6.637,772 _
_ 6.637.772 5,672,653

3,298,355 -

- - 3.298J55 3,319.697
4,803,605

- • - - 4,803,605 5,430,359

785,135 42,889 23,900 • _ 851,924 938,993
641,216 -

- _ 641.216 534,861
128,904 - - 128,904 150.773
111,212 - -

- 111,212 105.097
159,094 2,513 -

_ 161,607 90,052
1.190.628 - - _ 1.190.628

17.755.921 45.402 23.900 _ 17,825.223 16,242.485
39,152,411 138,026 89,697

- 39,380,134 37,588,050

32,235.152 96,369 81.075 32,412,596 29,966,157
6,682.387 21,762 14,267 _ 6,718,416 6,109,537
627,099 - - _ 627.099 399.092

39,544,638 ' 1)8,131 95,342 - 39.758,111 36,474.786

1,105,054 7.705 17,763 _

1.130.522 1.1)2.450
40.649.692 125.836 1)3.105 40.888.633 37.587.236

(1,497,281) 12,190 (23,408)
- (1.508,499) 814

_
_

398.747
250,000 - - _ 250,000 _

62,737 2,041 38 _ 64,816 47,951
(34,000) - - _ (34,000) _

278,737 2.041 38 _ 280.816 446.698

(1,218,544) 14,231 (23,370) - (1.227.683) 447,512

9.552J47 171.137 (45.881) (1.271.105) 8.406.398 7.958.886

S  8.333,703 S  185.368 S  (69.2511 J (1.271.105) S  7.178.715 S  8,406,398
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HARBOR llOiMKS, INC. AND AFFILIATES (J/b/a HARBOR CARE

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES - HARBOR HOMES. INC.

For (he Year Ended June 30.2024 With Summarized Compamlive Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Personnel cxpcnKs:
Salaries and \vages
Payroll ta.\es
Employee benefits

Coniraci/professional services
Supplies:

OfTtee

Medical/denial
Building and household

Clienl ser\'ices:
Rental assistance

Rental application fee
Security deposit assistaiKe
Utilit)' rebate
Emergency housing
Treatment and supponive ser\'ices
Training and employnKnt assistance
Supportive services assistance
Activities, supplies and other assistance
Food, meals and nutritional assistance

Rent: office space
Building:

MainienaiKC aixl repairs
Utilities

Interest:
Mortgage
Other

Conference and conventions
Professional scr%-ices
Accounting and audit services
Legal fees
Insurance:

Property and liability
Professional
Other

Vehicle and transportation expenses
Staff:

Transportation
Education and training
Hiring and recruiting
Unifonns

Management Fundrnising
Program and and

Services General DevelonmenI 2024 2023

11.063.334 S 4,264,191 $  349,655 $15,677,180 $14,937,960
818.306 282,758 25,430 1.126,494 1,141,246

2,265,842 922,447 33,316 3,221,605 2.648.356
673,368 30,673 52,400 756.441 873,534

95.167 • 25,930 949 122,046 '  144.024
90,265 - _ 90,265 85,725
180,766 6,212 2,767 189,745 178,940

5,596,326 _ _ 5,596,326 4,592,000
I.O90 -

- 1,090 611
92,627 -

- 92,627 116,916
112,363 - - 112,363 75.62!
4,184 - - 4.184 28,373

62,056 325 - 62,381 . 58,466
7,937 - — 7,937 4.441

59,377 - 230 59,607 72,529
•  53,722 850 55.367 109.939 97.185

256,857 1 - 256,858 269,280
411.221 - '■ - 411,22! 410,413

499,529 80.721 647 580,897 593,900
580,686 72.625 941 654,252 821,503

380,935 92,361 889 474.185 485.380
1,232 - - 1.232 , - 10.181

66,209 11,897 3,766 81,872 70,271
14,959 37.795, 52,754 40,302
2,654 80,647 _ 83,30! 74,310
4,955 126,842 - 131,797 97,670

93,680 6,181 80 99,941 81.700
30,272 249 - 30,521 111.324

- 94,565 — 94.565 304
94,17! - - 94.171 82,103

114.153 5.224 12 119,389 123,420
155,718 50,495 - 206,213 185,258
104,231 833 - 105,064 15.980

4,176 - - 4,176 3,421
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HARBOR HOMES. INC. AND AFFILIATES d/b/a HARBOR CARE

STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES - HARBOR HOMES. INC. (CONTINUED)

For the Year Ended jime 30.2024 With Sununarized Comparative Information for the N'ear Ended June 30. 2023

In-kind donation
Operations:

Communication

Cable

Postage
Membership and subscriptions
Equipment lease and mainienaiKc

SoDtvare licenses, maintenance and fees
Stibrecipient and subcontracts
Property taxes
Direct program marketing and advertising .
Marketing
Fundraising publications
Management and administrative fees
Seix-ice charges and fees
Fines and penalties
Stair and board expenses
Cost of goods sold
Allocation:

Indirect charges
Total functional expense before depreciation

and amortization expense

Depreciation and amortization expense

Total functional expenses

Management Fundraising
Program and and

Services General Dcvelonment 2024 2023

S S $  28,380 $  28,380 $  13,055

113.259 61,391 802 175.452 245,592
11.736 535 7 12,278 8.269
13.2)3 8.047 965 22,225 19,559
78.562 37,303 5.207 121.072 104,253
51,801 10,238 1,092 63.13! 64,167
725.268 306,591 307 1.032,166 1,207,337

5.602.773 25.670 _ 5.628.443 4,731,555
56,413 - - 56.413 37,571
35,945 1,203 1,389 38.537 50,369

757 3,555 6,748 11,060 19,698
ISI 956 50,167 51.304 26,788
_ 12,518 _ 12.518 13,906

43,145 4,371 2,585 50.101 43,225
143 _ _ 143 206

12.799 52,703 3,001 68,503 39,600
1.673,746

-
- 1.673.746 1,316,989

487 (487) _ _
_

32,412,596 6,718,416 627.099 39.758.111 36,474,786

780.378 349.638 506 1.130.522 1.112.450

S 33.192.974 S 7.068.054 S  627.605 S 40.888.633 S 37.587.236
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HARBOR CARE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Harbor Homes, IncTHarbor Care Health & Wellness Center; Harbor Homes, II, Inc; Harbor Homes, III, Inc.; HH Ownership;

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism;
Healthy at Home, Inc.; Welcoming Light Inc., SARC Housing Needs Board

Grant Alois -Governance Committee

Joined 2024

(1« Term) - '(6/26)

David Anzalone -RDP Committee

Joined 2024

(1« Term) - '(6/26)"

Thomas I. Arnold, - Chair, Governance Committee

- Finance Committee

- Executive Committee

(4th term) - (6/26)

Continuous Years of Service - 6 yrs.

Dr. Prathima Bayisetty -HCC Oversight Committee

-Strategic Planning

(1" term) ,(6-26).

Joined 2023

Continuous Years of Service - lyr

Vijay Bhatt - Governance Committee

- Facilities Committee

-(3rd term) - (6/26)

Continuous Years of Service - 6 yrs.

Vincent Chamberlain Asst Treasurer (2023)

- Oversight Committee

- Governance Committee

(1st term)-(6/26).

Joined 2023

Revised 10-25-24

Rosemarie Dykeman - HCC Oversight Committee

- Chair. RDP Committee

- Strategic Planning

(2-- term)- (6/26)

Continuous Years of Service - 3 yrs.

Sekondi Foster - HCC Oversight Committee

- RDP Committee

(2nd term) - (6/26).

Continuous Years of Service - 3 yrs.

Jared Freilich Treasurer (2019)

- Chair, Finance Committee

- Executive Committee

(3rd term) - (6-26)

Continuous Years of Service - 6 yrs.

Laurie Goguen Asst Secretary (201 7)
- Executive Committee

- Chair. (Oversight Committee

(3rd term) r,(6-26)

Continuous Years of Service - 6 yrs.'

Joel Jaffe

(4lh term) - (6-26)

Chair of the Board (2023)

- Executive Committee

- Oversight Committee

- Finance Committee

- Governance Committee

• Strategic Planning

- RDP Committee

Continuous Years of Service - 9 yrs. -Facilities Committee
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HARBOR CARE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Harbor Homes, Inc./Harbor Care Health & Wellness Center; Harbor Homes, II, Inc; Harbor Homes, III, Inc.; HH Ownership;
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism;

Healthy at Home, Inc.; Welcoming Light Inc., SARC Housing Needs Board

Alison C. Madden, MD - HCC Oversight Committee

- Strategic Planning

(2nd term) -(6-26).

Continuous Years of Service - 3 yrs.

Lanna Martin Secretary (2024)

- Chair, Strategic Planning Com.

- RDP Committee

(2nd term) - (6/26)

Continuous Years of Service - 3 yrs.

Ed McDonough - RDP Committee

- Governance Committee

(3"" Term)-(6/2S)

Continuous Years of Service - 7 yrs.

Rick Plante Vice Chair (2019)

- Chair, Facilities Committee

- Chair, Executive Committee

- RDP Committee

- Finance Committee

(4th term) - (6/26)

Continuous Years of Service - 9 yrs".

Revised 10-25-24
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Henry J. Och MBA

Executive Summary
20+ years of healthcare management experience in Federally Qualified Community Health Centers

Experience working with and supporting underserved'^d refugee populations
Proven and nationally recognized public health leader

Strong background in healthcare expansion projects and project management
Experience with new service design and implementation

Experienced grant writer for federal, state and private programs

Professional Experience

President and Chief Executive Officer 2022-Present
Harbor Care Nashua, NH
I lead the organization's strategic initiatives and community relations efforts. As CEO, I am responsible for
setting the strategic direction and vision for the organization. In collaboration with the board of directors, I lead
the management team in carrying out objectives as established in Harbor Care's strategic plan. Key duties
include;

■  Lead a team of experienced health and human services executives

■  Lead donor engagement efforts

■  Establish a shared vision for success across all service lines

■  Work with community partners to establish a continuum of care to benefit the people of Greater
Nashua and the state of New Hampshire

■  Maintain a positive and inclusive workplace culture

■  Maintain the financial health of the organization

Chief Operations Officer 2020-2022
Harbor Care Nashua, NH

I  led the continued transformation of Harbor Care's service delivery model to provide integrated and innovative
patient services across the state of New Hampshire. I oversaw the day-to-day operations of all service lines.
This includes a Health Care for the Homeless Program with a 340B pharmacy, a residential addiction treatment
facility, several group homes, housing and home health programs and programs designed to provide care for
Veterans in the state of New Hampshire. Key accomplishments and activities include:

•  Designated as the COVID-19 Incident Commander for the organization managing all facets of testing and
vaccination efforts

■  Implemented many systems to support the ongoing day to day operations of Harbor Care
■  Developed a framework plan to end Chronic Homelessness in Nashua which has resulted in housing over

100 households in a two-year period
■  Implemented a structured "Annual Operations Plan" which coordinates all of Harbor Care's activities
■  Re-established the dental program and mobile clinic within the FQHC
■  Led the FQHC to achieve Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) recognition
■  Led the FQHC to a HRSA Operational Site Visit with no findings
■  Contributed to the organization's development efforts by engaging key donors and cultivating

relationships

■  Built and maintained collaborations and broad networks with local, regional, and state partners to
advance Harbor Care's mission

Page 1 of 5
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Contributed to the writing of many grants which enhanced services and technology infrastructure
I represented the organization at local, state and federal levels

Chief Operations Officer/Chief Information Officer

Lowell Community Health Center
2013-2020

Lowell, MA

Directly supervised a wide array of clinical and administrative departments including primary and specialty care,
healthJnformation, information technology (IT), information systems, centralized call center, patient service
center and facilities management. I was responsible for the development and implementation of strategic
objectives to meet the needs of our patients and organizational goals. I have represented the health center at
the local, state and national levels.

Designed Lowell CMC's operations management model which was recognized by the US Health
Resources Services Administration as a national best practice
Launched a state-of-the-art eye care center with clinical and retail optical services in collaboration with

the New England College of Optometry

Launched a new dental clinic comprised of 16 dental exam rooms

Led a $26 million clinic expansion project adding 65,000 square feet of clinic space to the health center
Led the health center's US Health Resources Services Administration operational requirements
readiness which resulted in a perfect 19/19 site visit compliance score in 2017
Led the organization's Joint Commission readiness efforts which resulted in re-accreditation and Joint

Commission Patient Centered Medical Home (PCMH) recognition in 2015
Partnered with the Chief Medical Officer to expand services to include specialty care comprised of
podiatry, neurology and dermatology

Implemented process improvements resulting in a 15% reduction in clinic visit cycle times thereby
Improving the patient experience

Directly involved in federal, state and private grant development efforts which have brought Lowell CHC
nearly $3 million in grant funding since 2009
Led a $1 million construction project in collaboration with Lowell General Hospital which resulted in
onsite lab, ultrasound, mammography and radiology services
Participated in the implementation of the Wellforce Accountable Care Organization and supported the
launch of the Lowell Behavioral Health Community Partners program
Participated In donor cultivation and engagement in support of the health center's capital campaign and
annual fund

Coached, mentored and led multidiscipllnary personnel and teams to achieve multiple objectives within
the health center's strategic plan

Developed the organization's information technology strategic plan

Chief (nformatlon Officer/Director of Operations
Lowell Community Health Center

2005-2020

Lowell, MA

Directed the strategic planning and implementation of enterprise systems in support of health center operations
to improve cost effectiveness, service quality, and overall patient care. Responsible for all aspects of the
organization's information technology infrastructure and information systems, health information and facilities
management departments. Designated project rrianager for many cross functional projects.

•  Project manager for the organization's $42 million construction project and expansion effort which
included consolidation of most existing sites as well as the addition of a 340B pharmacy program

■  Project manager for a $1 million clinic expansion initiative to support Lowell CMC's Metta Health Center
■  Project manager for the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services "Meaningful Use" project which has

generated nearly $1 million in Incentive payments

Page 2 of 5
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■  Collaborated with the Chief of Quality and other clinical leaders to pursue and obtain the National

Committee for Quality Assurance's PCMH Level III recognition

■  Successfully led the organization's electronic health record implementation project

■  Implemented effective patient flow improvements such as a centralized patient call center, streamlined

medical record management processes and patient registration processes

■  Member of the Massachusetts eHealth Institute's Legal and Privacy Workgroup which supported the

development of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts' statewide health information exchange (Mass

Hlway)

■  Designated as the organization's HIPAA privacy officer, information security officer and compliance

officer

Adjunct Professor 2010-2015

University of Massachusetts Lowell, MA

Provide classroom instruction for graduate students in the Health Informatics and Health Management

programs within the University of Massachusetts'College of Health Sciences. _ '

■  Developed and instructed the "Project Management in Healthcare" graduate course

■  Developed and instructed the "Electronic Health Record (EHR) Systems" graduate course

■  Worked with faculty staff and a medical record software vendor to provide a hosted EHR to the

University for instruction purposes

Director of Information Technology 2003-2005

Information Technology Coordinator 1999-2003

Lowell Community Health Center Lowell, MA

Responsible for the execution of all short- and long-term IT strategies. Managed all facets of day to day

operations for the Information Systems and Information Technology departments.

■  Effective project manager for many successful IT projects such as the migration to a new practice

management system, development of a various web-based tracking applications and numerous system

platform upgrades and migrations

■  Trained and managed a qualified team of IT specialists

■  Authored and Implemented all current policies and procedures relevant to information technology and

information security

■  Led the organization's HIPAA Privacy and Security rule compliance efforts

Material Testing Laboratory Coordinator 1997-1999

Joan Automotive Industries / Joan Fabrics Lowell, MA

Applications Developer 1996-1997

HB Fuller Corporation Wilmington, MA

Page 3 of 5
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Education

William James College Expected 2026
Doctorate in Leadership Psychology (PsyD)

The University of Massachusetts at Lowell Completed 2021
Master's in Business Administration, concentration Healthcare Management

Harvard University Completed 2006
Master's in Liberal Arts in extension studies, concentration in Information Management Systems

The University of Massachusetts at Lowell Completed 2000
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, concentration in Management Information Systems

Certifications and Awards

Project Management Professional (PMP) - 2010

Certified Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) - 2004
Milken Institute School of Public Health at George Washington University's Emerging Leader Award - 2015
Massachusetts League of Community Health Centers Employee of the Year Award - 2015

Professional Associations, Board and Volunteer Experience

■  Board Member and Treasurer - ACT Lawrence, a community development corporation, Lawrence, MA
■  Board Member-Family Services of the Merrimack Valley, Lawrence, MA

■  Board Member - The Boys and Girls Club of Greater Lowell, MA
■  Member - American Public Health Association

■  Mernber - American College of Healthcare Executives

■  Member-International lnformation System Security Certification Consortium

■  Member - Project Management Institute

■  Member - Association of Latino Professionals for America

■  Past Member - Massachusetts Region 3 Health and Medical Coordinating Coalition Governing Board
(Ambulatory Care Lead)

■  Past Member - Fortaleza Advocacy group - working on bridging the academic achievement gap for Latino
youth in the Lowell Public School system

■  Past Lead - Coach for Lowell CHC's staff running group

Page 4 of 5
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Military Experience

Commissioned Infantry officer in the Massachusetts Army National Guard with a current rank of Lieutenant Colonel.

Currently serving on the Joint Staff of the Joint Force Headquarters. I have been a member of several response teams
providing support to citizens of the Commonwealth In six emergency situations.

Overseas Military Deployments:

Operations Officer, ISAF Headquarters, Afghanistan 2014

•  Awarded the Defense Meritorious Service Medal for contributions to the transition of combat

operatioris from NATO coalition forces to Afghan security forces
■  Awarded the Slovakian Minister of Defense Medal for support efforts to the Slovakian Military

Infantry Platoon Leader, 182"'' Infantry Regiment, Kosovo 2006-2007
■  Awarded the Army Commendation Medal for joint human trafficking interdiction operations with the

Kosovo Police Services

■  Awarded the German.Armed Forces Schiitzenschnur (Silver) Badge

- - Other Skills

Native language proficiency in written and spoken Spanish

(References available upon request]
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William E. Belecz Manchester. NH 03101

Executive Summary

Over 25 years of executive e)^rience overseeing a wide range of functional areas with a strong
background in strategic planning, business development, finance, information systems and technology,
and operations.

Employment Historv

HARBOR Care, INC.
Chief Operating Officer
2023 - Present

Reporting to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), leads all day-to-day operations of one of New
Hampshire's largest health and human services organization:

•  Ensures the organization meets all outcomes and regulations for various federal, state, and local
contracts, government/foundation grants, and audits.

•  In consultation with die CEO, develops and implements operational plans, monitors progress; and
adjust plans as necessary to achieve objectives.

•  Oversee the following functional areas:
o  Federally Qualified Health Center (FQHC) program
o  Home Health Agency
o Housing
o Military Veteran Service
o  Facilities

REGIONAL HEALTH REACH

Chief Executive Officer

2021 - 2023

•  Directs the strategic, operational, personnel, and budgetary aspects of the Federally Qualified
Health Center Healthcare for the Homeless program, including a mobile medical unit and the
street medicine program

•  Provides leadership, vision, and direction for the FQHC and develops organizational strategy in
cooperationwith the Board of Directors (BOD)

•  Implements policies approved by the BOD and seeks opportunities to develop projects and
partnerships that further the organizational mission

•  Identifies community needs, particularly for homeless populations. Establish and maintain positive
relationships with existing and potential funding sources

•  Successfully manages the HRSA grant and other grants to meet all reporting, financial, and
regulatory requirements

•  Identifies funding opportunities and helps write successful proposals to finance new strategies
and maintain current programs

•  Maintains compliance with financial, operational, quality, and regulatory govemance
•  Maintains positive working relationship with the Health Resources and Services Administration '

Project Officer
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REGIONAL HEALTH REACH j REGIONAL HEALTH SERVICES
Executive Director

2021 -2023

•  Directs the strategic, operational, personnel, and budgetary aspects of the Federally Qualified
Health Centers (FQHC), including Healthcare for the Homeless, School Based Healthcare, and a
25 site, 90K patient subrecipient

•  Provides leadership, vision, and direction for the FQHCs and develops organizational strategy in
cooperation with the Board of Directors (BOD)

•  Implements policies approved by the BOD and seeks opportunities to develop projects and
partnerships that further the organizational mission

•  Identifies community needs, particularly for homeless populations. Establish and maintain positive
relationships with existing and potential funding sources

•  Successfully manages the HRSA grant and other grants to meet all reporting, financial, and
regulatory requirements

•  Identifies funding opportunities and helps write successful proposals to finance new strategies
and maintain current programs

•  Maintains compliance with financial, operational, quality, and regulatory governance
•  Maintains positive working relationship with the Health Resources and Services Administration

Project Officer
•  Oversees the managernent and growth of the Health System's Empire State Support Housing

Initiative (ESSHI)
•  Oversees the Health Systems' National Health Service Corps program and Multicultural Health

Center project

TRILLIUM HEALTH

Senior Vice President, Programs and Services, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Information Officer
2015-2021

Directed overall operations, organizational development, sexual health, community health support
services (food, housing, and transportation), harm reduction/syringe exchange, government relations and
advocacy, grant office, information systems and technology, facilities, security, project management, and
work process improvement.

•  Recipient of the Rochester Business Journal's 2020 and 2021 Health Care Heroes - COVID-19
Heroes award

•  Successfully prepared the organization for becoming a Federally Qualified Health Center, achieving
designation in August 2016

•  Oversaw the acquisition and renovation of a 26,000 square foot facility to house newly acquired
women's health and pediatrics practices and the opening of a new pharmacy-

•  Co-led the acquisition of The MOCHA Center (Men of Color Health Awareness - focusing on
improving the health of men having sex \Mth men) and Pathway Pediatrics

•  Rolled out the organizations first Mobile Access Clinic and implemented many patient-centric
processes and tools including telemedicine, a patient portal, automated appointment reminders, a call
center, an online self-scheduling system, and automated setf-check-ln including the use of biometrics
and kiosks

•  Co-led a tele-medicine initiative expanding the organization's HIV, Hepatitis C, and PrEP services,
key components of New York State's plan to end the AIDS epidemic

•  Led the organization's emergency management function including the pandemic response,
transitioning to 100% remote capability within two weeks, establishing a COVID testing center and
vaccination program, and introducing pharmacy curbside and at-home services

•  Restructured the marketing department, introducing a personal relationship marketing campaign and
increasing patient census over 20% year over year
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Worked with the CEO and VP of Human resources in developing the organizations first workplace
inclusiveness and diversity initiative
Achieved designation by the National Association of Community Health Centers as an Advocacy
Center of Excellence

Achieved recognition as a leader in LGBTQ healthcare equality by the Human Rights Campaign five
•consecutive years
Oversaw the development of the organizations KPI Dashboard and cost accounting system
Restructured the IT function into infrastructure, Informatics, and business intelligence teams and
implemented a help desk process
Upgraded and improved the organization's virtual environment and storage area network, improving
reliability and scalability
Served as Information Security Officer and established the foundation of the organizations cyber-
security program

UNIVERSITY OF ROCHESTER MEDICAL CENTER
Vice President Operations and Business Analysis, Chief Information Officer
2013-2015

As a member of the Visiting Nurse Service Executive Team reporting to the CEO, participated in strategic
planning, new business development, operating and capital budgeting, contracting, development, and
work process improvement; supported the agency's Patient Family Centered Care and Employee
Satisfaction initiatives; served on organization boards and collaborated with community partners.

Directed the overall operations of Visiting Nurse Signature Care, a licensed home care services

agency (LHCSA) of Visiting Nurse Service, including home health aide, private duty nursing, and
managed long-term care.

Directed the Information Systems & Technologv function; directed staff; developed and
implemented telecommunications and information systems strategies; oversaw the implementation
of new technology and the maintenance and support of enterprise systems; established standards;
prepared budgets and controlled expenses.

Directed the overall operations of the Meals On Wheels program including the coordination of meal
preparation and delivery, volunteer services, development and marketing, budgeting, and grant
management.

Directed Environmental Services including building operations and maintenance, food vending
services, copy center services, courier service, and employee security escort services; directed

employee safety Initiatives; developed and maintained agency-wide emergency preparedness plans.

UNIVERSITY OF ROCHESTER MEDICAL CENTER
Vice President Information Systems and Technology
2000-2013

Directed the Information Systems & Technology function; directed staff; developed and
implemented telecommunications and information systems strategies; oversaw the implementation
of new technology and the maintenance and support of enterprise systems; established standards;
prepared budgets and controlled expenses; served as HIPAA Security Officer.
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Directed the overall operations of the Meals On Wheels program including the coordination of meal
preparation and delivery, volunteer services, development and marketing, budgeting, and grant
management.

Directed Environmental Services including building operations and maintenance, food vending
services, copy center services, courier service, and employee security escort services; directed

employee safety Initiatives; developed and maintained agency-wide emergency preparedness plans.

As Project Director for the School of Medicine and Dentistrv. directed and supported the

implementation of an integrated registration, scheduling, billing and clinical dental information

system for the University of Rochester Medical Center and Eastman Institute of Oral Health.

Served as project manager for establishing the Managed Long Term Care program, a new program
and revenue stream ifor VNS Signature Care
Worked with the executive team in developing and implementing a pay-per-visit compensation plan

for professional visiting staff.

Co-chaired the Transition Coaching Macmilian Matrix and program development.

Assisted in transitioning the agency from fee-for-service to episodic reimbursement for both

Medicare and Medicaid.

Directed the implementation of a disease management telehealth program.

Developed and implemented a wound care pilot utilizing digital cameras.

Led agency-wide employee recruitment and retention initiatives as Chair of the People Pillar.

Successfully negotiated {as part of a team) the acquisition of FLVNS.

Led many corporate work process improvement initiatives using tools such as Total Quality

Management, Six Sigma and McMillan Matrix

Served as the HIPPA Security Official and established and enforced HIPAA information security and

privacy policies and standards.

Successfully implemented many new information systems including a laptop-based clinical

information system, dental electronic health system. Human Resources & Payroll systems, and

Home Health Aide scheduling and billing systems.

Migrated the agency IT infrastructure to a virtual environment with increased redundancy and

improved performance.

Rebranded Meals On Wheels and worked with Dixon SchwabI in organizing the Meals On Wheels

50''* anniversary fund raising gala.
Developed the Meals On Wheels "Premier Program" strategic plan and directed initiatives that led

to increased funding, program awareness and growth, and achieved MOWAA Magnet Accreditation

VISITING NURSE SERVICE

Manager, Information Technology & Network Services
1993-2000

Established, planned, and administered the overall policies and goals for the Information Technology
and Network Services department. Responsible for the administration of all voice and data network
services, in a multi-platform, multi-site. 400-user environment (Novell. NT. UNIX). Managed the .
agency's telecommunications systems, including PBX's. voice mail, cellular and pager systems, and
local/long distance network.
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•  Developed an interactive voice response system to capture Home Health Aide visit data,
eliminating the need for daily visit sheets, and worked with vendors to create interfaces to the
billing and payroll systems.

•  Co-championed a Telemedicine pilot conducted in cooperation with American Teiecare and
Kodak.

•  Led the Technology Team as part of the agency's Strategic Design Initiative, an effort to
reorganize the company into Service Delivery Units.

•  Provided technical leadership in the acquisition of an infusion therapy pharmacy, including the
implementation of a new pharmacy billing and information system.

•  Managed the agency's Y2K preparedness team and ensured all systems and programs were year
2000 compliant.

. • Developed and maintained corporate contingency and disaster recovery plans.
•  Designed and implemented various database applications for agency departments.
•  Developed and maintained corporate Internet Web site.

VISITING NURSE SERVICE
Information Systems Coordinator~(1990 - 1993)
1990-1993

•  Acted as the IS Project Manager for moving the company to a new facility and expanding into a
second facility a year later. Responsibilities included developing voice and data network
specifications.

•  Developed, maintained, and supported database applications in Dbase III for agency departments.
•  Generated and distributed agency management reports utilizing Lotus and UNIX scripts.
•  Provided end-user software and hardware support to the agency's UNIX system users.

Core Proficiencies

Advocacy and Government Relations - Information Security
Acquisitions and Mergers - Innovation
Budgeting - Marketing
Consumer Experience - New Business Development
Dental - Operations
Emergency Preparedness - Pharmacy 340B
Environmental Services/Facilities - Project Management
Finance - Safety and Security
Grant Management - Strategic Planning
Healthcare, Homecare, and Hospice -Telehealth
Information Systems & Technology - Work Process Improvement

Education

Simon School of Business, University of Rochester, Rochester, NY
Master of Business Administration

Rochester Institute of Technology, Rochester, NY
Master of Science, Information Technology

State University of New York at Plattsburgh; Plattsburgh, NY
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Bachelor of Science, Computer Science, Business minor

Healthcare Business Academy, NorthStar Network
Fellow

Villanova University
Certificate in Six Sigma Black Belt and Lean Six Sigma

National Association of Community Health Centers (NACHC)
Certificate in Advocacy

Professional Affiliations

Current

•  National Healthcare for the Homeless Council

•  International Street Medicine Institute

•  Member, Health Information Management Society (HIMS)
•  Chair, Corn Hill Arts Festival

Past

Board of Directors

o  NY Statewide Health Center Controlled Network (NYS-HCCN), Former Board Chair
Member, Community Health Center Association of NYS (CHCANYS)

o  Member, Membership Committee
o Member, Technology Committee
o Member, Health Information Technology & Quality Insurance Committee
o Member, Tele-Medicine Task Force

Member, National Association of Community Health Centers (NACHC)
o  Member, Membership Committee
o Member, LGBTQ Health Task Force

Board of Directors, Finger Lakes Visiting Nurse Service of Ontario County
o Chair, Professional Advisory Committee

Board of Directors, The Advocacy Center
o Member, Executive Committee
o  Treasurer, Finance Committee
o Member, Technology Committee '
o Chair, Development Committee

Board of Directors, Mount Hope Family Center
Member, Finance Committee, Out Alliance

Member. FLPPS Monroe County NOCN
Member, Anthony Jordan HEAL17 Executive Steering Committee
Member, Greater Rochester Home Health Network (GRHHN) Operations Sub-Committee
Member, McKesson Horizon Homecare Advisory Committee
Member, National Association for Home Care (NAHC)
Member, Meals On Wheels Association of America (MOWAA)
Member, VNAA IT Leaders Group
Member, Digital Rochester
Volunteer, Meals On Wheels

Rochester RHIO transition of care discharge planning workgroup
Volunteer, Habitat for Humanity
Co-Chair, Com Hill Holiday House Tour
Assistant Director, Corn Hill Arts Festival
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Board of Directors, Corn Hill Neighbors Association
o  Treasurer

o Member, Corn Hill Arts Festival Management Committee
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Ana Pancine. MBA
Nashua, NH

Summary

Results-driven finance executive possessing progressive experience managing finance and
accounting functions. Experienced with financial operations, accounting, reporting, asset,
liability and balance sheet management, forecasting, controls, operational efficiencies, and
financial analysis. Versatile leader promoting accountability and integrity, dedicated to more
efficient operations through innovation and technology. Implements system and management
strategies to increase transparency, efficiency, and accurate deliverables. Decisive and motivated
change agent actively seeking opportunities to lead positive change with integrity in an
innovative environment.

Professional Experience

Harbor Homes Inc. Nashua, NH November 2007 - Present

Chief Revenue Officer August 2018 - Present

•  Supervise and manage the Business/Finance Office team composed of 15 staff members,
performing duties such as A/R, A/P, Staff Accountant, Senior Staff Accountant,

Credentialing, Medicare/Medicaid/private/self-pay billing.

• Manage the overall strategy and optimization of revenue cycle operations, systems, policies
and procedures to apply an improvement to charges, claims, payments, collections, and A/R,
denials, and reporting of results and analysis.

•  Solicited and successfully developed budget proposals for grant applications securing

governmental funds to support operations and maintaining consistent service delivery.

•  Responsible for reviewing and negotiating financial terms for federal and state contracts.

• Accountable for driving better integration and alignment between all revenue-related
functions. Including creating revenue model development, analysis and changes to maximize
revenue.

• Monitor the effectiveness of collection efforts and ensure that insurance billings are current
within the established period specified in the department policy. Manage all other revenue
pipelines of each revenue stream to determine in advance the level of risk to obtaining
desired goals and what adjustments should ultimately be implemented.

• Monitor timeliness and effectiveness of billing department activities, ensuring that
outstanding patient accounts and accounts receivables are no more than the agreed-upon limit

and that bad debt is within the budgeted target.

• Manage program revenue by reviewing and tracking all contracts on a monthly basis, and
ensure all funds are fully invoiced/ billed accordingly to funders by contract/grant deadline.

• Work closely with the CFO and other C_suite and executive leaders to continually improve
the alignment of each functional group to support the business development organizational
structure, legal, finance, compensation, hiring and selection criteria, and rewards and
recognition.
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• Assist the CFO in managing and implementing financial performance measures that support
the PSL's strategic directions.

• Work closely with each PSL program manager to develop a goal to meet budget
responsibilities to ensure ongoing financial viability for programs.

•' Work closely with the Compliance Officer or designee to prepare and revise the fiscal
operations procedures manual and ensure implementation of these.

• Work closely with the Grants and Strategy department to develop new lines of business and
grow existing lines of business. This includes the development of new budgets, forecasting,
and trend analysis.

•  Internal and external reports for State & Federal projects.
•  Provide support to CFO on all special projects; serve as back up for this position.
•  Prepare complex financial statements, internal/annual reports for planning and oversight of

each program within an organization

Various November2007-August 2018

• Assist with budget development for 92 cost centers and 8 affiliated agencies with annual
expenses and revenue over $40m

•  Prepare operational and variance analysis for financial presentations based on GAAP,
organization. State and Federal guidelines.

• Maintain accurate accounts including cash, inventory, prepaid, fixed assets, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and line of credit transactions.

•  Chair of the Greater Nashua Continuum Care (GNCOC) and GNCOC Board of Directors,
composed of representatives from the Federal, State, and City Governments, housing
program directors, local hospital staff, social services agencies, financial institutions, private
sector, and religious institutions.

•  Established a Safety Committee for the PSL agencies which results in a reduction of S50K in
WC premiums within one year.

•  Developed Safety policies and procedures for and guidance of staff on requirements
established by insurance companies and flinders.

•  Created and established the financial policies and procedure manual for the organization
• Knowledge of planning techniques, testing and sampling methods involved in conducting

audits.

•  Extensive experience with Financial Statements audits, reviews, compilations, and audits for
Governmental organizations (A-133).

• Managed annual external audit resulting in no findings and no management comments on A-
133 audits.

•  Prepare all budgets for the Development Department to be submitted for competitive State,
Federal and Local grant applications.

• Review all financial requirements and financial accuracy for new and renewed contracts
•  Prepare, review and update all Finance/Accounting policies and procedures to ensure

compliance with new Federal regulations.
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Hewlett-Packard Various locations August 2001 - November 2007

Business Analyst February 2004 - November 2007

Accountable for all metric reports for the PER Event team contracts on a monthly basis..
Responsible for revenue recognition for two US districts, Latin America and Canada.

Accountable to update, present and distribute all reports related to the department, which
included financial reports, risk reports, contract metric reports.

Responsible for all billing for Latin America and prepared currency translation reporting.
Managed ten cost centers with annual expenses of $9m and revenue of $ 18m.

Variance reporting monthly for +/-1 % of forecasted to report to senior management.

Maintained global reporting of 200 employees with emphasis on geographic alignment,
individual line counts, and organizational charts for account utilization and resource mapping

Main contact for all customers and service providers located in the Latin America territory.

Provided Financial Support for account closing.

Quality Controller/ System Support Admin June 2003 - February 2004
Main contact between administrators and system support to prioritize technical errors.

Responsible for weekly, monthly and quarterly quality review reporting, geography reports

Maintain all employee-related spreadsheets updated.

Managed quality review reports ensuring policies and procedures are being followed.

Mentored new hires and provided support for team members with problem-solving.

*er Event Administrator August 2001,-June 2003

Responsible for billing revenue.

Maintenance of contracts, including service charges and billing.

Data Entry

Revenue booking and customer assistance for Latin America/Caribbean territory.

Assistance and service provided for all customer located in the Latin
America/Caribbean/Europe territory

Education

Southern NH University
MBA, graduated with Honors
Major: Finance

2015-2017

Hesser College
BS, Magna Com Laude (GPA: 3.9/4.0)
Majors: Finance
Minor: Accounting

2001 -2005
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Other Skills

Trained Medical Interpreter: Portuguese & Spanish 2010
Trained Translator: Portuguese

Skilled USCIS Interpreter
Computer: Windows, Microsoft Office, SIFT -Financial Database, Fundware/F9
Finance related: PEARS/CHAMP/WFM, NCAS/SAP, ABILA - MIP
Language: Fluent Portuguese, Proficient Spanish
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Erin Sawicki, MPH
Education

Master of Public Health, Community Health Education concentration 2004 - 2006
University of Massachusetts, Amherst

Bachelor of Arts, Anthropology major 2000 - 2004
University of Vermont, Burlington

Experience
Harbor Care

Compliance Officer 202! -present
• Oversee agency Quality Improvement Plan Compliance Plan, including analysis and response to
compliance and quality activities,and trends across the agency

• Develop process to ensure programs are prepared for external site visits, audits, and accreditations
• Chair the QA/I Council and Compliance Committee to oversee quality and compliance initiatives
throughout the organization

• Serve as Project Director or QI Specialist on federal grants, incl. SAMHSA, HRSA, DOL
• Collaborate with external grant evaluators to ensure grant evaluations are aligned with funder requirements,

as well as agency and community needs
• Oversee grant start up, monitoring, and close out procedures across the agency
• Oversee implementation of evidence-based practices, including fidelity reviews across the agency

Grants Manager 2019 - 2021
• Serve as Project Director or QI Specialist on federal grants, incl. SAMHSA, HRSA, DOL
• Implement internal grant monitoring procedures to facilitate quality performance outcomes
• Analyze grant and program performance, implementing corrective action when necessary
• Prep and review sponsor/internal financial and programmatic reports

Independent Consultant 2016-2019
Barker Bi-Coaslal Health Consultants, Inc.

•  Wrote evaluation reports to aid in strategic planning at the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation
•  Collaborated with stakeholders at all levels to gather feedback and identify opportunities for growth

Gutman Research Associates

•  Collected and analyzed data to inform funding decisions for the VOICES Evaluation at the Robert
Wood Johnson Foundation

•  Managed research associates in evaluation of policy implementation
Child and Family Services

•  Drafted and edited grant applications, budgets, and progress reports
•  Collaborated with donors and development team to develop grant application strategies

Planned Parenthood of Northern New England

Site Manager 2013 - 2016
• Tracked and evaluated outcome data to inform strategic planning and grant deliverables
• Oversaw operations to ensure compliance for audits and performance improvement
• Led QI and performance measurement initiatives in the health center
• Maintained financial records, reconciled expenditures, and managed health center budget

Project Protection. Children's Hospital Boston

HIV Program Manager 2010 - 2013
• Developed, implemented, and managed evidence-based work plan from pre to post-award
• Communicated with funders/auditors to ensure grant deliverables were met and exceeded
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Office of the Global AIDS Coordinator. U.S. State Department
Program Support Officer 2009-2010
• Managed technical review and balanced budgets of HIV/AIDS Country Operational Plans
• Collaborated with U.S. government team in Rwanda to resolve program issues

United States Peace Corps
District AIDS Coordinator Volunteer 2007-2009

• Conducted program development, community organizing and needs assessment, in 23 villages
• Collaborated with local partners to implement District Multisectoral HIV/AIDS Plan

Publications

Sawicki E, Barker DC, Guiman MA, Caughlan I, Yochelson M, Grob G. A Menu to Evaluate Factors Influencing Implementation of
Obesity Prevention Early Care and Education Regulations. Journal of Public Health Management and Practice. 2018:1.

doi:l0.l097/phh.0000000000000796!

Awards: 2018 American Evaluation Association Outstanding Evaluation
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Cheryle Pacapelli

Profile

Twenty + years of nonprofit and program management experience; including advocacy, community

organizing, education, and management at the local, state and federal level, for the development and

implementation, of peer to peer Recovery Support Services. Served as Co-Chair of the Recovery Task Force.
Developed and implemented: programs, trainings, activities, and community events for sustaining program

capacity, building coalitions and establishing best practice initiatives. Advanced Computer Proficiency:

. Microsoft Office Suite, SharePoint, GneDrive, Giftworks, iMAC, Recovery Data Platform, RecoveryLink-

Experience

2/17 - Present Harbor Care Nashua, NH

Project Director

This is an administrative position supporting the Peer Recovery Support Services (PRSS) Facilitating

Organizations (FO) contract to subcontract with Recovery Community Organizations (RCOs) in New

Hampshire.

Review existing work completed by BDAS and NH Center for Excellence to design a more formal readiness

scan of all known RCOs statewide

Analyze data and communicate with RCOs to determine willingness, ability and capacity to achieve Council

on Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support Services (CAPRSS) accreditation, provide Peer Recovery Support

Services (PRSS), open/operate a Recovery Center and adhere to CMS regulations during the readiness scan
Develop a formal procurement process that is fair and transparent to identify at least five RCOs to

participate in the first year of FO grant

Prioritize those RCOs most likely to participate in subsequent years

Within five days of procurement process completion, provide BDAS with a written determination of RCO

readiness

Work with NH Center for Excellence to engage the first "Community of Practice" meeting to assist with the

completion of readiness scan

Upon BDAS approval, arrange one on one visits with selected RCOs, including Board of Directors, staff,

volunteers, etc. to shadow day to day activities {CAPRSS also present)

Monitors subcontractors and assists with development of required policies and procedures

Assists subcontractors with the process of applying for and obtaining Medicaid billing status

Communicate regularly with subcontractors to review progress

Monitors the quality of all subcontractors and their progress, and completes required documents and

reports

Assists in the oversight and facilitation of training for all subcontractors

Manages the employment process, with staff scheduling, and in the provision of routine assessment of staff

performance

Utilizes computer application(s) or applicable technology for administrative tasks

Manages services and related budgetary concerns

Oversee HHI business processes and accounting related to subcontracts

7/15 -2/17 New Futures, Inc. Concord, NH

Community Engagement Director ^

Advocate for policies and financing that support a statewide system of community based recovery supports,

to ensure that all people in NH with SUD are able to access recovery supports;

Educate the public and policymakers regarding the nature and effectiveness of recovery supports;

Work with the newly created continuum of care facilitators in each public health region to ensure that

individual recovery supports and family supports are included in each region's comprehensive substance

misuse continuum of care;

Work with providers in designated Integrated Delivery Networks under the 1115 Demonstration Waiver

program to ensure that recovery supports are an integral part of innovative projects funded through the

waiver;
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Provide technical assistance to communities and organizations interested in developing and delivering
recovery supports;

Partner with Mew Futures Policy Director and the NH Providers Association to provide technical assistance

on enrollment and regulatory requirements to organizations and individuals Interested in billing third party
payers, including Medicaid, for peer and non-peer recovery supports;

Oversee expansion of family supports through DHHS System of Care grant;

Facilitate connections between SUD treatment providers, healthcare providers, drug courts, corrections
facilities and other institutions whose clients or patients are in need of recovery supports with recovery
community organizations; and,

Otherwise support the development of a statewide system of recovery supports as a full, accessible
component of the SUD continuum of care through advocacy on policy, technical assistance, relationship
development, education, and collaboration.
05/01 - 2019 Stepping Stone House Meriden, CT

Co-Owner

Operate 8 Recovery Houses with 60 male transitional living beds and 10 women's beds

Certified by Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services to provide housing and case management
services.

Coordinate with Access to Recovery and Recovery Support Program to secure housing and basic need

support for clients

Provide case management for clients, life skills, resumes, job search

Administer progress notes and a recovery plan for each individual.

8/14 - 7/15 HOPE for NH Recovery Concord, NH

Executive Director

Statewide Coordination of Recovery Movement

Public Education, Awareness and Advocacy

Deliver a variety of peer-based recovery support services; assist in start-up of Recovery Community Centers
Community Outreach and Resource Development

Collaborate with the Governor's Commission for Alcohol and other Drug Prevention, Treatment and
Recovery

12/11-10/12 CT. Community for Addiction Recovery Hartford, CT
Director Recovery Sen/ices

Recovery Coach Academy Management (RCA)

o  Administered promotion, marketing and sales of RCA; handling of logistics, RCA manual
sales, data tracking, recovery coach support,

o  Coordinated five CT Trainings held per year and 20 + out of state held per year over 1,000
Recovery Coaches trained

o  Trained 100 + trainers to bring RCA across the United States,

o Maintained website with RCA updates, and all training registrations online

o  Generated $200,000 in gross revenues

Recovery Technical Assistance Group Management

o  Promotion, marketing and sales of CCAR technical assistance products, including trainings,

technical assistance and paid speaking engagements,

o  Developed, implemented, and managed CCAR's web-based shopping site;

www.shoprecovery.com for national sales of all CCAR products, RCA trainings. Recovery
Housing Trainings, RCA manuals. Increasing CCAR revenue by 45% in the first year, v

o Originated national sales and logistics of CCAR's Technical Assistance Group. Managed

implementation and collaboration with contract sites. Best-practice programming includes:
Telephone Recovery Support, Volunteer Management, and Vocational Employment

Services. Increased organizational revenue by 45 % during my tenure.
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Annual Recovery Walks! Coordination

o  Designed and implemented the event; met target numbers; increased public awareness for
addiction recovery.

o  Collaborated with multiple state agencies and service providers for providing resources and
services to participants,

o  Over 2,000 in attendance and revenue of $14,000.

Annual Volunteer Recognition Dinner Coordination

o  Plan and implement the event, volunteers recognized.
o  Develop sponsorship for Volunteer Recognition Dinner, create invitations, and program,
o  300 Volunteers recognized for over 15,000 hours of volunteer service.

Data tracking and Analysis

o • Oversaw all tracking databases for bi-weekly reports, training and.event; engaged in •
quality improvement,

o  Generated reports for Executive Director, funders and Board of Directors

12/06-12/11 CT. Community for Addiction Recovery Hartford, CT

Director of Operations

Recovery Community Center Management

o  Oversaw the operations at three Recovery Community Centers with efficiency; ensured
adherence to prescribed structure, encouraged new programs,

o  Held 375 events with over 14,000 in attendance ,

o  Hosted 38 different recovery focused trainings, with over 1,700 participants
o  Implementation of Access to Recovery Services in Recovery Community Centers

Direct Supervision of five Full Time Staff

o  Volunteer Manager, Program Manager, Three Recovery Community Center Managers
o  Administered Annual performance reviews

Program Oversight - Telephone Recovery Support and Recovery Housing Program
o  Increased number of people called from 22 in 2005, to 1"945 in 2011.

o  CCAR volunteers made over 125,000 telephone calls resulting in 36,000 conversations with
about 4,500 people in recovery,

o  Originated and managed CCAR's Recovery Housing Program:

www.findrecoveryhousing.com. Built service to its current over 200 recovery houses listed
in 19 states status. Revenue is being generated from owners listing Recovery Houses.

Information Technology

o  ' Designed.and developed tracking systems for generating outcome-based reports and
evaluating services which resulted in increased funding and national attention,

o Managed all databases, maintained equipment, and assisted staff with technology needs
and training.
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10/04-12/06 CT. Community for Addiction Recovery Hartford, CT

Project Manager - Recovery Housing

Developed and maintained an inventory of Recovery Houses in CT

Provided community education on recovery housing, NIMBY issues

Marketed and delivered training "So, you want to open a Recovery^House"
Established Recovery Housing Coalition of CT, developed statewide standards for Recovery Houses.

Albertus Magnus New Haven, CT

Bachelors Degree - Business Management

Cum Laude, Tai Pi Phi National Honor Society

Certified Recovery Support Worker - 2018

Training

Racism of the Well-Intended

Suicide Prevention

HIV/HEP-C

Supervising a Peer Recovery Workforce

The Art and Science of Peer Assisted Recovery - Trainer

Ethical Considerations for Peer Assisted Recovery - Trainer

Certifications: CCAR Recovery Coach Academy Trainer

CCAR Ethics for Recovery Support Worker Trainer

National MH First Aid Trainer

Pastoral Counseling

Mental Health and Addiction Services: DMHAS Successfully Housing Persons with Substance Use Issues

safeTALK Suicide Alertness for Everyone

Human Resource Development: Understanding Sexual Harassment
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NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name: Harbor Care

NAME JOB TITLE

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS

CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Henry Och President & CEO $0.00 $284,350.00

William Belecz Chief Operating Officer $0.00 $230,984.00

Ana Panclne Chief Financial Officer $21,901.90 $219,019.00

Erin Sawicki Compliance Officer $2,054.79 $164,383.00

Cheryle Pacapelli Project/Program Director $129,970.00 $129,970.00
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STATE OF NEW W 3;23 ffcU

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAI^ SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEMAVIORAL HEALTH

Lirt A. W«nr IW PLI^SANT STREET, CONOORD. NH 03301. '
ConnhsSoier ■ 603-27i-9^ I-S0&452-3345 CxC 9544

Fax: 603-27m332 TOO Ac^: 1^00-73^29^ ' www.dHit&Db.MV
KilJiSFox . • • • •
pirtetor

August.29..2023\ ,
J^is'Excellency, Governor Christopher t. Sununu *
ard the Honorable Council

•State House ^
Condord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION.

r  ' Authorize thepepartment of Health ahdHurnan,Services,,Dlvisiph for Behavioral Health,
to enter Jrito."an*ambndmertt to an existing contract with. Harbor^Homes, 'Inc:

..Nashua, NH, to continue to pro^de Fadlitating Organization services and program supporll^^
Recovery-Community drgahiz^ons,^ .Recovery Centers, by exercising a contract-rehevyaj
option by-e)rtending^^the completion date from Septembei- 30,, 2023 to Jur^ 30,-2625 !and
irtcreasjrig the pric»; limitation; by $13,624,000 from $8,400,0k)p -to.-$22,024,000, effective
September 30. :262"3; upon Goyemor and Council approval. 45.09%'Fedet^al Funds. l6;67 '%
General funds-^.24% Other funds (Governor Commission arid OpIoid Abatemerit trijst):

ilTie original contract y^epproved by Governor and .CpuncI) oii March 23,2022, itern.#33
and. most recently pmehded with Governor and Councirapproval ohlD8C8rhber;21, '20221 item
#26. " '

- > . f

Fur^s^are available iii the fpllowfrig acMunts for Slate Fiscal Year8:2024 and 2025,
the authority lb-adjust budget line iterns withiri, the price limitatlori and encurnbrarices betwen
;state-fisca| years thrpugh^the Budget Ofnce, if iieeded and Justltied;

See attached .fiscal details.

r  " EXPLANATION

iihe purpose of-this request is for the Coritractdr to continue-.tb malntein arid\e)^^
infrastrudure as >wlf«8 provide program support to the existing ty^lve (.12) RecoveVQprnmunily
■Organizations, and'the Recovery Cpmrnunrt^^ Ceriters providing PeerRe^^ Sefvibes:
across New Harripshlre'. .One'(1) Recovery bommuhlty Center ifi Northern Cops'C6ur^,-^ll be
added; bringliig the total to 20:recovery ceriters. Outreach and supplies will alsP be prbrided to
individuals experiencing homelessness. Additionally, continued, capacity, deyelpprherit'suppb
and ensuring adherence tothd New Hampshire Recovery Community Organiiatlpn Standards df
Exceljenc® will te rriairitaihed; liaStly. the Department, at the direction-pf the Opipid Akwt^^^
Cbmrijissioh, (s^allocating funding to support the'fadlitating prganizbtion wprk of the CpntradPr
while.a review of suslaihable funding is conducted. > • ■

Approwmately. 61.500 peer recovery support services including recovery. t^achirig.-
telephone recovery support, and in-center activities, are prpvlded annually.

The Cpntiactof will continue.serving individuals In NH.v^p.are 18 years.of age^and older,
their famjliCT and caregiyers; who are seeking to gain, hialntairi; or enhance their recovery from
substa'nce misuse. The Contraclbr will ooritinue to serve as the fadlilating Qi^anizalioh fortKe
Stale's ■Recpyery Comrhunlty Organizations, as well as provide' oversigh! and support to the
rewvery, cdrrimunlty.'centere Faciiitatirig Organization services;inciude;p>pject-rhanagement,;
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His ExoeQency. Governor Chftstophef T. Sununu
and the Honorable Coundi

Pe8e2of2
i*. *

'  "V-.

training, technical assjstartce. billing functions, compliance monitoring, quality improvement
assistance, data collection, and monitoring outcome measures.

The Department wilt continue to monitor services through the review of monthly, quarteriy.
and annual reports, to .ensure:

•  Indiyiduals in recovery from substance use concerns, Including oplpld and/or
stimulant use disorders, receive comprehensive recovery support services;

Certified Recovery Support ̂ Worlters on staff at NH Recovery Community
-  Organizations receive supervision as required by the NH Board of Licensing for

Alcohol and Other Drug Use Professionals; ar^d

•  Individuals receiving recovery coaching demonstrate significant improvement,
statistically, in development of physical, mental, social, and cultural assets that
support maintenance of recovery.

As referenced in Exhlbh A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions of the original
agreement, the parties have ttie option to' extend the agreement fqr up to five (5) years and six
(6) months, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
' parties and Governor and Council approval. The Department Is exercising its option to renew

services for one (1) year and nine (9) rnonths of the four (4) years and nine (9) months available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, access to community-based
Peer Recovery Support Services will be limited, which may result in individuals accessing
additional intensive: ̂treatment services, and >ome may continue substance um leading to
negative, medical, legal, and child welfare consequences for themselves, their families, and NH
communities. Additionally, the Department's strategy^ to address substance misuse and
substance use dlsor^rs may be negatively Impacted, with fewer individuals gairiing and
maintaining recovery.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.788, FAINs Tt083326,
71085759. and TBD. and^ Assistance Listing Number 93.959. FAINs TI083464. TI084659,

■  71083509, and B08T1085821. ^

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer available, additional
General Funds will hot be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

—'fL.

Lori A. Weaver

Commissioner-

The DeporUiiint «f fftaflh ond Humon S^rviett'Mitshn it to}oin comoitmi^ ond/aniUies
in prowding opportunllUs for ciliten* to oeltitiM health and independtnet.



(6-9S-92-9M5IO-)S810000 Kt^TH AND SOQAlSCftVICCS, OEPT OF MEAITH AHDHUMAN SVS. HNS: OMSION FOR

8tct9

FIkiI

Year

CiMS/'
Account

ClSM TItl* Job Numbor
Curront

BudDot

' Incroastd '
(OecrMitd)
Amount

Revlood

Budgot

2022' 374-500SI$ Community CrtAts 920SSS01 S2B0.000 SO S2RO.OOO
2023 074-S0OS8S Community Grams 92OSSS0] $720,000 SO S720A»0

SubTota/ ■ $1^X10.000

05-95^2-$2O51O-J382aiO0H£ALrH AMD SOCWl SERVKCS. OEfT OF HfAlTN AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: WV«lOH FOR

SUIa

Piocoi

Yoar

CUao 1

Account
Clato Tlllo Job Numbor

Curront

Budgat

Incrooood

(Oocroosod)
Amount

Rovtaod

Budgat

2022 37i-S00SRS Community Grants ' 920SB50I SSASXMC SO S64S.OOO
2023 074.S0OSSS Community Grants 930SRS01 SSOS.OOG SO . SSOSfOOO
2023 074-S00&89 Walfira Assistanc* 92aS8S0t $795,000 SO S79SJ)00
2024 074-500S89 Wct/aro Astitunct 920$8S01 $32S.OOO SI,ISO,000 S1.47S.000
202S 074-500S89 Welfara AssJstanca 920S&S01 SO Si:47S.000

Subtotal $2,270,000 S2.62S.eOO S4.795J)00

pS-9S-92-92O5IO-3M4p000 HEALTH AND SOOAL SERVICES. OEPT Of HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR

Stoto

Fiscal

Yoar

Clast/

Account
Citst TIUo Job Numbor

Curront

Budgil

incroasod

(Docroosad)
Amount

Rovisad

Budgat

2022 074-S0OS&S Community Grants 920S7S01 SO SO SO
2023 074-SOOS8S Community Grants 920S7S01 Sl.000.000 SO si.ooo.ooo
2024 074.S00S<9 Welfar* Asslstanct 92057S02 S2S0.000 S1.7SO.000 52.000.000
202S 074-SOOS89 Wetfare Assistance 920S7S02 so S2XO0.000 $2,000,000

5ubro(a/ $1,250X00 sa.rsoxoo ss.ooo.ooo

05'9S-92-92OSl0-7O4tl0000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS OEPT OF, HHS: DIV FOR

Stsu

Fiscat

Yoar

.CtsaaF

Account
Class Title

v.*

JobNumbar
Currant

Budgat

Incraisod

(Dacraased)
Ravlaad

Budgat

2022 102-500731 Cemraeit rorPrograni'Sys 92057048 5575.000 SO 5575X00

2023 074-saos«s Community Grants 92057048 _ $575,000 so 5575.000
2023 074-S0OSB9 Welfare Assistanet B20570S8 51,500.000 SO 51.500.000
2024 074-500589 Welfare Asdstanca 920S70S6 sssaooo so 5680.000
2024 074-S00S89 Wetfare Assistance 92057062 so 51.725.000 51.725.000
202S 074.500589 Welfare Assistance 92057062 so SS75.000 5575.000

Subtotal $3,330,000 S2.90Q.000 55,630.000

0S^-92-92iOl WllTOOOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEAlHi AND HUMAN SVS. HHS:'«VISION FOR

Siaia

Fiscal

Year

Ctoaa /.

Account
Claas Titfa Job Number

Currant

Budget

Incroasod

{Oacraasad)
Amount

Ravtsod

Budgat

203) 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 92056505 5650.000 50 5650.000

Subrofaf $6S0.000 $0 5650.000

OS-9S'92-920S1D-39SOOOOO HEMTM Af^D SOCIAL SERViaS. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT OF. HHS: DIV FOR

State

Fiscal

Yosr

Class/

Amount Cists Title Job Number
Curreni

Budgat

IrtcrDoaod

(OacraaaadJ
Amotmt

Ravisad

Budgat

2024 102-500731 Conirads for PrtM Swe' 930S39S0 50 :52.121.0X 52.121.000
,2025 102-500731 Contracts for Proa Svc 920S39S0 50 S2J28.000 52.828X00

Sub/Ola/ 50 54.949.000 54,949.000

,•

Orantt Total S9,400,000 » 3.624.000 f2l0i4^000
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State of New Hampshire ■■ v. r
Department of Health and Human Services ; ^

^  Amendment U2

This Arjiendrhent to the Peer Recovery Support Services Facilitating Organization contract is by ;and
between the Slate of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Harbor Homes. Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
bfi Inarch 23, 2022 (Item #33), and as amended on December 21. 2022 (Item #26), the Contractor agreed
to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions specified in the.Contract as amended and
in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions. Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A; Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Councll;.and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2025

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8. Price Limitation,.to read:

$22,024,000

3. Modify. ExhibU B, Scope of Services by replacing in its entirety with Exhibit B, Amendment #2,
Scope of Seivices, vyhich Is attached hereto and Incorporated by reference herein.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Paymeni Terms, Section 1. to read:

1.; This Agreement is funded by: '

1.1. 45.09% Federal funds

1.1.1. 25.56% NH State Opioid Response (SOR) 2 Project, as awarded on August 9,
2021^ by the US Department of Health and Human Services (US DHHS)
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Admlnislralion (SAMHSA), CFDA
#93.788..FAIN TI083326, and NH50R 3 Project, as awarded on September .23,
2022, by the US DHHS, .SAMHSA, CFDA #93.788. FAIN TI085759; and SOR 3B,
ALN 93.788, FAIN TBD, are anticipated to be available effective 9/30/2023,
pending the receipt of Itie Notice of Award from SAMHSA.

1.1.2. 14.99% Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, as awarded on

September 16, 2021, by the US DHHS,.SAMHSA, CFDA #93.959, FAIN TI083464;
and Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, as awarded on
February 10, 2022, by the US DHHS, SAMHSj^. CFDA #93.959, FAIN T1084659:
and a"s awarded on June 15,2023, by the US DHHS'SAMHSA, Assistance Listing
Number 93.959, FAIN B08TI08S&1

1.1.3. 4.54% Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, as awarded^on

—OS

^0-
Kart)or Homes, Inc. A-S-1.2 Contraclor Inibals,

RFP-2022-BDAS-05-PEeRR-01-A02 Pag8lof4 Data 8/31/2023
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.  March 11.- 2021, by the US OHHS, SAMHSA. CFDA #93.959, FAIN TI083509.

. 1.2. 10.67% General funds. " ■

1.3. 44.24% Other funds

1.ll. 21.77% Governor's Commission

1.3.2. 22.47% Opioid Abatement Trust Fund

5. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 3, to read; " .

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures Incurred in the
fulfillment of this Agreemerit, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as-
specific In Eidilbit C-1, SFY2022, Budget through Exhibit'C-4, Amendment #2, SFY2025
Budget. .

6. Modify Exhibil-C. Payment Terms. Section 5., by adding Subsection 5.7.9., to read:

5.7.9. promotional items including, but not limited to, clothing and commemorative items with
added logos for distribution to clients and the community, such as pens, mugs/cups,
folders/folios, lanyards, and conference bags. See 45 CFR 75.421(e){3).

t- Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 5...by adding Subsection 5.7.10., to read:
5.7.10. Direct payments to Individuals to enter treatment or continue to participate in prevention or

treatment services. Siee 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b.
8. Modify Exhibit C. Payrfient Terms, Section 5., by adding Subsection 5.7.11., to read: ' -

5.7.11. Sterile needles or syringes for the hypodermic Injection of any illegal dmg.

9. Modify Exhibit G. Payment Terms, Section 11, to read:

11. The Contractor rriust provide the services In Exhibit B. Amendment #2, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements. ..

10. Modify Exhibit C. Payment Terms, Section 12, to read;

12. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be vrithheld, in whole or In part
in the event of. non-compliance with the terms and conditions of Exhibit 8, Amendment #2.
Scope of.Servlces, Including failure to submit required monthly and/or quarterly reports.

11. Modify Exhibit C-3. Amendment #1. SFY2024 Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-
3, Amendment #2. SFY2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein. •

^2. Add Exhibit C-4, Amendriient #2. SFY2p25 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference herein.

Harbor Homes; Inc.

RFP.2022-BDAS-05-PEERR-01.A02

A.S-1.2

Page 2 of 4

Contractor Initials

Oate 8/31/2023
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All terms ̂and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not modified by this Amendment remain
In full force and effect. This Amendment shall be effective September 30, 2023, upon Governor and
Council approval.

r»

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written betow,.
r.- : y ' '

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

8/31/2023

Date

•Oe«e$^wd by;

fpd
^-HBPceo38oae<mi-'
Name:Katja s. Fox.

Title:
Di rector

B/31/2023

Date

Hart>or Homes. Inc.

•DaeuSlgrMtf byi

Name: Henry Och

Title:

Harbor Homes, Inc.

RFP-2022^DAS-05-PEERR-01-A02

A-S-1.2

Page 3 of 4
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

9/1/2023 .

'V^^DOCUl

;  fiafM

Date
WMWW;-"

Name: Rooyn. cuan no

Title:
Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was apprqved by the Govemor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on;. ^ • (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

HartKir Homes,Ir^.

RFP-2022-BDAS-05-PEERR-01 -AOa

A-S-1.2

Page' 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Pepartrtient of Health and Human Services
PeerRecoverV Support Services Facilitating Organization

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide services, in this Agreement to Recovery
Community OrganiMtions in New Hampshire that provide Peer Recovery
Support Services to individuals with Substance Use Disorder and their families. ■

1.2. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to days shall mean business
days. .

1.3. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to business hours shall
mean Monday through Friday from 8:00 AM to 4:00 PM, excluding state and
federal holidays.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall continue to provide facilitating organization services for
the 12 currently subcontracted Recovery Community Organizations (RCOs) In
NH that provide Peer Recovery Support Services to individuals with Substance
Use Disorder (SUD) and their farfillies. The Contractor shall ensure services
include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Providing funding and assistance for operational and programmatic
support to each RCO.

2.1.2. Supporting the provision of quality .Peer Recoveiy Support Services
(PRSS) within each of the selected Recovery Centers that reside
within the RCOS;.

2.1.3., Facilitating monthly RCO Leadership,Meetings. The Contractor shall:

2.1.3.1. Connect RCOs with PRSS-related statewide resources.

2.1.3.2. Develop objectives for increasing capacity and quality
improvement of PRSS.

2.1.3.3. Provide a. forum for shared learning about changes in the
field of PRSS.

Provide information to participants about available
resources and funding opportunities.

2.2. The Contractor shall enter into subcontracts with the 12 existing RCOs, withiri
90 days of the effective date of the awarded .contract. The Contractor shall:

2.2.1. Provide a copy of each executed RCO subcontract to the Department
within five (5) days of contract execution: and

2.2.2. Modify current subcontracts as required, or enter into new
subcontracts for new Recovery Centers, located within existing
RCOs, as approved by the Department.

2.3. In collaboration with the local community, the Contractor shall eslabl^Jnd
RFP»2022*BDAS-05-PEERR-01-A02 Hartw Hom«s Inc. ConiractOf Initials

.Page, or«
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Recovery Support Services Facilitating drganizatloh'

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

enter into a subcontract for a new Recovery Center in Northern Coos County
that meets all requirements for recovery centers identified in this Agreement."

.2.4., The Contractor shall ensure all subcontracted RCOs:

2.4.1. Provide: ^

2.4.1.1. Services within a minimum of one (1.) Recovery Center;

2.4.-1.2. Recovery Coaching;

2.4.1.3. Telephone Recovery Support;

2.4.1.4. A venue for recovery mutual support meetings;

2.4.1.5.. Additional Recovery Support Services as determined by
the local Recovery Community and the Facilitating
Organization, that may include but are not limited to:

■  „ 2.4.1.5.1. Parenting and Family Support Programs. -

. 2.4.1.5.2. Outreach and distribution of supplies to
individuals experiencing homelessness.

r  2.4.1.5.2.1. The Contractor shall ensure at
least three (3) RCOs. or more as
determined between the

T  •' * Contractor and the siubcontracted
RCOs, conduct outreach and
distribute supplies to individuals

t  experiencing homelessness.

2.4.1.5.3. Collaborative recovery programs with
commuriity agencies.

2.4.1.5.4. Transportation assislance related to recovery,
supports.

2.4.2. Engage with: r

2.4.2.1. Local and regional partners including, but riot limited'to:

2.4.2.1.1. Regional Public Health Network, as listed on the
Depar^ent's website:
https:/Awyw.dhhs.nh.gov/programs-
sen/lces/population-health/regional-public-
heallh-netwofks, to participate In continuurn of

'  care development work,

2.4.2.1.2. Regional Doonway.

2.4.2.1.3. Mental Health Peer Support Services within the
y  community.

RFP-2022'BOAS*05-P£ERR^1-A02 Harbo/Homes Inc. Contraciof Initials ^ 'f-

B-1.0 ' Paflo2o(16 Data



OoeuSign Envelope 10: F698DE19-AA01-4Eg5-IIACO-CEC7E66A684C

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Recovery Support Services Facilitating Organization

EXHIBIT B. Amendment U2

2.4.3. .Coordinate with Mental Health Peer Support Centers to ensure
participants are referred to the Peer Support Center or Recovery
Center that best suits theirneeds. t:

2.4.4. Comply with all applicable state and federal laws,, rules, and
,  regulations, f

2.5'. The Contractor shall work with each RCO to develop annual work plans that
identify goals and action steps to reach set goals. The Contractor shall ensure
the work plan reflects each RCO's administrative capacity and readiness arid
Includes, bu\ is not limited to; . ,

.2.5.1. Meeting New Hampshire Recovery Community Organization
. Standards of Excellence (NHRCQSE).

2.5.2. Medicaid enrollment and billing.

2.5.3. Capacity building.

2.5.4. Sustainabili^ planning.

2.5.5. Service development.

2.6. The Contractor shall provide back-office support functions, as needed, for, all
subcontracted RCOs. The Contractor shall ensure support functions include,
but are.not limited to assistance with:

2.6.1. Human resource activities. ,, •

2.6.2. Information technology.

2.6.3. Policy arid procedure development.

2-6-4- Grant writing.

2.6.5. Compliance monitoring.

2.6.6. Quality improvement.

2:6.7.. Data collectipn and rnanagement.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure billing services are available to each RCO until the
RCO can perform billing functions on their own. B|l|ihg functions shall include,
but are not limited to:

'jr

2.7.1. Credentialing for insurance billing.

3  2.7.2. Submitting claims for PRSS participant services covered by Medicaid
to the,appropriate Managed Care Organization (MCO).

2.7.3. Disbursing payments received from MCOs to.the appropriate RCO.

2.8. The Contractor shall support the ability of each RCO to open and .sustain a
mlnirnumofone(1).Recovery Center. The Cbntractpr shall;

2.8.1. Work with each BCD that plans to' open a new Recovery to
•  m
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develop a written plan that includes, but Is not limited to:

2.8.1.1. The current organizational structure of the RCOs Recovery
*■ * Center or the RCOs readiness to open a Recovery Center,,'

... as appropriate.

2.8.1.2. The process for acquiring arid/or rehabilitating a facility to
serve as a Recovery Center. -

■  2.8.1.3. The RCOs financial viability to support the Recovery
Center. . .

2.8.2. Ensure training and technical assistance is available to Recovery
Center staff, which may include but is not lirnited to:,
2.8.2.1. Peer Recovery Coaching Services.

^1= 2.8.2.2. Telephone Recovery Support Services.
2.8.2.3. Co-occurring mental health and substance use disorders-

and recovery. t

2.8.2.4. Family dynamics of addiction and recovery. ^
2.8.2.5. Application of ethical codes for CRSWs and volunteers;.

•*

.2.8.2.6. Information Security, Privacy, and Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) training.

2.8.3. Work with each RCO to ensure sustalnability of a Recovery Center(s)
and seryices. The Contractor shall:

2.8.3.1. Work with each RCO to develop a written plan to sustain Its
Recovery Center(s) and services.

2.8.3.2. Assist RCOs to . secure funding from other public and
private sources to ensure ongoing sustalnability of

■ services. * ■ •

2.9. The Contractor shall monitor each RCO to ensure compliance, with subcontract
requirements through activities which may include, but are not limited to:
2.9.1. In-person or virtual bi-monthly meetings.

■2.9.2. In-person site visits. . ^
2.9.3. Quarterly meetings.
2.9.4. Telephonic arid email correspondence.
2.9.5. Ad hoc meetings, as needed to address real-time issues.

2.10. The Contractor shall utilize logistical arid other support, as directed by the
Department, to facilitate a Community of Practice that aWows RCO
adrriinistrators and leaders to establish and strengthen coopsratjon,
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collaboratlon.'and informal mentoring among RCOs. The Contractor shall;

2.10.1. Organize regular on-going rneetings of the PRSS Community of
Practice.

2.10:2. Ensure meetings are widely advertised to all RCOs, statewide and to
other PRSS stakeholders.

2.11. The Contractor shall work to ensure RCOs are prepared to meet or exceed
New Hampshire Recovery Community Organization Standards of Excellence
(NHRCOSE), which includes ,28 standards of, excellence organized under six
(6) domains, as follows:

2.11.1. RCO Structure and Staffing;

2:11.2. Board of Directors (BOD);'

2.11.3. Assessment and Planning;^
2.11.4. Workforce Development;

2.11.5. Operations; and •

2.11.6. Evaluatioii and Monitoring. ^ c

2.12- The Contractor shall provide current, baseline status of each of the existing
RCOs, to the Department,- within 30 days of the effective, dale of the
Agreement. The Contractor shall ensure current, baseline status information
includes, but is not limited to:

2.12.1. Status of meeting NHRCOSE standards In accordance with 2.11
above. , '

2.12.2. Specific areas of PRSS expertise. . r- * "

2.12.3. Recovery Coaching

2.12.4. Telephone Recovery Services.

2.12.5. Location and service hours ofthe current Recovery Centers.

.2.12.6. Number pf staff and volunteers and percentage of them that have
been credentialed as a Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW).

.'j 2.12.7. Status of Medlcaid enrollment, contracting and credentlaling with
Managed Careprgani2ations (MCOs) and billing for PRSS.

2.12.8. Annual budget to include all funding sources.

2.12.9. Status of an organizational sustalnability plan.

2.13. The Contractor shall collaborate with technical assistance providers, as.
directed by the Department, to develop and provide training and technical
assistance.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide training and technical assistance t6~§bch
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subcontracted RCO to ensure that all RGOs meet at! requirements set forth in
IhisRFP.

:2.15. The Contractor shall implement; a data collection and organization process
.. approved by the Department that includes:

2.15.1. Providing each RCO access to and training on the RecoveryLInk™
recovery-based electronic data collection system as jdentified and
approved by the Department.

2.15.2. Ensuring all RCOs enter data Into RecoveryLink™, including but not
limited to:

2.15.2.1. Demographics, that include but are not limited.'to:

2.15.2.1.1. Gender.

^  2.15.2.1.2. Age.'. ^

2.15.2.1:3. Ethnicity.

2:15.2.1.4. Race.

2.15.2.1.5. Veteran Status.

-2.15.2.1.6. Sexual Orientatiori.- v,

2.1,5.2.2. Outcome Measures that include,, but are not limited to:

'■ '2.15.2.2.1. " Substance use.

2.15.2:2.2. Crime and criminal justice.
. 2.1.5.2:i2.3; Employment and education.

■  2.15.2.2.4. Stability in housing.
2.15.2.2.5. Reliable transportation.
2:15.2.2.6. Social connectedness.

2.15.2.2.7. ■income, " - ^
2.15.2.2.8. Health insurance coverage.

... 2.'15.2.2.9. Recovery capital, as measured by Brief
'  ̂ Assessment of Recovery Capital (BARC-10)

scores. * .•

2.15.2;'2.10., Quality of life.
2.16. The Contractor shall collaborate with the. Department and other providers

.  identified by the Department to; ' .
2.16.1. Provide information necessary for the Department to evaluate and

monitor the Contractor's performance of services;
2.16.2. Ensure the RCOs are oper;ating and .providing seryldei^er

RFP-2022-BD>\S-05-PEERR-OVA02 Haitor Homes Inc., _
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NHRCOSE and CRSW standards; and

2.16.3. Evaluate PRSS provided by RCOs individually and on an aggregate
level, Inciuding participarit level outcomes.

2.17. The Contractor shall actively promote the availability, purpose, and value of
PRSS across New Hampshire. The Contractor shall ensure promotional
activities Include, but are not limited to: '

2.17.1. Presenting at local and state-wide meetings, workshops and
conferences in conjunction with RCO leadership. The Contractor-shall
ensure information for presentations includes, but is.not limited to:

2.17.1.1. Location.

2.17.1.2. Date. ,,

'V 2.17.1.3. Title of meeting, workshop(s), or conferencefr).

2.17.2. Other activities approved by the Department.

2.18. The Contractor shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
enhance contract management and improve results.

2.19. The Contractor shall participate in meetings with the Department on a monthly
basis, or as othen/vise requested by the Department, to ensure compliance with
the contractual requirements.

2.20. State'^Opiold Response fSORI Grant Standards

2.20. T. The Contractor shall establish formal information sharing and referral
agreements between the RCOs and the Doorways iri corhpliance with
all applicable confidentiality laws, including 42 CFR Part 2 ih order to
receive, payments for services funded with SOR resources.

2.20.2. The Contractor shall ensure individuals receiving services rendered
from SOR furids report past or current use of. or being at risk of using
ppioids or stimulants.

2.20.3. The Contractor shall coordiriate completion of Government
- Performance Results Act initial lnterview and associated follow::Ups at
six (6) months and discharge for individuals referenced in Subsection
2.20.1 with Regional Doorways.

2.20.4. The Contractor shall ensure RCOs provide services as referenced in
Section 2_. to eligible individuals who:

2.20.4.1. Receive Medication for OLID (MOUD) services from other
providers, including the Individual's primary care provider;

2.20.4.2. Have co-occurring mental health disorders; or

2.20.4.3. Are on medications and are taking those ̂medicalior|§ as
prescribed regardless of the class of medication, f" .
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2.20.5. The Contractor shall ensure that SCR grant funds are not used to
purchase, prescribe, or provide cannabis or for providing, treatment
using cannabis. The Contractor shall ensure:

2.20.5.1. Treatment in this context includes the treatment of CUD.

2.20.5.2. Grant funds are not provided to any individual or
.  organization that provides or permits cannabis use for the
purposes of treatirig substance use or mental health
disorders.

'  _ 2.20.5.3. This cannabis restriction applies to all subcontracts and
■ memorandums of understanding (MOU) that receive SOR
funding.

2.20.6. The Contractor shall ensure Naloxone kits are available to individuals
at each RCO. Naloxone kits may be obtained through coordination
with thejocal Doonways. or by purchasing directly with SOR funding.

.2.20.7. 'If the Contractor intends to distribute test strips, the Contractor shall
provide a test strip utilization plan to the Department for approval prior
to Implementation. The Contractor shall ensure the utilization plan
Includes, but is not limited to:

2.26.7.1. Internal policies for the distribution of test strips;

2.20.7.2. Distribution methods and frequency: and

2.20:7.3. Other key data as requested by the Department.

2.20.8. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department and other SOR
funded vendors to improve Gpvernrnent Performance and Results Act
(GPRA) collection. - ...

2.20.9. The Cohtractdr shall corpply with all appropriate Departrnerit, State of
NH, Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration

'■ ' (SAMHSA), and other Federal terms, conditions, and requirements,
and as amended, and shall collaborate with the Department to
understand the aforesaid. *

3. Exhibits Incorporated
'3.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information In compliance

with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in accordance with the attached
Exhibit I , Business Associate Agreement, which has been executed by the parties.

3.2. The Contractor shall manage alKconfidenlial, data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements.

'3.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits 0 through K, which are atta^ed
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hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

A. Reporting Requirements
*  . 'I)

4.1. the Contractor shall , provide monthly updates of data captured from
RecoveryLInk^", Including, but not limited to BARC-10 scores, in a format;
approved by the Department, including but not limited to SCR specific reporting.

4.2. The Contractor'Shall provide quarterly updates that detail activities completed as
described In Subsection 2.4.1.5.2., including, but not limited to:

4.2.1. Names of RCOs that swere funded to participate as described In
Subsection 2.4.1.5.2.1.

4.2.2. Number of outreach activities conducted |n the previous quarter. ̂
4.2.3. Nurriberofresources that are distributed.

4.2.4. Number of outreach.encounters completed in the'previous quarter. "

4.3. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reports.'wlth de-identified information that
includes, but Is not limited to:

4.3.1. Updates on the current status for each RCO under subcontract, including,
but not limited to;

-4.3.1.1. Status of meeting NHRCOSE standards in accordance with 2.12
above. * . '

4.3.1-.2,' Specific, areas of PRSS expertise.

4.3.1.3. Recovery Coaching and qualifications of staff providing recovery
coachirtg including supervision.

4.3.'1.4. Telephone Recovery Services.

4.3.1.5. Location and service hours of the current'Recovery Centers.

4:3.1.6. Number of staff and volunteers and percentage of them that have
•  been credentialed as a Certified Recovery Support Worker

.(CRSW). '
4.3.1.7. Btatus'of Medicaid enrollment, contracting and credentlaling with

Managed Care Organizations (MCOs) and .billing for PRSS.

4.3.1.8. Annual budget to include all funding sources.

4:3.1.9. Status of an organizational sustainabilily plan.

4.3.2. Information on RCO trainings and Communities of Practice conducted,
including but not limited to:

4.3.2.1. Typeof training provided.

4.3.2.2. Topic.

4.3.2.3. Numberof attendees. ' .

RFP'2022*BDAS'05-PEERR'01-A02 Hartxi^'Honies tna CofWractor InlUab
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4.3.3. Number of RCOs provided, support for human resource and/or billing
functions.

4.3.4. Activities undertaken to promote the availability, purpose and value of
PRSS.

4.3.5., Programmatic highlights from RCOs.

4.4.; the Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to the
Department, including cllent-leyel demographic, performance, and service data.

4.5. the Contractor shall submit an annual report for State Fiscal Year 2024 to the
Department no later than .30 days after the end of State Fiscal'Year 2024. The
annual report must Include aggregate, de-identifiable data only, including, but not

^  limited to:

4.5.1. Gufrent status of each RCO under contract.

4.5.2. Number and type of Peer Recovery Support Services (PRSS) provided by
each RCO.

.  4:5.3. Total number and type of PRSS provided across all RCOs.

4.5.4. Number and type of trainings provided.

4.5.5. Amount of payments billed to insurance by the Contractor, on behalf of the
RCOs. ■

4.5.6. Total amount of payments billed to insurance across all RCOs.

4.5.7. Participant data for each RCO, including:

•  ̂ ■ 4.5.7.1. PRSS engagements and activities; and.

,  4.5.7.2. Significant changes and/or differences to recovery capital and
outcomes, as indicated through'the Brief Assessment of Recovery
Capital (BARC-10) measures.

•4.5.8. Participant data across all RCOs, which includes:

4.5.8.1. Participant demographics;

4.5.8.2. PRSS engagements arid activities; and •-

4.5.8.3. Statistically significant changes and/or differences In recovery
capital and outcomes as Indicated through BARC-10 measures.

4.6. When applicable, the Contractor shall collect and share data with the Department
as requested, and in a format approved by the Department.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor shalf ensure: .

5.1.1. A minimum of 20 Recovery Centers are open arid providing PRSS;

5.1.2. A minimum of 3 RCOs conduct outreach and, distribute suCfefi^ to
RFP-2022-BOAS-05-PEERR-01-A02 Haibor Homes Inc. ... Contractor InHiab
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..individuals experiencing hpmelessness; •

5.1.3. RCOs are ensuring CRSWs on staff receive supervision, as required
by the. NH Licensing Board;

5.1.4. On average, the increase in BARC-10 scores from baseline to current
for individuals receiving recovery coaching is statistically significant;
and

5.1.5. 40% of RCOs provide documentation demonstrating preparation to
meet or exceed NHRCOSE standards.

6. Additional Terms

6.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

6.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so asto achieve
compliance therewith.

•VI

6.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Lihgulstlcally
Appropriate Programs and Services

6.2.1. The Contractor .shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Dale, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meariihgful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

6.3. Credits and'Copyright Ownership

6.3.1. The Contractor niust ensure all documents, notices, press releases,
.research, reports arid other materials prepared by the Contractor
and/or the subcontracted RCOs during or resulting from the
performance of the services of the Agreement shall include the
following statements:

'  6.3.1.1, "The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was
financed under a Contract with the State of New
Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services,
with funds provided in part by the State of New Hampshire
and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and
Human Services.".

6.3.1.2. "The views and opinions expressed within (this report,
docunlent etc.) are those of (Contractor NdrniT^ or

DM-'
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Subcontracted RCO Name) and do not necessarily reflect
the views or positions.of the State of New Harnpshire,

'  Department of Health, and Hyman' Services."

6.3.2. All materials produced or purchased by the Contractor under the
Agreement shall have'prior approval from the. Department before
printing, production, distribution or use.

6.3.3. The Department shalf retain copyright ownership- for any arid all
original materials produced, Including, but riot llmited.to: .

6.3.3.1. Brochures.

6.3.3.2. Resource directories. ■

6.3.3.3. Protocols or guideiihes. ; "

6.3.3.4. Posters. ' t..

6.3.3.5. Reports, • -V' '
6.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the.

Agreement without prior vflitten approval from the Department.,

6.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

6.4;1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
'  shall-cpmpiy with all laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,

county and municipal authorities and with any direction.of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant tO" laws which shall Impose an order or.
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility or
the. provision of the services at -such facility. If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for the.bperatioh'of the sa\6 facility
or the performance of the said services, the Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at all tiiTies.cornply with the terms and

• conditions of each such, license or permit." In" connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor'hereby covenants and agrees
that, during the lemn of this Agreement the facilities shall comply with
all rules, orders, regulations, and requirerhents of the State Office of
the Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, arid shall tie in

.  conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-laws and.
regulations.

7. Records '•

7.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but.are not limited to:

7.1.1. Books, records! documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs^and other expenses iricurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received *
or collected by the Contractor. - m
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7.1.2. All records shall be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which-are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials.-inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by-
the Department.

7.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (Including all forms required to deterrnine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

7.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services; and
any of their designated representatives shalj have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant, to the Agreement fof purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts.and transcripts. Upon.the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as. by the terms of the
Agreemeht are to be performed iafter the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the tenriihation of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if. upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Departrnent shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

8. Maintenance of FIscallntegrity

8.1. In order to enable.DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the
Contractor agrees to submit to OHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet. Profit and
Loss Statement at the organization and entity level, and Cash Flow Statement
for the' Coritractor. All statements shall be reflective of the entire Harbor Care
organization and shall be submitted once reviewed and approved by the
Board, but no later than the 30th of the following month. Thie Contractor will
be evaluated on the following:

8,1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

8.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be
covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

8.'1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments divided by total operating expenditures,

RFP-2022-BDAS-05-PEERR'01-A02 Hefbor Homes Iric. Conlraclor Inllials
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depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal
,payments on debt divided by days in thefeporting period.
The short-term investments as used above must mature
within three (3) months and should not include common
stock. Any amount of cash from a line of credit should be
broken out separately.

8.1.1.3, Performance Standard; The Contractor shall have enough
cash and cash equivalents, to cover expenditures for a

. minimum of thirty.(30) calendar days with no variance
allowed.-

8.1.2. Current Ratio:

8.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current
assets available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

8.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total,current
liabilities.

8.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a
iTiinimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

8*1:3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:
4

8.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to
cover, the cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

8.1.3.2. pefinitior): The ratio of Net Income to the year to date det)t
service.

8.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization
Expense plus Interest Expense divided by year to date debt
service (principal and interest) over the next twelve (12)
months.

8.1.3.4. Source,of Data; The Contractor's Monlhly.Financiai
Stalernents identifying current portion of long-term debt
payments (principal and jnterest).

8.1.3.5. Performance Standard: ThpiCbhtractor shall maintain a
minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

8.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets , t

.  8.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio', is an indication of the Contractor's
ability to cover its liabilities. *

8.1.4.2. Definllipn; The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total
'  assets.

8.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities
divided by total assets.
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8.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements.

8.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall rnaintain a

rninimum ratio of 0.30:1, with 3 -20% variance allpwed.

8.1.5.-, Total Lines of Credit '
•  *

-8.1.5.1. The contractor will provide a listing of every line of credit
T  and amount outstanding for each line:

8.1.5.2. The contractor will report on;any new borrowing activities.^

8.1.5.3. The contractor will report on any Instances of npn-
compliarlce with any loari covenant or. agreement. .

8.2. In.the event that the Contractor's ahnuaf audit reflects an operating loss, or
the Contractor does not meet either:

8.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand or the standard
regarding Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

8.2.2. Compliance with all of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards for
three (3) consecutive months; or

8.2.3i Does not meet .the reporting timefram'e; then . " ' "

8.2.3.T. The Department rriay:

8.2.3.1.1. Require the Contractormeet'With Department staff
to expfain the reasons the Contractor has not met
the standards. "

. 8.2.3.1.2. Require the Contractor to submit a comprehensive
corrective action plan within 20 calendar days of
notification that ariy provisions outlined in Section
8.2 have not been met. The corrective action plan
shall.include:

8.2.3.1.2.1. The specific reasori(s) the Contractor
did not achieve the standard.

, j: 8.2.3.1.2.2. Strategies describing how the
Cpntraclpr will implenient corrective
actions to address the reason(s) for
non-compliance.

8.2.4. Notwithstanding, Form P-37, General' Provisions. Paragraphs 8. Event
■ of Default/Remedies, and 9, Termination;

8.2.4.1. If a corrective action plan is required, the Contractor shall
update the corrective action plan at least every 30 calendar
days until compliance is achieved. ./—"

&RFP.M22.BDAS-05-PEERR-01^2 Haft)Of Homes bw. Contmcior Initials
8/31/2023

B-1,0 • Pa9«15of16
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V  . New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Recovery Support Services Facilitating Organization

EXHIBIT B, Amendment #2

8.2.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional Information to assure
continued access to services as requested by the

V:; Department. The Contractor shall provide requested
information in a timeframe agreed upon by both parties.

8.3. The Contractor shajl inform the Department by phone and by email within five
(5) business days of when any key Contractor staff learn of any actual or
likely litigation, investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may
reasonably t>e considered to have a material-financial impact on and/or
materially impact or impair the ability of the Contractor to perform under this
Agreement with the Departrnent. ' ■ :

8.4; The monthly Balance Sheet, Profrt & Loss Statement, monthly Cash Flo\y
Statement, and all other financial reports shall be based on the accrual
method of accounting and include the Contractor's total revenues and
expenditures whether or not generated by or resulting from funds provided

*  pursuant to this Agreement.

8.5. The Contractor shall inform the Department by-phone and by email within five
business days when any Executive Management. Board Officers, or Program
Managers for DHHS, contracts submits a resignation or leaves for, .any other
reason.

8.6. The Program-level Profit and .Loss Statement for the Facilitating Organization
shall be submitted at the tirhe of Invoice. The Program-level Profit and Loss
Statement shall include all revenue sources and all related expenditures for
.that'prbgram, and shall include a budget column allowing for budget to actual
analysis.

'OS

RFP'2022'80AS'05'PEERR-01'A02 Harbor Homes Inc. Contractor IrtUab
8/31/2023

B'1.0 Pago16oM6 Oate_;



ExhlWtC4, Ancndntmn

$rY3034 eu«Q«(

New Hamp^fro Oepertmcnt of Health end Human Services

BMdtr Manii: Htrbor Homtt. Inc.

Budect Rmiumi (en Peer Rtcewery Suppert SarvlcM FtcDIuUng OrBaflUttlen v ,

Buegft Ptftod: t, 203) through June 30.2034

•'•.IJ' 1.' Vi'. •  r f** > • Tetti Profirem Cost' Garfeirii Oaaratlona" ' Northern Coos County Racovarv Hofli'ilass Outratch.-

Untltem -•••-,.*•_ * - iOlraet ' .  Indlract -Total .. Otrect : ladlraet . Total Olraet- Indirect Total . Olract Irtdlract . .Tout .

1. Tolel SKsrviWaan S  520.035 ft 52,904 581.999 ft 502.180 ft 50.216 • 552.378 ft 25.875 ft 2.588 $ 29489 ft • ' i ■ ft- " ft

2. EnvtovM Barwflli 5  129.110 9 12.912 ft 142.023 ft 121.060 ft 12.107 ft 199.187 ft 8.050 9  805 8.855 8 ft

9. Cemuftent) »  9T.»1 9.798 41.119 97,981 ft 3,798 ? 41.119 ft ft ft . ft

4. Eoutanent: ft . ft .'i ft ft. <. ft - ft ft r-i. • " 8 ft ft •'<

ftenttf % ft » ft ft ft .ft ■ ft- ' ft .• ft

Reoeir and Mrintenanco % ft ft • ft r-* ft ..i ft - ft ft ft ft ft. ■-

P^rche»«/D«t9raclBUen %  7.500 ft 750 ft 8.250 f 7,500 ? 750 ft 8.250 ft .. ft " a -ft
5. SupoBm: t ft •i ft ft 4 - ft . ft >• ft f . ft ft N 8

Educflttonsi % ft ft !. ? ... .. ft ft b 1 ft i- ■■s: ft '' %.
Ub % ft > ft > ft .ft ft >■ ft ft .. s

%  > •/ ft ft ft 8 ft ft ft ft ft '* ft
M*dicol t ft ft . ft 9 ft . ft ft ft •ft

Olle« t  425 ft 49 ft 488 f 425 49 ft 489 ft . ft i- ft $

e. Travel 9  25.000 ft 2.SOO ft 37.500 23.200 S 2,920 ft 25.520 ft 1.800 ft 180 ft 1.980 ft <• ft <•

7. Oceuoanev *  17.900 ft 1.730 ft 19.030 ft 17:300 ft ■1.790 ft I9.(XX> ft . ft f ft . ft
S. Current EoeiMee ft -• ft . ft ft - " ft . ft ft ft ft \»- ft

Tebohona 5  4.972 ft 487 r 5.959 ft 4,673 ft 487 ft 5.359 ft . -t. ft . •• ft ft r- 8

Posteoa S  25 ft .. ft - 25 ft 25 ft 7. . ft 25 ft ft ft .. ft 8

Subeelottara t  993 .ft 89 ft 779 ft 883 ft 68 ft 729 1 ft V ft '• ' ft ft
At^endLeofl S  BOO ft 80 ft 880 ft 800 ft K> ft anrt ft ft • * ft %

knuranco 1  9.959 ft 938 ft 9.895 1 3.959 ft 938 ft 3.695 ft ft ft ..

Board Exsanut * f ft ft ,--'1 ft Ti- ft •V ft ft . ft ft '• ft •'
S. Softwere 5  225.42ft ft 22.543 ft 247,971 ft '220.928 8 21099 ft 243.021 ft 4.500 ,S . 450 ft 4.950 ft i .1 %

10. MvtietkMi/Gommunlcaitone ft ia.oii ft 1.601 •-f 17.812 ft ' 18.011 ft 1,801 ft 17.612 ft ft ■ 3

11. Staff Educ«tlot> and Training S  57.114 ft 5.711 ft 82.825 ft 51114 ft 5,211 ft 57.325 ft 5.000 ft ' 500 ft 5500 ft 8

13. SubcentradWAoreemem* ft .8.219.814 ft 621J62 ft 6.841.578 ft 5.811.294 ft 581.129 ft 6.391429 ft 238.503 ft 31550 349.153 ft fftl.ftlft ft IS.tft) ft 200X00
19, Other feeaclte detalts mandalarv; ft ft .. ft ft ft ft . ft .• . ft - - - ' ft .. % 8

ft ft . ft i. ft i»-. ft .. ft ft . S  *• -i ft ft $ 8

ft ft ft ft ft ft . • f ft •• ft >•
ft ft ft ft ■ftv ft ft - ft •  .• ft ■ft- •. -
ft ft ft I* ft ft ft ft ft f g ft ' ft '
ft ft ft . ft . ft f- ft ft ft ft $  • 8

ft .ft •- ft ft A.'-.. ft ft - ft • ft -.. ft .. 8  . . ••g-- .. 8
TOTAL ft 7.97).B37 1 727.na ft 8,001.000 ft ft .ft1ft.0«3 ft •81.908 ft 7.501.000 ft 371737 ft 37.37) 300,000 ft 181.119 ft 11.113 ft 200.000

-V'

'^Iftdlreei A* A Perctnt of Dirtct 10*

HvOcr homei. Inc.
fVP-202>BOA&0&PeERR-01*A02
EJhbl C-3. Amendment n. srr3034 Budget

&
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Eihlblt C^, Amendment *2

SfY2025 Budget

New Hampehire Oepartmont of Heafth and Human Servicea

BtdderName: Hartoer Hemee. Inc.

Budget Request fan Peer Recovery Support Servlcee Facilitating Organlzstjon

Budget Period: July 1,2024 through Jurw 20, 2028 .v

*• ' • "5," ' ' -■ ... "  Total Proqram Cost •» i" General Operations* Northeiifi.Coee County Recsverv Hemelass Outreach
Line Item Direct Irtdirect Total Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect Total Direct Indirect e- Total
1. Total SatBryfWeges 8 990.488 8 99.049 8 049.537 S6Z283 8 66.226 8 618.489 8 28.225 8. 2 823 8  31.046 8  * • . 8  ■ %■
2. Emolorce BeneAts S 177.190 f 17.715 104 885 188.675 8 -18888 8 188.843 8 8.475 8  848 8  9.923 '8
3. Ccmultanta $ 42.619 8 4.282 8 47.101 8 42.810 8 4.282 47.101 8 .. s s j 8  'i s
4. Eoubment f « 8 ■ 8 . 8 . ? - 8 8 8' (•

Rental -f 8 8 8 8 8 .. 8 % 1 %■
Reosir and Mamtenaneo 9 8 8 . 8 . 8 . 8 .. 8 . a 1 8  • i'; %
Purchase/OeoredaSon s 8.000 8 600 8 6.800 * 6.000 8 600 8 8.800 8 . -1 8 8 8 %

5. Sueoilei: s - 8 V- 8 8 • 8 8 8 1 8 ( c

Educadonai 8 8 .  .. 8 8 8 8 8 8 f 5  i % s
Ub 8 8 r. 8 8 8 8 Vii- 8 . s % 8 J $
Pharmecv 8 8 8 8 S 8 $ 8 8 8 s. %
Medical f •if f 8 8 •r 8 - 8 - 8 s % %  3*
OfSce 8 1 000 8 100 8 1.100 8 1.000 ^8 .  100 ? 1.100 8 . 8 t S $  •• t

6. Travel 8 31.800 S 2.180 8 23.990 8 20.000 8 ■ 2.000 8 22.000 8 1.600 '8 180 1  1.980 8
7. OeeuDsncv f 22.000 2.200 8 24.200 f - 22.000 ■ 2.200 8 24.200 8. * 8 8' 8. it
8. Cunem Eieemes .1. • - 8 •i. 8 - 8 .« S - 8 »• 8' 8

Teleohorte 8 5.400 S 540 8 5.940 8 5.400 8 .  '940 8 9.040 8 S 8" "8 S  • •• -.
Pestaoe 8 ".1 8 8 . 8 8 - 8 8 8 %
SubserlDtions 1 8 ... 8. • • f '8 8 . 8. f,- s 8  -if 8'
Audit and Leoal f 1.200 1 120 S 1.820 8 1.200 'S . 120 t.320 f 8
insurance 8 9.800 } 980 1 0.880 5.800 8 580 8 8.380 8 8 8' ' ''i- S'' s  • - $
Board Expenses' 8 8 8- 8 '  -s •; 8 8 . 8 .i. $ 8 $  '• S'

9. Software 8 253,550 S 25.255 8 277,805 8 248.050 8 •24.805 8 272.8SS 8- -•4.500 8  490 8  4.950 8  i't S* •
to. Martadnc/Convnurtieaijons 8 20.590 8 2.095 8 22.805 20.550 $ •  2.055 8 22805 8 . 8 8 s  •
it. Staff Education and TraSntne 8 48.000 8 4.800 8 52.800 f 48.500 8 4.850 8 . 51.150 8 1.500 8  190 8  1.850 8 St
12. SubcerKracts/Acreements 8 8.097.070 8 505,797 8 5.563.767 4.647.025 8 484.703. 8 5.I12.71B 8 228.227 8  .22.823 8  251.050 8  161.818 S  ts.itt X  200.000.
13. Other fioednc details mandatorvl 8 - 8 8 1 • 8 . 8 8 . 9 8

8 8 8 8 a 8 8 . s %
8 • 8 8 8 •1 8 ?. 8  I-- 8 •.*- % S  I- ' •

-
8 8 8 8  • I 8 "• S 8 .V 8 8' • 8 s
8 8 8 8 7' S 8 8  - -8' 8  . :S • S  X*
S S Vi- 8 8 8. 8 8 K- 8 ■ 8 '8 " • -
8 8 ■ 8 8 8 8 •f'.- 8 > 8 8  'i s. * ♦

TOTAt 8 8.282.737 1 62S.273 1 8J79.000 .1. 6.718.182 8 879.818 «jr8.ooo $ 272.727 8  27.273 1  30C.000 8  181.811' t  ts.iei 200.000

Hartor Homes. Inc.
RFP.2022-aOA5-OS4>EERR-Ot<A02
ErfKbit C-4. Amendment fZ. SFY202S Budget

—

8/21/202)
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SS'" "ZfoSTATE OF NEW HAMPSl

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

mVlSlOt^FORBEHAVlORALUEAlTH

I ori A Shlhlntii* »W PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NM 0i30l
Coanluiottr 6QJ-27I.9S44 ex(.9544

Fes: 603-2714332 TDDAccess: l-SOOOJS-2964 m>-H-.dhhs.ph.sov
KatJi5.F«t % •
Oireclor

December 2,2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu -
end the Hortorable Council

'Slate House

Ckincord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division for Behavioral Health,
Id amend an exis1ir>g contract with Harbor Homes, Inc. (VC#155358), Nashua, NH, to continue
providing Facililaling Organizalion services and program support for Recovery Contmunity
Organizations and Recovery Centers, by exercising a contract renev/al option by increasing the
price"iirhitalion by $4,200,000 from $4,200,000 to $8,400,000 and extending the completion date
from Decembe/ 31. 2022 to September 30. 2023 effective upon Governor and Council approval.
71% Federal Funds. 19% General Funds. 10% Other Funds (Governor Commission).

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on March 23, 2022, itern
#33. v.;

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023 and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024. upon the availability and continued

.  .appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, wilh the authority to adjust budget line Items
w/th'in the price limitation and encumbrances between slate fiscal year's through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

See. attached Fiscal Details

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to continue, expand, and maintain infrastructure and provide
program support tolhe 12 existing Recovery Community Organizations (RCOs).and 19 Recovery
Centers providing Peer Recovery Support Services across New Hampshire. .The Contractor will
continue supporting capadly development and ensuring adherence to the New Hampshire
Recovery Community Orgailization Standards of Excellence (NHRCOSE).

Approximately 61.500 peer recovery support services including recovery coaching,
telephone recovery support, and-ln-center acllvilies. are provided annually.

The Contractor will continue serving individuals in NH who are 18 years of age and older,
Iheir families and caregivers who are seeking to gain, maintain, or enhance their recovery from
Substance Use Disorders. The Contractor will continue to serve as the Facilitating Organization
,f6rthe State's 12 RCO's. as well as provide oversight and support of the 19 centers. Facilitating
Organization services include project management, training, technical assistance, billing
functiorts, compliance monitoring, quality improvemenl assistance, data collection, and
monitoring outcome measures, " : . a*

Humon it to join ondfaniilia
ill pnoidinf opp6/litnttit9 for cUUent to othifvo htoUh ond indcptndtnct.
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. HU Excellency. Governor Chilstopher T. Sunurui
end ihe'Honoratiie Council .

Page 2 of 2
.1^ •

The Department will continue to mor^itor services through the review of monthly, quarterly,
v. 'and annual reports, to ensure: ■

•  Individuals in recovery from Substance Use Disorders., including oploid and/or
stimulant use disorders, receive comprehensive recovery support services;

• Certified Recovery Support Workers on staff dl NH RCps receive supervision as
required by the NH Board of Licensing for Alcohol and Other Drug Use Professionals;
and

•  Individuals receiving recovery coaching demonstrate significant 'improvement,
.statistically, in development of physical, mental, social, and cultural asseis that support
maintenance of recovery.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of.the original
-agreement, the.parties'have the option<to extend the agreement for up to five (5) years.and six
(6) months, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, ayallabie funding, agreement of the-
pajlies and Governor and .Council approval. The Department is exercising Us option to renew
■services for nine (9) monlhs of the five (5) years, six (6) monjhs available.

Should the Governor and Council no! authorize this request, the Department's strategy to
address substance misuse and substance use disorders may be negatively impacted, with fewer
.individuals gaining and maintaining recovery. Without access to community-based Peer Recbvery
Support Services, individuals may require addilional intensive trealmeni services, and some may

■.continue use !e.ading to negative, medical; legal, and child welfare consequences for themselves,
their farnjlies. and NH communities.

;■ Area served: Statewide .i:v.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Num'ber 93,788, F^INs T1083326 end
TI085759; and Assistance Listing Number 93.959, FAINs TI033509, T1083464. and TI084659.

In the. event that the Federal or. Other Funds become no longer available, additional
General Funds will riof be requasled to support this program. - .

Respeclfuliy'submlrted,

Lori A. Shibinelte
Commissioner
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DEPARTMENTOF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

FISCAL details SHEEf^
AMENOMENTiH RFP-io^'BDAS-OS-PEERR-OI-AOl

.05'95.'92'92fl510.TM10a00 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DlVISiON FOR BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. SABG ADDITIONAL

Hert>6rHomes, inc. (Vendor0f553S8)

Faderel Fimils . .

Slate Fiscal

Year
Class/Account Class Tilje Job Number Current /Vnount

Increase

(Decrease!
Revised Amount

$260,000.002022 074<5005B5 Cornmunity Grants! 92055501 S280.000 $0.00
2023 074-500585 CommuniN Grants •  92055501 $720,000 $0.00 $720,000.00
3024 074.&00589 Wetfare Assistance 92055501 $0.00 •$0.00 SO.OO

• ;v »
'

Sub/ola' S1.000.000.00 so.oo .  S1.000.000.00

Q&-95-92-920S10-38820000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT. OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL

HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL, GOVERNOR COMMISSION FUNDS

Stale Fiscal
Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number Current Amourtt
increase

(Decrease)
Revised'Amount

2022 074-500585 Community Grants . . •82058501 • $545,000 $0.00 $545,000.00
2023 074-500585 •  Community Grants 92056501 •v S505.000 $0.00 ' $505,000.00
2023 •  074-500589 Welfare Assistance 9205650! $0.00 $795,000.00 $795,000.00
2024 074-500589 Wetfaro Asslslarice .92058501 $0.00 $325,000.00 $325,000.00

Sub/otaf Sl.050.000.00 $1,120,000.00 $2,170,000,00

05-95.92-920510^3840000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. OEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL. CLINICAL SERVICES

66% Foderel Funds 3434 General Funds

Stale Fiscal,
Year

Class / Account Ctass Title .. Job Number Current Amount
Increase

(Oeaeaso)
'Revised Amount-;

2022 074-500585'. Contmur^ty Grants 92057501 SO.OO SO.OO r .. $0.00
2023 074-500585 Comn\unilv Grants -  92057501 $1,000,000 $0.00 $1,000,000.00
2024 , 074-500589 Welfare Assistance -92057502 $0.00 $250,000.00 $250,000.00

' !•-*' Sirbto/a/ ■ sj;ooo.ooo.oo ,  ir $250,000.00 $1,250,000.00

05.95.92-92201041170000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL
HEALTH. aUREAU.OF MENTAL H6ALH SERVICES. CMH PROGRAM SUPPORT

1  • - . . i.:.. - • • :I' .
-100% Gendrel Funds

Stale Fiscal

Year-
Class/Accour)l Class'tiBe. Job Nuniber Current Amount

Increase

(Decrease}
Reused Amount.

.2023 102-500731 Contract for Proorem Services '92056505 $0.00 $650,000.00 $650,000.00

SublOiol SO.OO .  . $650,000.00 $650,000.00

05-95'92-920510-704006oO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. H^LTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPt OF, HHS: DIV'FOR BEHAVORIAL H^TH,
BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS, STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT ends 9/28/23

100% Fodefal Funds ' "

State Fiscal

Year
Class f Account Class Title Job Number Current Amount'

Increase

{Decrease}
Revl^ Amouni *

-2022 074-500585 Communltv Grants 92057048 $575:000 $0.00 $575,000.00
2023 . 074-500585 Community Grants 92057048 $575,000 $o;oo $575,000.00

2023 .  074-500589 Welfare Assistance. .  92057058 $0.00 $1,500,000.00 $1,500,000.00
2024 074-500589 Welfare Assistance 92057058 $0.00 S660.000.0C '  $680,000.00

Si/bfota/ si.m.ooo.oo $2,160,000.00 $5,530,000.00

TOTAH S4.2QQ.OOD.OO| $4.200.000.00^ $8.400,000.00

Governor ervd Council Letter-Attachment

'  Financial Oetiir

, Pdjelofl



DocuSifin Envelopa 10: F69BDE^9-AA01-4E96-6ACD-C£C7EB6A8«4C .,'7.'r'.V-
i V**'

DocuSlcn Envcbpe ID: C5S€MED-450O-im2'867B-A3D28F65BB43 . vii, r--*" '

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Peer Recovery Support Services Facilllaling Organization contract is by. and •
between the Slate of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or
"Department") and Harbor Homes, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 23. .2022 (Item #33). the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions-sp^ifled in the Contract and In cohsidera'llon of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17, and Exhibit A. Revisions to
Standard Agreement Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, (he parties hereto agree to amend as follows:^

1. Form P-37 General Provisions. Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read:

September 30. 2023

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

.  58.400,000 ;■ ;

3. Form Pt^7, General Provisions. Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for Slate Agency, to read:
Robert W. Moore, Director.

4. Modify Exhibit B.^ Scope of Services. Section 2, Scope of Services, Subsection 2.5, Paragraph
,2.5.1. to read;

2.5.1. Meeting New Hampshire Recovery Community Organization Standards of Excellence
(NHRCOSE).

5. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services. Secllon 2. Scope of Services, Subsection 2.12, to read:

2.12. the Conlraclor'must work to ensure Recovery Comn>unily Organizations (RCOs) are -
prepared to meet or.exceed New Hampshire Recovery Community Organizalion Standards
of Excellence (NHRCOSE). which includes 28,slandards of excellence organized under six
(6) domains, as follows: . -

2.12.1. RCO Structure and Staffing;

2.12.2. Board of Directors (BOD);

2.12.3. Assessment and Planning;

2.12.4. Workforce Development:

2.12.6. Operations; and

2.12.6. Evaluation.and Monitoring.

6. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Services. Subsection 2.13, Paragraph
2.13.1, to read:

2.13.1. Status of meeting NHRCOSE standards in accordance with 2.12 above.
7. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services. Section 2. Scope of Services. Subsection 2.17, Paragraph

.2.17.2. to read:

'Hai^r Homes, Inc. A-S-1.3 ConlraclOf (ntlials " "
nrn nri»<» nc nccoo • not*

■V
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2.17.2: Ensure (he RCOs are operating and providing services in accordance with NHRCOSEand
CRSW slahdards:,and ;;

8. Modify Exhibit B.- Scope of Services. 'Seciion 2. Scope of Services. Subsection 2.22, Slate Opidiid,
Response (SOR) Grant Standards, by adding Paragraph 2.22.8, to read:

2.22.8.- The Contractor must collaborate with the DepartrhenI and other SOR funded vendors to
improve Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA) collection.

9. Modify Exhibit 8. Scope of Services. Section 4. Reporting Requirements. Subsection 4.2,
Paragraph 4.2.1, Subparagraph 4.2.'l.f. to read:

4.2.1.1. Status of.meeling NHfRCOSE standards In accordance with'2.12 above.

10. Modify Exhibit B. Scope of Services. Section 4. .Reporting Requirements, by adding Subsection
4.4. to read: '

4.4, The Contractor must submit an annual report for ̂ Stale-Fiscal Year 2023 to the Department
no laler than SOdaysafler the end. of State Fiscal Year 2023.. The annual report must Include
aggregate. ,de-idenlifiable data only, including;- but not timlled to:

i

4.4.1. Current status of each RCO under, contract.

4.4.2. Number and type of Peer Recovery Support Services (PRSS) provided by each RCO.

4.4.3. Total number-and type of PRSS provided across all RCOs.

4.4.4. Number and type of trainings provided. '

4.4.5. Amount of payments billed to Ihsurance by the Contractor, on behalf of the RCOs.

,4.4.6.. Tdtai amount of payments billed to Insurance across all RCOs,

4.4.7-. Participant dala'for each f^CO, including: .

4.4.7.2., PRSS engagements and activities; and

-  4.4:7.3. -Significant changes-and/or differences to recoyery capital and outcomes.
as indicated through the BrjerAssessment of Recovery Capital (BARC-lO)

. measures, .;

4,4:8. Participant-data across all RCOs, which includes:

4.4.'8.1.; Participant demographics;

4.4.8.2. PRSS engagements and activities: and

4.4.8.3. Statistically significant changes and/or'differences in recovery capiiat and
outcomes as indicated through BARC-10 measures.

11. Modify Exhibit 8. Scope of Services. Section 4. Reporting-Requirements, by addirig Subsection
4.5, to. read; •

4.5.' When applicable.- .the Contractor must collect and share dala with the Department as
-requested.-and'in a format approved by the Department.- •-

12. Modify Exhibit 8. Scope of Services. Section 5. Performance Measures. Subsection 5:1, by adding-
Paragraph 5.1.4. to read: *

5.1.4. '25% pf RCOs provide documentation demonstrating adherence to NHRCOSE standards.

'f'-r *

.Hartwf Homes, Inc. A:S-1;3

A ̂ '^9 C

ConUdctorJnilials
^,,,12/2/2022:
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p. Modify Exhibit B, Scop:e of Services. Section 8, Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity. Subsection 8.2^
Paragraph 8.2.2. to read:

8.2.2. Compliance with ail of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity standards for three (3) consecutive
months; or • "

14. Modify Exhibit B..Scbpe of Services, Section 8, Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity,.Subsecti^pri 8.7,.by
deleting it in its entirely.

15. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms. Section to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 60.36% Federal funds

39.64% NH SQR 2 Project, as awarded on August 9, 2021. by the US Departhienl
of Health and-Human Services (Us DHHS) Substance, Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA), CFOA #93.788. FAIN TI083326, arid NH SOR
3 Project, as av/ardedon September 23, 2022, by Ihe US DHHS. SAMHSA. CFDA
#93.788, FAIN TI085759; .

1.1.2. 8.81% Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, as awarded on
' Septeniber 16. 2021, by the-US DHHS, SAMHSA. CFDA #93.959, FAIN TI083464;

'i; and Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block Grant, as awarded oa
February 10, 2022. by (he US DHHS. SAMHSA. CFDA #93.959, PAIN TI084659;:
and

1.1:3. 11.91% Substance Abuse Prevention and Treatment Block'Grant, as awarded on
■  March 11. 2021. by the US DHHS.SAMHSA, CFDA #93.959^FAlN TI083509.

1.2. 13.81% General funds.

■ 1.3. 25.83% Other funds (Governors Commissibn)

16; Modify Exhibit C,.payment Terms. Section 3, to read: •

3, Payment-shall be bn a cost reimbursement basis for aclual expenditures incurred; in the
fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall, l>e in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibii C-'^,. SFY2022 Budget through Exhibit C-3, Amendment #1, SFy2024
Budget. ? • . "

17. Modify Exhibit C^ Payment Terms. Section 5. Subsection 5.7. Paragraph 5,7.4, to read:'

5.7.4. Food or water,-.

18. Modify Exhibit C. Payrrieni Terms. Section 5. Subsection 5.7, Paragraph 5.7.7, to read:;

5.-7.7. RESERVED

19. Modify Exhibit C-2, SFY2023 Budget, by replacing it in its entirety with Exhibit C-2, "Arnendment
#1. SFY2023 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein:

20. Add Exhibit C-J Amendment #1, SFY2024 Budget, which is attached hereto and incorporated by,
reference herein'. ' '

I  r.'

Harbor Homes, Inc. A.S-i;3 Coniractor inllials
'''• •- w... 12/2/2022
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All lerrris and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

Stale pfi^ew Hampshire
Deparlmenl of Health and Human Services

L2/2/2022

Dale

D»«vS>«nM fe/:

WjA S-
NameV'i^atoa S. fox

Director

Harbor Homes. Inc.

12/2/202?

Dale

■ ■ bMuf^ofd by:

.(Vtim, /'■tic
Name: och
Title:, ceo

■ii

Harbor Homes, Inc.
rCnO A-4 AAi

.A-S-i.2

A XC ^
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The preceding Amendmen!. having been reviewed by this office', is approved as lo form, substance, and
execution. ...

OFFICEOF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

12/2/2022

Dale

OwCijSipntd \rf.

ovjun.

Name:

Tille: Atcomoy

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment'was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the Stale of "New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ' (date.of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARV OF STATE

W,.

* Date Nanie:

Title;

Harbor Homes, Inc. .. A-S-1.2

r% C . . r - I

'.•y*
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Etfitbit C>2. Amtntfrncnt #1-

$FY2023 eud9«t

New Hampshire Department.of Health and.Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD:

Bidder Name: Harbor'Homes. Inc.

Budget Rcpucst tor: Petr Recovery Support Services Ftctmadhg Organtssdon

Budget Period: SFY2023 July t. 2t>22 through Jur>e 30.' 20a

.  rw-,- —
• —^ ♦-..-.--Total Program Cost. -Cenhsetor Share/MatEh/TMrd.Partyl^ayM- Funded

UneNsm . Direct ■. tf Indirect' — Total ::Otrec< ■ -.--.indlreet-. •  Total -- Otroct- • • — To« .
1; Tola SaoQitWages $ 51S.833 -s 51.583 s 567.417 ".S ■ •$. S $' 515.633 S 5.1:583 4  . 567.417
Z Emotoveo Oereto S 162.489 s 16.249 s 178.738 $  -s-. i 5 S: 16Z469 4 11249 S 178.738

4. Eoutoment: :• s S: $..■ $  : S i 4
1952 $.

4
32,474

Rental s S s. $' -.J.. i S  •t-i .4 4
. Reoatr and Mantenance s S  .. s -• S s  . i  - S 4

Purchase/Oeoreoauon - s 6.000 s 600 s 6.600 t  -i S - i' S  6.000 i- 600 $ 6.600
t>. SvppHes:. .. s ••• . $ s. •• $. S  ~ •■ i. .r - S-. • ■i 4

Educaucral .$ i  :>t 5  ■- S4i .^.• $ S: 5  *1 4 K"- $
. Lab s 5  i-" 5 S  r ^ S $ S  • t i  '.r; S  ' •

Phannacv s  - $ t $ S ,s . --'i. 4. $
Medut : s -• s s • - 5- s S  - t. — i , k
Office 8 1.70O s 170 s 1.870 S  V. v.; s $  t- %  1.700 4 '  170 i 1.870

e.- -Tr»«el s 21.900 s 2.190 5 ■24,090 5 . —s% » 'S $  21.900 i - Z190 4 24.090
7:. Occupancy ' <. s 21.600 2,160 & 21760 i .s; S S  . '21.600 s 2:160 S 21760
S. Cuncm Exsenses • i i .• $  i S' $  :-•• S 4 . 4

Tetepnono , . 4.380 i 438 & 4.818. $ J-' .V -S S  - A380 4 •438 i 4.816
Postage i 100 i '10 $ .» .110 S \ Kr 'f i s S. ■ 100 S .  10 s 110
Stfoscrlptiorts s 1.000 S 100 i >. 1.100, :i> s» S  r. S  I.OOO. ■4 100 s 1.100
Audit and LeqN. i 1.200 i 120 t - 1.320 $ . • . -■ s . s S  - 1.200 4 120 4 .  1.320

* mswance i 1.400 s 140 s 1340 I  . S  • ... s S  1.400 4 140 S 1.540
Board Expenses v' s . s ■  ■ . 5 5 s S  '.i - i s 4 4

9. Scrtware s 236.601 i 23.650 s •262,351 s •• s 5  - . S  231501 5 23.650 4 •  262.351
ia MsSedno/Canmuncstions s _ 15.000 % -1.500 s 16.500 $ s .S S  15.000 4 1.500 S ■ 16.500

St^ Education and TralnmQ s 53.420 $ 5.342 s 58.762 $ s 5 S  S1420 4 .  5.342 4 51762
tZ SvOcontractsfAgreonous s 4.148.682 s 414.668 s 4.563.550 5  • S  . if.:- -S ..-i. S  4.141682 i -414.868 S 4.S63.S50
11 Other (spec»:e Uf-sarn <$ s .i'- s S s 5  >• S  --v 4 • •• .-i; .4 •

■S . s i s s S s 4 $•
s it. v->. s V  •>; s- 5  .1 S  .r-r S  • • $  . •« $  i:.- S
% fi r-" s s S* • • .5 S 5  .> 4 s
s s s  . • >• . t  i- s .s s i. 4

$ s r$- S  .-V- $ $. i 4
!. s 5 -• s S - •; s. - s  . • 4.. . ^''rr'- 4- .  ,• .

.■ TOTAL s S.222.727 t 522.273 % 5,745.000 i 5 4  1221727 4 522.273 T-—STSRSn
indiroct.As A Percent ol Direct 10%

'

1.1 'i .

HatoorMffnes. Int..
RFP> 2022-eOAS/lfrP££RR.O
&dAlt C-Z Amen^enl 9^. SFTZOn Budget .

« '

•

12/2/2022

.'.H
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Exhibit c4.'Am«n0iTteftt
SFY2024 Budpet

New Kam^hlre Department of Health and Human Services
COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Bk5d«r Name: Harbor Homee. Ind

Sudpet Rtqitett for. Peer Recovery Support Service* PacDOatlr^ Orgcnizstion

.Bu(*pet Period: July 1. 2023 thietiph'Se^ember 30. 2023 -

- '• .Tetal.pro(iram Cost. . 'V •Vii:-.-'; r .Contracter Share / Matth/Thhtl Parly Payee- M;- For^ded by OMMS-eontrect share

Utiettem . ■ ..•w Otrect .—r -tndtreet^ r- • Total." - •—Olred. tndfrect .  Total .Direct' —• "•Indirect— -y ■TrtaJ— -

1. Touil Saisywaoes S 128.95S S 12.696 $ 141.654 J S' -i. - %' i 128.958 5 1^896 s -  141:654

2. Emptoyee Benefits S *5,136 s 4.514 ii 49.649 i s S i . "45^136 S 4.514- s 49.649

3. Corvsuttants s 7.39> $ 73i s 8.119 S s S  v-f. i •  ̂.3Sl & •  . 736 s 8.119

4. Equipment; s s. s • S s S i <r s s

Rental $. S  .-:v s s  ■ s 5 s S  -- %
Repeir and Mttnterrance s - 5 --.i-v s s s S  • s ■' s •• s >

PurchaseA3eoreei2i>on s 1.500 i tSO $ 1.650 S S s s 1.500 .4- •  150 i' 1.650

5. Stales: i j,. 5 s S S  .'W. 5 i. -• ."S s '•

tducationai s S s $• $> ,-i- S i s

> Lab s S s s s J s S- s

Pharmacy „ s S s 5 S s s. s 5

Mooica) s s s ' $ S 5 •S- $ 5

Office $• <25 5 .43 s 466 S. S i $ -425 s 43. S 468:

6. Travel s 5.475 i 546 5 6.023 s i' s s 5.475 s 546 i 6.023

7. Ocorpartey s 5.400 i 540 s 5.940 % i $ t 5.400 s 540 s "5.940

& > i s • . s S" $ $ .T s •• • - . i •

Teiechene s 1.095 5 110 s 1.205 % $ . ■ S  •' 5 -  1.095 s 110 s 1.206

Pestaoe- i 25 i 3 s 28 s >-r- S  r'.. . r' • S 25 s •3 s 26

- Subscriptions i .250 $ 25 s- 275 •s s $  ; s 250 $ •25 $ 275

. Audii and LeceS V 300 $ 30 i 330 s  •> S S  ri s 300 s 30 s 330

trtsurance I 350 S . 35 s 385 s S  . .. s .350 s 35 t 365

Board Eapensei s 5 i.«k. ■s. %  -A- $  -v s s. s .-

9. Software s 59.625 S 5.963 s 65.568 s $ i s -  59.626 .s "  -5.963 s - 65.568

10. Marketino/Cemfflunlcations s 3.750 i 375 t 4.125 s- . 5  • . 5  -H. s 3.750 s 375 4 4.125
11. Si^ Education and TreininQ s 13,355 5 1.336 s 14.691 S  T %  ■ 5 s 13.355 s < . 1.338 i 14,691

1

1

s 667.665 5 86.768 s 954.673 s S 4 $ 887.685 5- •86.786 s 954.673

13. Other Ispocdicoelsilsrtuinurnay): s $ 5 s S S  -i $• l-v s /.I-. $ -•

S  -• S s J. s  -• s s s 5  • .

%  •• 5  - s .-i> •$ .» 5  -v .$■ -l.-- •s 5

S s ». •>. - J s s S  -■ S

i s  - S t 5 s 4 S S
s  - s s S  .T 5 • -sr s s Sr S '•..1

% . i i.- s •S- .. •• s •s .  • ■s .♦•VvVc " i
•  TOTAL s 1.140.909 s 114.091 % 1.255,000 % J s % 1.140.909 5 114,091 i 1.255.000

trrdtrect A» A Percent o( Direct

Har^ Homes. Inc
RFP-2022<8OASU}5-PEERR-O1-A0t
BOMtC-X Amcndcnentei.SFY2024 6udpet

10%

12/2/2022
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STATE OF NF.W H AMPSHfRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

WF/5/DN FOR BEHA ViORAL HEALTH

'!29PI>:ASANT!nKFirr.CU.NCOKb,Ml 0J30I .
<0>-27|.9M4 l.S00-852-3345FtL9544

Fet: 60J-27MJJ2 1'DD Accui: l^00>735-2964 www.dlitt.eli.ti>v

March 7. 2022

His Excetiency, Oovernor Christopher T. Suhunu
and the ,HonofBhIe Council

State House

Concord,.New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION "

Authorize the Oepartmenl of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to award a contraci with Harbor Homes, Inc.. dlb/3 Harljor Care (VC#155358), Nashua. NH. in
the amount of $4,200,000 for Facilitating Organization services and program support for Recovery
Commuhi^ Organizations and Recovery Centers, with the option to renew for up to an additional
five (5) years and six (6) months,,effective April 1,2022, or upon Governor and Council approval,
wrfiichever is later, through December.31, 2022. 66.90% Federal Funds. 6.10% General Funds.
25%. Other Funds (Governors Commission).

Funds are available inlhe following accounts.for State Fiscal Years 2022 and 2023, with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and. encumbrances between
slate fiscal years through the Budget Office, rf.needed and justified.

06-95-92-920610-19810000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG AND
ALCOHOL. SABG ADDITIONAL (100% Federal Funds) >:

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

.Account
Class Title Job Nuniber

— V •• •

Total Amount

2022 102-600731 Community Grants 92055501 •$280,000

2023 074-500585 Community Grants 92055501 $720,000

Subtotal $1,000,000

06-95-92-920610-33d20DOO HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS,. HHS: DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF DRUG AND-
aCCOHOL, governor COMMISSION FUNDS (100% Other Funds)

state

^Fiscal Year
Class /

;  Account
Class title

1  y*.

Job

Number
'Total Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs 920585.01 $545,000

2023 074-500585 * Community Grants 92058501 $505,000

•

..
Sublofa/ $1,050,000

Tkt Dtpori/ittnt of lUotihond Human'S€riMC<$'HUtion U lofoio c^oi'iin!tk$ and fdmttitt
"in providing oppertunkkt foedtixtm Ic oehUio hroUh and indrpendenet
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Hit Exoetten^. Governor Chr<sto{^srT. Sununu
end the Honorable Coundl

Pfige2ot3

i'::-

j:

OS-96-92'920616-33640000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALtH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DtVISfON FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, BUREAU OF. DRUG AND
ALCOHOL, CLINICAL SERVICES (66% Federal Funds 34% General Funds)

State

Fiscal Year

Class /
Account .

Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2022 074-500505 , Community Grants 92057501 -  ' $0.

2023 074-500505 Community Grants ,92057501 $1,000,000

Subtotal S1,000,000

'05-95.92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT OF. HHSrDIV FOR BEHAVORIAL HEALTH. BUREAU OF DRUG & ALCOHOL SVCS,
STATE OPIOID RESPONSE GRANT (100% FEDERAL FUNDS)

state

Fiscal YeeY

.Class/
Account

Class Title
Job

Numtrer
Totat Amount

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Program Svs- 92057048 $575,000

2023 074-500585 Community Grants 92057040 $575,000

. Subtotal $f,150.000

Total $4,200;000

EXPLANATION

the purpose, of this request Is to deyelop.and maintain infraslruclure and jDfovide program
support to the existing 12 Recovery Cornmunity Organizations (RCPs)'ar>d 19 Recovery Cenlers;
providing Peer Recovery Support Services (PRSS) across the state. The Department's goal Is to
maintain a statewide. geographlcBlly diverse PRSS network through the service of e Facilitating
Organization XFO) that will support capacity development and ensure adherence to consistent
standards for the 12 RCOs statewide that provide Peer Recovery Support Services.,

"Hiis contract will serve NH citizens over the age of 17. their famlilc.s'and caregivers. vvho
are seeking to gain, malnlain. or enhance their recovery from Substance Use Disorders across
the stale. According to the Substance Abuse Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA).
Peer Recovery Support Servlces'help people become engaged and stay engaged in the recovery
process, thus reducing the iikelihood of recurrence of use. PRSS are designed and delivered by
peers who are In recovery themselves and who are trained to help others be successful In their
recovery.

.Approximately 61,500' peer recovery support services including recovery coaching,
telephone recovery support.services, and in-center activities will be provided through Decemlw
31, 2022. These services, are essential to .address the serious consequences lof ongoing
substance use. Including death caused by overdose or other related factors.

The Qontractor will serve as the Facaitating Organization and subcontract with.RCOsTor
efficient use oif funds, oversight end support of all centers. In addition to providing operational
and programmatic funds to the RCOs," the FO will provide projecl.managemeht, training, lechnicai
assistance, billing functions, compliance monitoring, quality Improyement assistance^ data
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Hij Excellency, Governor Chfittopher T. S,ununj
and (he Honorable Counc2

Pago 3 of 3

collection and organlialion using RecoveryLirik"^ and review of outcome measures for all of the
RCOs^ The Conlraclor will work with RCOs to ensure RCOs are prepared to meet or exceed
national standards as described by the Council on Accreditation of Peer Recovery Support
■Services (CAPRSS). •

The Contractor will ensure individuals in recovery from subslance use disorders including
opiold andyor stimulant use disorders conlinue receiving comprehensive services that include
PRSS and parenting education services..

The OepartfTient will moniior contracted services using the following performance
measures;

•  A rninlmum of 18 Recovery Centers are open and providing PRSS. .v.-,'
•  RCOs ore ensuring Certified Recovery Support Workers on staff receive

supervision, es required by the NH Licensing Board.'

•  Individuals receiving recovery co'aching v/iH sliov/ s.tahstically significant
v:. improvement in development of physical; mental, social and cultural sssels that

support-maintenance of r-icovc.y. ••

The Department selected the Conlrectnr through a compe:itivc Ijicl process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department s website from December 13,
2021 through January 24. 2022. The Department received one (i) response that was rpviawed
and scored by o team Of qualified indiyiduals. The Scoring Sheet is atlached.

As referenced in .Exhibil A, Revisions to Standard Agreemenl Provisions, of the'attached
agreement, the parties have Iho option lo extend the agreement for up to an additional five (5)
years end six (6) month's, conijngeni upon satisfactory delivery pi servicos, available funding, •
agreement cf the parties, and Governor nnd CuuiKil approval. The shorter Initial contract period
and extended renewal options wero made necessary by the schedule of the. Federal funding
included in this contracl.- - -

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Oepartfncnfs overall
strategy to addres^the disease of addiciion to alcohol and drugs may be negatively impacted,
v/ith fewer individuajs gaining and maintaining recovery. VVithovil access to a communHy-based
Peer Recovery Support Services. many1nd:vid'uaL4-may requVc additional .intensive Irealment
servicos. 'Additionally, some individuals niay t.o.'-.linue in their active addiction, leading to negative
medical. . legal, and .child welfare consequences for those persons, their families, and
communiiies. resulting in much higher costs lo the Department and Slate. •

Area served; Statewide

Source' of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #-93.959 and 93.788 FAIN
#T(083509. TI083464 and TI083326

In the event that the Federal or Other Funds become no longer rivaitable. General Funds
will not be.requested to support this program. ■;

•* >■ " Respectfully submitted,

•  Lori A. Shiblnelie
Commissioner

•r.i
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts andiProcuremont

Spring Sheet

PrcjactlD C. RPP-2&22-PDA5-0H»EERR

Pro|ec(Titl» Peer Recowry Support Sanrlcet FacBttitinfl Ofgtnlnlion

■  l-»'

'

Maximum

Points

Available

• r * ' •

HARBOR CARE

11 rn iTii[71 ̂ eeeeiiuciB* Tfi' ' •  ..w-

Q1 • Exptfienco developing end
providlnB PRSS 50

,1.

29 '■ ■"

02 • SutconVacling procesi 30 27
03' EKpertonca providing
Irainliig end TA 20 18 "■ "

04 • B ach otfjce ekperience 20 20 .
05 • RCO ovfrfSlgM procasfl.
plan, and ilafrmg plan 25 25 . -
06-Quality Irnprovomenl plan -
utlfizirvg collected dels . 20

>  '' •
15

07 - ADocaUon of SOR fiividing ■ 28 17

09 • bOR standards compliance
preccis 25 15 '

Subtotal-Technical
f'

195 1S4

Cofl. - • - I'-J •

Budget < 70 30 . ;

Staffing LIsl 30 15

Subtotal - Cost 100 45

TOTAL POINTS
1,

205 209

.Reviewer Name

!

TWe. . .

SereSuttar Recovery Program Specialist

;Amanda8praeiman ■ 80R Contrscla and Program Manager „

Ayta Kendall ' . Peer trMegralion Specfalisl' Program Plarwlrvg and Review Speclalbl

iLevdeHeelh Busirxess Administrator ■

Joseph Harding Myeyaf of Subitenca Mliuie Panntng and EvalusUofl

V! p*
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Notice: This agreement and.oil of ils aluchiTienis shxil become'public upon submission lo Governor end
pjcecuiive Cbuftcil for BpproviBl. Any informotion ihai is priMiic, conndeniial or proprietary musi
be clearly.ideniined to.thc agency and agreed to in vrrliing prior to signing the contract.

acrekmem;
The State of New Hjunpshire ar>d the Ceniractor hereby mutually agree a.< follows;

CF.SERAI. PKOviSlONS

IDEfsTIFICATION.. . *
!.l Stale Agency Nome • /

New Hampshire I^artment of lleallh and Human Services
P  •

1.2 State Agency AddfC.<:i,

129 Pleasant Street ;
Concord. NH 0330I-.3857

1.5 Coniractor'Namc ••

Harbor Homes, Inc.

1.4 CoiUracicr'Addrcss ■

77 Northcostcm i3lvd. " .
Nashua, KH ' ' ^

•  S' .

1.S Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 882-5616

1.6 Account Numbc/

10-7940000U-.'i00535 ,

-1O-I93I0000-5OO385

10-33840000-500585

JO-3382O0OO-5OO73I

1.7 Completion. Date

December 31.2022 ;

h

1.8 'Price Limitation

$4,300,000

1.9 . Contmcling Officer for State Agency v:

Nalhan D. \Vhilc, Director •<

l;10 Stale Agency Telephone Number

(605)271-9631

1.11 ContraclorSighaiurc 3/3/2022
.'•"•DecwSUM *y:

ttiun,

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory >:•.
tlenry Och ' '

Chief of Operations

1.13 State Agency Signature ^ 3/4/2022 1.14 Narhc and Title of Slate Agency Signatory "•
Katja S. FOX.

Director i*
T.15 Department of Administmtinn. Division of Personncl.fT/opyr/icaWc/

. By: •' Director, On: ,

1.16 Approval.by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (i/.fippliciibU'). ~

„  "3/4/2022By;j, P'^'-

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council fi/"ri/Y»//fnWc) -

C&Cltem number: O&CMeetingDaie:

Page I of 4

-oa

Conlraciorlnilials



DocuSign Envelope (D; F698DEl9V\A0ME9d-6ACD-CEC7EB6Ad84C

ObcuSlgn Envttepe 10: C55E38£CM50CMl4a-B678nA3D28F656B43

DocuSign Envelope (Ch 4E2MSF>509C*4CF^Fe<2SfiF6S242fiOF

2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New

Hafflpshire, Kiing ihrou^ the agency ideniined in block t.l
("Stale")/ engages commctor identified in block 1.3
("Coftlractor'') to pc^onn. and the Conlreclor shall perform, the
work or sale of go^S, o; both, id^tilted and more particularly
described in the attach^ EXHIDIT.D which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

1 EFFECTIVF. DATE/COMPLETIO.N OF SKRVICES.
3.1 Noturtihslanding any provision of ihit Agreement to the
conlraty, and lubjett lo the qjpfoval of the Oovrmbr nnd
Hxecutive Council nf the State of New Hampshire, ifapplicablc,
this Agreement, and ell obligations of the parties hcrcui^er, shall
become effeciUt on the- date the Oovcrnor and Executive
Council ai^rove this Agreement as indicaicd in block 1.17.
tinlcis no sttch approval is required. In u^lch case the Agreement
shall becorrte effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the Slate Agency os shown in block 1.13 ("ElTecllve Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effeciiyc Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effeclive Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Ag^ement docs not t^ome
elTecitvc. the State shall have no liability lo the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete nil Services by the Cbmpleiion Date
specific in block 1.7.

4. CONDITlONALiNATURE OF AGRF:KM KM.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligfitioits of the State hcreunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereundcr, arc
contingent upon the availability ar>d continued appropriation of
funds afTeci^ by any .state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or othtrm^ rrKxHfics the
appfopriaiioh or.availability of funding for this Agreement end
the Scope for ̂ rvices prosfded In EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part, in no event shall the Suie be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such availi^le appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduclion^or termination of appropriated fund.s, the
State shall have llic right lo withhold payment until such rund.s
become available, if e^cr, and .shall have the right"to reduce.or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or icrminfition.
The Slate shall nhl be required to Wftsfer funds fn>m any other
account or source to the Account idenliried in block 1.6 in (he
mxnl funds in that Account arc reduced or unasvilabtc.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PA^'MENT.

5.1 The comract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified crid more particularly described tn'EXHIOIT C
which is Incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by Ihc State of Ihc coniracl price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all.
expenses, ofwhatever naiure incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Setvicea. the State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other lhan the oonlract price
5.3 The State reser>*s the right to oRsei from any amounts
oiheiwise payoble to thd Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts r^uired or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through KS.A 80:7-c or any other provision of law."
5.4 Noturithsianding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumsltftces, in no
event shall the total of all paymenl.s authonzod, or actually madc-
hcrcunder. exceed the Price Limitation set forth In block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE OV CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOVMENT
OPPOHTUNITV.

6.1 In connection with the performwe of the" Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, arid orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duly upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights ai^ equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if Itiis Agreement i.s
funded in any pan by monic.5 ofthc United States, the Contractor
slull comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or-ihc United States issue to implement these it|ul8lions.
The Contractor shall also comply sviih all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 Ouring.thc term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
bccaasti of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, bai^icap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will lake afTirmative'action to
prevent .such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Stales
Access to any of the Coniroctor's books, records and accounu for
the purpose of a.sccrtaining compliance with all rules, rc^luiqns
and orders, and the covcnonu, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSO.NNEU

7.1 The Cont ractor shall at its own expense provide all per»nnel
necea>;ary in perform (he Services. The Contractor warrariu that
oil personticl engaged ip (he Serv'ices shall be qualified to
pertbrm the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized (0 do so und^ all applicoble laws.
■7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during (he term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after (he
Completion Date in block 1.7, (ho Contractor ahall ruM hire, end
xh.ill noi permit any subcontractor or other persbn, firm or
corporation mlh whom it Is engaged in a eombln^ effort to
perfonn the Services to hire, any person who is a State employee
or ofltcial, who is materially involved in the procuiement,
administration or performance of (his Agreement. This
protision shall survive tcnnination of this AgreemenL
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shell be the Slate's repi^entaiive. In the event of any
dispute coriccming' the Inicrprciatlori of this Agreement, the
Contracting Orficcr's decision shall be fi nal for the State.

Page 2 of 4
Coniracior Initials

Date
J/3/2P22-
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8. EVENT OK DeFAULT/REME0IE5.

8.) .Any one or more of ihe followirtg ens or omi^ons of the
Contreetor ihill eonsiitute on event ofdefeult hereunder ("Event
ofbcfeuir):
.8.1.1 failure lo perform the - Ser\-iccs talisfacionly or^on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure lo submil any report requiri^ hereunden and/or
8.1.3,failure lo perform any other covenant, (erm or condition of
(his Agreemenl.
6.2 the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Stale may
take aoy one, or more, or all. of the fo1lo^v^nj Actions;
8 J.I five theControeior a written npliee tpccifyifq^the Event of
Defaali and requiring it to be remedied within, In the absence of
a greater or lew specification of time, thirty (30) days from ihe
date of the tuMice: and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effectivx two (2) days afler giving the
Ccmlractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Coruracior p written notice specifying ihc Evem of
Defauli and suspending al) payments lo be made under Ihis
Agreement and ordering that the portioii of the contract price
which would othcrwjK accrue to the Coniroctoi' during the
period from the date of such notice until such lime the Siaic
determines ihat ihc Contractor has cured the Event of Dcfauli
shoit never be paid to the Contractor,
8.2.3 give the Contractor a w-ritten notice ̂ >ecirying the Event of
Dcfauli and .set off against any other obligations ihe Stale may
owe to the Comracior any dimege.c the Stale suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8  give the Conraclor a wriuen notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat Ihe Agreement as breached, termirute the'
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

83. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shaif be deemed a waiver of its rights w'iih
regard to that E>tnt of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No excess fbilurr to enfWce any Eveni of Default sluill
be deemed 0 waiver of the right of the State lo enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, ihe State mey, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole,or •
in part, by thirty (30) days written rxuice to the Contractor that
the Slate is exercising its option in terminate the Agreement
9.2 In the event Of an early lerraination of this Agreement for
any reason other than .the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at. the State's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting GfTiccr, not later than nflecn (15) days aAer the dux
of termlnai'ion, a report C'Termination Report") describing in
detail all .Services perforrned, attd the contract price earned, lo
and Including the date of termination. The form/subject mottcr,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to those ofany FinalReport described in the alloched
EXHIBIT B. In addhiqn, at the State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, w)ihir> 15 days of noUce of eady terrhinalion, develop and

Dngc'O

submit 10 (he State a' Tronsition Plan for services under (he
Agreement. -

10. DATA/ACC ESS/CONKI DF.NTI AEnT/
PRESF.RVATlCiX.
lO.I Al used in (his Agreement, the word "data*' shall mean all "
information and (hing.s developed or obtained during the
performance of. or acquired or deydoped by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited (o. all atudics, reports,
flics, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial rq>rix)ucilons, drawings, analyses, graphic
' rcprescnlaiions, computer programs. compuiCT prihiouLv notes,
Iciiers, mcmorande, papers, and documents, all whether
ftnisheti or unfinished.

10.3 All data and any property which has been reedved from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpasc
undd this Agreement, shall be (he property of (he State, and
shfltl be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Conndentialily of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A.or other existing law. Disclosure ofdata requires -
prior wTiiicn appro^'al of the Siote.

11. CONTR/\CTOK*S REI.ATfON TO THE STATE. In the

performance of (his Agreement the Ccmractor U in all respects
an independent contractor, end is neither on a^nt nor. an

. employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
ohlcers, employees, agents or members shall have'aulho^y to
bind the Slate or receive any benefiis. workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided.by the State to its employees. -

12. ASSIONMENT/DELECATiON/SnBCbNTRACTS,
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without (he prior written notice, w^ich
shall be provided to the State at least fiAccn.(l Sj days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the Stale. For puipo^s
of this pamgraph, a Change .of Control, shall constitute
asstgnrnem. "Change of Conirpr* means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
u-hich a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes.the
direct or ihdircd otvner of fifly pereenl (50V») or more of the
xroting shores or stmilnr equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all.
of (he assets of the Coniraclor'.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subconliscted by the
Conirktor wilhoul prior written notice aixl consent of (he Slate.
The Stale is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and a.ssignment
agreements end shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agrocmem to wblch it is not a
party.

13. INDCMNiFICATlON. Unless othawtsc exempted by law,
(he Contractor shall iridcmnify and hold harmless the.St&le, its
ofTiccrs and employees, from end against any and all cteims,
liobililics and cons for any personal injury or prq>crly damages,
patent ur copyright infringement, or other claims sorted against
Ihe Stale, its officers or employees, whieh arise out of (or^whlch'
. may be claimed to arise dul.,.or) the acts or omUS^^of the

"f-*, ■ .1#-
Contracloflniliflls^"^'
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ConlTBClor, or subcQntrectora, including but not timiied to ihc
negii^nce, reckless or inlcntionalconducl. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 1}. NbtHHthstsnding the foregoing, nothing haeih
contained shall be deemed to constitute a.waivcrofihc sovereign
inununiTylpfthe ̂ ate, which immunity is hereby reserved to ihc
Stale. This covenwi in paragraph 13 shall survive the
terminaiion of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Conirtclor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
cofiiinuQusly fTialntaln in force, and sliall require any
subeoniroctor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following ins uniKc:
14.1.t commercial genend liability insurance again.^t oil claims
of.bodily inju^, death or pro^y damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess;.and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering oil properly
subject to siibparagraph 10.2 herein, in on amount not less than
B0% of the whole replacement volue of the property.
14.2 The policies described in siibpaiagreph 14.1 herein shall be-
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by ih? N.H. Dcpailmcm of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the Stale of New Hampshire.
14.3 TIm Contractor shall furnish to the Conlraciin'g Officer
Identified in blxk 1.9, or his or her successor, a cehificate(s) of
in.eui^ce for all insurance required urider this Agreement.
Contractor shaliolsoTumish to the Contracting Officer idemincd
in block 1.9, or his or her successor. certince)c(s) of insurance
for elf renewalfs) of insurance required under (his Apecment no
later than ten (10) days prior to (he expiration date of.-caeh
Insurance policy. The cenincatcfs) of insurance and ony
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
rcfCTCi^

15. workers: COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and u-orrants ih^ the Contractor Is in cbn^liahcc with or e.xempi
from, the requirements of N.H. RSAch8ptCT2lll-A f" Workers'
ComfXftsaiioh'y.
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of NJf. RSA chapter 2Sl>A, Contractor shall mairiiain, and
require any subcontrtmor or assignee to secure ond maimain.
payment of Workers' Compensuion In connection with
acti viiies wtich the person proposes to undcrt pkc pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall flimishtheContractingOfncer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofof Workers'
Compensation in the manner descrit^ in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable rcnewal(s), thereof, which shall be
attached and ere incorporated herein by reference. The Stale
shall not be responsible for p^menl of any Workers'
Compensation premiurns or for any other claim or benefit for
ContfiKtor. or any tubconlractor or employee of Contractor,^
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers* Compcmalbn laws in conneciion with the
performance of the Servicee urtder this Agrcemem.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to ibc otha party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the lime
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post OfHce cddm^ to the panics at. the addresses given in
blocks 1,.2 and 1:4, herein.

17. AMENOMENT. This Agreement rnay be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument In wTiting signed by the
parties hereto and, only after approval of »ch amendtncnl,
waiver or discharge by the Govemor-ond Executive Council of
(he State of New Hampshire unless no such approval la required
under the circumstances pursuant'to Slate law. nile Or.policy.

18. CHOICE OK.L\\y AND EOKUM.This Agreemcni shall
be governed, interpreted and. construed in i|ccordance with the
laws of the Stsue of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit ofthc parties and their respective successors
and assigns. TUd wording used in this Agreement is (he wording
chosen by the parties in expreiLs their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising ou| of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall hav^
cxclusivv jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONI'MCTINC TERMS. In the; event, of a conllici
btiwcen the icrm.> of ihi.x P-3? forrn fas modlfiirf in EXMIBrf
A) srid'or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIOIT A)shall control.. .

20. I'lIIKD r'AHTfES. The parties hereto do not intcrKl to
bencfu imy third parties and this Agreement shall not be
corlsirued to confer any such benefit.

21. fIFADIXCS. The betulings ihroughMt the Agre^nt arc
for rcrvrcncc. purposes only. aiid.the words contained therein
shairii) no way be hekl to explain, modify, amplify or old In the
interpretation, corLxtrvciton or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement. . "

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or ttiodifylng
provisions set.forth in the uttnched nXHllUT A are incorporated
hereinbyrefcrcncc. '

23. SEVERAniLI'n*. In thccveni any of the provisions of (his
Agreemail arc held by a.court of competent jurisdiction to
cumrary to any state or federal law, (he remalning^provisioos of
this Agreement will remain in full force and elTect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
cxecuted'in a.number of couriterpails, ̂ h of which sh^l be
deemed an origlital. constitutes the entire ogrccmenl and
understanding between the parties, and supcnedes all prior,
agreements and'undersiandings with respect io the subject matter
hereof.

Pflgcdofd IW
Contractor
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Mew Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Recovery Support Services Facilitating Organization

•* . EXHIBIT .

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions ' ./
•I , '

1. Revisions to Form P-37. Gencr;.jl Provision?

1.1. Paragraph 3. Efforlivo Dale/Coinplotir/n of ServicOiS. .is amended by adding
•  subparagraph 3,.3 as folio.vs:

3.3. The parties may c^.lend Ihe Agreement for up to an odcJiiional five (5)
years and si.v (f.) months fro.m Ihs Compielion Date, 'conlingenl upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, ayreemenl of Ihe
parties, and approval of llic Governor and Eyecutive Council.

1.2. Paragraph 12. AssignmenrOelegation.'Subconli'acts. is amended by adding
subparngrnpli 12.3 as fC'liov/::-: >

■  12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the- same coniractuai conditions as the
Contractor ancl llio Contrnctor is responsible to ensure subcontraclor
coriipliance v.'iili tlmsr? coiiflitioiis. The Conitaclor' shail have wrillen
ugreonicnis v/ilh cit subconlriiclu.'s..spocifyi v:j the work to be pedo/med
and how conoclive nclion shall ho managed if tlic subcontractor's
performance is -inadetiuale.. Thr» Conlfaclor sfiall manage the
sulKonlraclor's perfnrniancc on an ongoing basis and lake correcliv?;

*■ action as necessary. ThnConlracto:- sliall nnnually provide the State with
.. n list of ail sui)f:ontfaCiors provided for under this Agredmenl and notify

'  llie Slate of any inadermale subcotrlfaclor pcrforrnance.

-0.

[m
.nFP-2022 DOAS-OO I'^l=ERtt.Ot lly-lrt UV. '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Hiimon Services
Peer Recovery Support Services Facilitating Organization'

EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1; Statement of Work-

1.1. The Corilrnclpr shall provide services in (his Agreement to Recovery
Community Organizations in New Hampsfiirc that provide Peer Recovery
Support Services to indivldiK^Js with Substance Use Disorder and their families.

%

1.2. For the purposes of ihi.s Agrcernent. nil reh-.-rnnces to clays shalfinean business
or days. :

1.3. For the purposes of this Ayreemenl. all references lo business hours shall
• mean Monday Ihrpugh Friday from 0:00 AM to .1:00 PM. excluding state and

federal holidays.

2. Scope'of Services

2.1. The Conlraclor shall provide facilitalJiu) orcici'iizalion services for the 12
RecovoryComhiiinily Ocgani7.alion.=i (RCOs) in NH lhat providc Peer Recovery
Supporl Services lb individibds v.ii-i Sui»sUinco Use Disorder (SUD)'and their
families. The Cunlrnclor shall ensure sr.s vices Indudi;. bnl arc not limited to:

: 2.1.1. Providing fund:ng and assisl-mco lor opcraiional and programmatic
■■ supporl to o;ir|i RCO.

2.1.2. Supporllnc) ihc provision of ciuaiily Peer Recovery Support Services.
'  (PRSS) v.'ithiii cadi of the* selected Recovery Centers thai reside

within the RCOs.

2.2. The Coiilractof shall (inter into .subcorilracls with die existing 12 RCOs. within
00 days of the effective dale of the awarded conlrocl. The Conlraclor shall:
2.2.1. Provide a copy of each ci^ecutod RCO subcontract to tiie Department

-  v/ilhin five (5) days of contract execution; aivJ

2.2.2, Modify .curroni subcontracts .ay jecinired. or ei>ler into new
subconl'acls (or now (\ee.ovary Centers, located within exisiing
RCOs. as approved by the Dcparlinonl.

2.3. The Conlraclor iiuisl ensure new l^covery Centers are loccUed in underserved
geographic areas, and ore apiiroved by Ihe Dcparlmeni prior lo initiation.

2.4. The Conlraclor shall ot^suro all subconlrncicd RCOs: "

2.4.1. Provide: . ■ . . ■
2.4.1.1. Services within a I'nihimum of one (1) Recovery Center;

2.4.1.2. Recovery .Coachinci;

2.4.1:3. - Tcloplionc Rcc^voiy SupjKirl;
2.4.1.4. A v(;nue for recovery mutual supporl meelirvgs;

n> l»-20V2-LU>AS-05-l"€CRf>-0l IbiMf 1 ir.T..-i U\- CwWuniorUiinis
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EXHIBITS

.1 ,

.  2.4.1.5. Additional Recovery Suppon Services as determined by
Ihu local Rccovo^Conimcinity. lhnt may include but are not

•; limited lo:

2.4.1.5.1. ■ Parontinc.) and Faniily Support Programs.

2.4.1.5.2. Targclerd oul.*«:-acli programs.•

.. 2.4.1.5.3. ColjaPoralivri ' recovery programs with
community afjonciOK.

S' 2.4.1.5.4. TranS|>ortHtic>n assistance related (o recovery
v:. SUpfX^ftS. ' -

2.4.2. Engagn wilh: . >:

2.4.2.1. Local and regir)n<j| parlndrs including. t)iil not limited lo:

:v 2.4.2.1.1. Rc-gi.tjnal I VIjIIc f-tcallli Nelv/ork. tisjed ■ in
•A(>{u:iKh>: F. RcyioMMl Pnl^lic Hr.nllli Network, to

;  participate: in continuum of care development
yvork.

2.4.2.1.2. KegionnI Ooonvay.
.v." .V, ■ ■■ ' '"i''

2.4.2.1.3. fs^cnlal Heollh Poor SupparVServiccs within the •
■  •'conmujiiitv. ,.7

■  2.4.3. Coordinate v/ilh Mental Henilh Peer Support-Centers ,to ensure
parlicipaids aro rc.fnrrecl to the PvVer Suptmrt Conlc-r or Recovery

-• Center UuU best suits tlic r needs.

2.4.4. Cnin[>ly' witli alt apjitio'ilile lUak: and lederni lavvs, rules, and
.. regulations. '

.r 2.5. Tlie Contractor shall y/ork v/ilh eacli RCO to dcvoioj) annual work plans that
identify goals and aciioft steps to reocti set goals. The Conlrtictbr shall ensiire

■  llie, work pJan reflects each RCO's adminislmlive capacity and.readiness and
Includes, hut i.s not limited to:

• 2.5.1.. fVIeeliny the Council on Accrodilalion of Poor fRccovery SupjXirt
Services (CAPRSS) standards.

2.5.2. Medicaid cnrollmoni and blllinci.

2.5.3. Capacity l)uildiMg.

2.5.4. Sustfiinabllily. ■■ "

2.5.5. Service deveiopinent. • ■

2.6. The Contractor shall work with the RCOs 10 mainlaii) e.^.istiny Recovery Centers
or establish new Recovery Centers in underserved geographic regions that do
'not have an existing Recovery Center. .Tlie.Cnnirfictor^sliall: y—

Rrr'-?07?-niUS-W+'(.I.UI^Ol J H-wJiw *■<:
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EXHIBIT B

2.6.1. Respond to requests from, grassroots groups leading related
advocacy efforts In communities vMh little to no recovery resources.

•  2.6.2. Meet with communiiy stakeholders to identify gaps in and barriers to
services.

2.6.3. Mc.oi v/ith tdenlified groups to present on the functions and benefits
of the Facilitating Orqanizmlon. includinc) but not liiniled to:

2.G.3.1. Access to i"i supportive recovery coinnuiiiily.

2.6,3.2.' Availatile lechnicai assistance and tralnin-;! opporiunities.

2;6.3.3. Rcpoding .'ind cam collection.

"2.6.3.4, Staic.vidc resources.

2.6.3.6. Back office su.oporl.

2.6.3.G. Funding opportunities ■

2.0A. livaUiate tiie ide-ntilied gruiips f\ocovory Center's cunenl programs
;.ukI poiicius lo tlelermine tliC'ir organlzatiana! readiness and capacity
to.adopl I'.ny best practices nr rociuirod.cgniriiCI slnndards.

2.6.5. Assist Idenliiied groups "lo enii)eci Ihe Peer Recovery Supports
Services {PRSS) RCO model.

2.7. The Contractor sliall provide back-nffieo support-functions,'US needed, for all
subconlrar.iRd f-iCOs." 'the Coniraclor shall ensure supporl functions include.

'' 6iit arc not liniilcd lo.assistanco with:

2.7.1. I'luman resource actix'llms.

2.7.2. Infofinalioniochnoloriy. :

2.7.3. Policy and procedure developinenl. - -

2.7.4: Grant v.'iiting. •

2.7.5. Conipliance inoniioriny.

2.7.G. Qualily improvement. " . - .

■  2.7;7. Dala coHeclion and nianayemont. ■ •

■  2.8. The Contractor shall ensure billing services arc available to each RCO until Ihe
RCO can pcrlorm billing functions on thelt own. Billing functions sliall include.

•  but are itot limited to: .

2.8.1. Credentialing for insiirance liilling.

2.8.2. Submilling claims for PRSS participani services covered by Medicaici
lo the appropriate Managed'Care Organization (MCO),

2.8.3. ■ Disbursing payments received from MCOs lo the appropriate RQp.

RFP-iCZZ'SD/XS-OS-PCCRS-OI Kviv«
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EXHIBIT B

... 2.9. The Contractor shall support the ahllHy of each" RCO to open and sustain n
minimum of one (1) Recovery Center. The Contractor shall: ' ,

2.9.t. Work vsiih each RCO that plans to open a new Recovery Center to
develof) a wrllten plan that includes, hul is nut limilod to:

2.0.1.1. The ciiireiU orgar^izatiotial structure of Iho-RCOs Recovery
.  . ... Center or the RCOs readiness to open a Recovery Center.

as apj:>rC'priale.

,2.9.1.2. The process for acquiring and.'Or idiahiiilaling a facility to
soi vf; as a F<ecovcry Center.

2.0.1.3. Tlio RCOs financial viability to siifipurt tlie Recovery
Cenlr;i.

2.9.2. Ensure training and technical assistance is available to Recovery
Center staff, vvhicti may include but is not limilecl.tr':

2.9.2.1. Peer Rc^vivory CoachiiKi Services. ^

2.9.2.2. Tuluplinnc: Rprovary Support Services.

2.0.2.3. Co-O(y.;iiifin:j inunl.al hCvSltli and subslanco use disorders
A  •« and recovery.

Family dynamics of nvUlirriion and recovery..

'■* w 2.0.2..3'. Ap|)l;Oeitirjn of c:llilcol <:<hIl's for CRSWs and volunteers.

2.9.2.(:'. Iniyrmvation Seourily. Privacy, and Heallji Insurance
Portability and Accountabilily.Act (I.IIPAA) training.

2.9.3. Work V/ilh each RCO to ensure suslainaliiliiy of a Recovery Center(s)
.and ser\'ices. Ttio Contraclor shall:

,  2.9^3.1. " VVorl-. v/ith each RCO to develop a wriilen plan to sustain its
Recovery Cenlerfs) and services.

2.9.3.2. Assist RCO-s to sftcure funding from olher public and
private sources to ensure ongoing, suslainability of
services.

2.10. The Contractor shall monitor each RCO lo ensure compliance vyiili suhconlraci
reguiremenis through ocilvilies whlcli may include, but are not limited lo: :
2.10.1. In-person or virtual Iji-monthly meetings.
2.10.2. In-person site "visits.

2.10.3. Qutirlorly and micJ-iorm meetings,.
2.10.4. Telephonic a'ncl email correspondence.

2.10.5. Ad hoc meetings, as.needed to address real-time- issues. ^ -.4

rirn.j'oi? BO.^S OS-PI=»:Kn-OI ilj;Ui; n^^n.-n.x" (kcun-ioi Imusu .
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EXHIBIT B

»'■ • i, , ' ,

'. 2.11. The Conlraclor shali utilize loglslical and other support, as directed by the
OepartnVenl, to facililolc a Cdhnnunily of Practice that allov/s' RCO
artminislraiors arid .leaders lo osiablish .and slrnngihen cogperaiion,

r. .v. coDaboralion, and inforinnl mcnio/ing among RCOs. The'Contractor shall:
2.11.1. Prganizf regular on-going; meetings of the PRSS Community of

•- Practice.

2.11.2'. Ensure iiiGetings are-v/iclo!y advcTtiscd lo all RCOsi staiewicle and to'
other PRSS siakchoidors.

2.12. The Controidor shal! worK to ensure RCOs -are propared to nieel or exceed
national standards as doscrihed by llu; Council on Accrodilation of Peer
Recovery Support Services (CAPRS5). Uml include bul are not lihiited to:-

2.12.1. .CAPRSS Core S(aMilard*.i (v1.1). wliic.li include:

■  2.12.1.1. PrincipU;,s: ,, ■
-  2.12.1.2. Pcopli! :

b.

2.12.1.3," Prncli-to.c. oijfj ..

2.12.V.4. Pciformj-'u;;.

-"2.12.2. CAPRSS O|ilioiiril Siandards (vO.I) rotated Ip':,

2.12.2,1. . Recovery ConniLinily Cohtc-r; and

.  2.12.2.2. Reoovo'y CoachiiKj.
•s . . ft * '

2.13. The Contracior shall provide- current, basolino status of oacli of the existing
RCOSf lo Iho Department. v«iili!:i 30 days of the .effective.date of the
Agreen'ienl. The Contracior shall onourl- r.urront. Inseline status information
includes, but Is not limited to:

2.13.'1. Status-of m&eiiivg CAPR.SS Core and Opiional Standards; as
described ahovo.

2.13.2. Specific areas of Pf^SS experllsi';. •

2.13.3. Recovery Coaching •

2.13.4. Telephone Recovery Se.'vices. • . •

2.13.5. "l.onalioii.aiK.I service hours of (he current Recovrjry Centers. .

2.13.6. Number of staff and volunlecrr, and percentage of them that have
been credecilialed as a Certified Recovery S'upporl Worker (CRSW).

2.13.7. Status of Medicold onrullmenl, contracting and credentialingiwillt
Managecl Care Organizations (MCOs) and bilfing for PRSS.

2.13.8. Anhual budget lo include all funding sources. ••
2.T3.9, "Statusof an oryani/.ntinnal susiainabilliy plan. 'I. (

,  , H i?
r%FP-2023 B'.)AS-(i:-PF.r:r'-:R-0l IKNr.t j I'V. _
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EXHIBIT

2.14. The Conlraclor sliall collaborate wiiii lonhnicai assistance providers, as
direcied by the Department, to dovclop and provide training and technical
assisiance.

2.15. The Contractor shall provide training and lochnical assisliince to each
subcontracted RCO to ensure that all RCOs meel all reciuiremdnts set forth in
this RFP.

2.16. The Cohlrar.lor sliall iniplenieni a ciaUi cotloction nnd orrjanizalion process
approved by ihe'Deparlmont that includes:

2.16.1. -Pfovicling each RCO access to and training on Ihe RccoveiyLink""-'
recovory-basoci c)o«7tronic data colitrclion system as identified and
approved by'lhe Depailmeni.

2.1c.2. Ensuring ail RCOs enter dala into RccoveiyUn':''-'. Including but not
•  liinilcd to:

2.1G.2.1. Demographics. Uml includf! Ijui are not tiniiied to:

2.1G.2.1.1. Gender.

2.10 X. 1.2. Aye.

2.10:2.1.3., Elnnicily.

2.1C.2.1.4. Race.

2.16.2.1.5. Vclornn Stains.

2.10.2.1.5. So.xifnl Orienlallon. "

2.16.2.2. Oiilcon'ic Mensurc-s tiir-il inr.lndn. hot are not liiniled lo:

2.1G.2.2.1. Suhslanc'j use.

,v 2,10.2.2.2. Crime-and criminal justice.

2.10.2.2.3. Employmenuind education.

2.16.2.2.4. Stability in housing.

2.16.2.2.5. Reliable tfansporiaiion.

2,10.2.2.0. Social connecledness.

2.10.2.2.7. Lencilli of engagement.

2.10.2.2.8. Perception of care.

2.16.2.2.9. Income.

2.1.6.2.2.10. Heallh insurance coverage.

:  2.1G.2.2.11. Subslanco Uf.e Disorder (StJO) Irealmenl.

r{FP-2022-COA$.05-PriERKOJ
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EXHIBIT B

-  2vl6.2.2.-12. Recovery capital: "as measurecJ by Brief
Assossinonl of Recovery Capital (BARC-10)
scores.

2.16.2.2.13. Quality of lifo.

2.17. The Coniractor shall coiiabcrnu*# '.with the DoparltnetU and other providers
Idei^iined by the Deparinieni lo:

2.17.1. Provide informaiion necessary for the Depciilfhoni 10 evaluate and
monitor the Conlractor's performance of scTvices:

2..17.2. Evaluate.tlial li.io KCOs are operaling and providing services per.
CAPRSS and CRSW.staiK'larcis: and

2.17.3. Evcilualo PRSS piuvided by ROOs IrKlividu-.^lly and on an aggregate
level, incluciing participant level outcxMhos

2.18. The Contractor shall actively promote the availcibiiity. purpose, aiid value of
PRSS across New Hampshire. The Conlrcictur slinll ensure promolional

•  activities includO: but lire not lin)ilc:d to; • '

2,10.1. Presenting nl lo.cal and' state-wido meetings; v/orkshops and
conferencos in r:;o.nji.inclion\vi!ri RCO Ic.idersliip. The Contractor shall

;; ■ ensure information for presentolions incUidd but is not limlicd to:

2.18.1.1'. t.ocation.

2.18.1.2. pair.-. • "
;2,18.1.3.. Title of meeting, worksiiopis). or conferencc(s).

2.18.2.. Other activities approved by tlie Oeparloiem.

,2.1£).-The Contractor shall fHciljlalo tnonllily .RCO Leaclersliip {Association)
Meeliiigp.The Coniractor shall ensure the RCO Association:.

2.10.1. Connects RCOs v.-ilh'PRSS-related statewide resources.

2.19.2. Encpuragcs participation hy nil RCOs in the slate.

"" • 2.19.3. Develops objectives for increasing capacity and quality improvement
o! PRSS. ; '■

2.19.4. Provides a Jorum for shared teaming about/changes in the field of
PRSS.

2.19.5. Provides information lo Its memt)ers about,available resources and
funding opportunilies. ■

2.20. Tho Conlfactor shall cicllvely and regularly collaborate with the Department to
..enhance, conlracMnanagemenl and improve results.

itf-P2022-Cn/.S-05-r'rr.nR-0l •H.vT.ch Ho-'OS Kr- InJlO't
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.  ■> EXHIBIT B

2.21. The Contractor shall participnie in meetings witli the Depvarinienl on a ,monthly
basis, or as olhervvise requested by the Depiirimenl. to ensure compliance v/ith ^
the coritraciuai requirDF.hents. • •:

2.22. ^Staie Opioid ResoonsQ; fSOR") Grant Standards

2.32.1. The Coniraclor sholl eslnhlish foVmal Information sharirig and referral
>;• agreen>enis between liie RCOs and Uie Doo»\vays in compliance wllli

all applicable conlidenliaiily laws, including <\2 Cf-R Part 2 in order to
receive poyinents (or servir^es funded wiili SOR resources.

2.22.2. the Coniraclor slL-nll ensure indiviciunls roiveivimj services rendered
(rom SOR funds report past or curren! use of", or heing.al risk of using
opioidsorsliinulanls.

2.22,d. The Gonlracior slialt coordinnic coinplaiion oJ Government
Performance Resulis Acl initial interview and associaled follow-ups at
si.x (G) .incniths and discliarge for individuals leferenced in section
2.22-.1 with Regional DoC'r^.Vt^ys.

. 2.22.4, The Conlracior shall-cnsuro Ih-i! RCOs leceiving SDK funds accept
clients on nnd (.acilitato client access to l-QA-fipprovod modicatioiv
nssisicd Ircnlnronl foropioid'use disorder QUO.

2.22.5. The Contractor sIibII ensure.- that SOR granl'funds are not uscd -to
ixirqliase. prescribe, or provide nianjuanH o/ for providing treatment
using inarjjOriMa. Thv! Co.nlraclor shall ensure;

2.22.5.1. Trualinc-iil in this coiitoxt Includes the troatment of OUD;j

.2.22.5.2. Grant funds are not providud to any individual or
'.v organization that provides or permits marijuana use for Hie

purposes of treating subsinnce urie or mental health
,  disorders.

2.22.5.3., This marijuana rdatriclion ajjplies-to nil subcontracts and
mornorarKlums of understanding (MOU) ihal receive SOR

... lunding. • * ,
.2.22.0. The Contr.-icior shall collaborate with the peparlment to understand

and comply with all apfiroprlale pHHS, Slaie of NH. Substance Abuse'..
'  and Menlat Health Sen/icos Aclitiinislralion. and olher Federal terms,

conditions, and requirements.

2.22.7. If the Conlracior intends to disiribulc FontanyJ tost strips, the s.elected
"  veiidor(s) must provide a. F.entanyl lest strip utilizalidn plan lb the

Department for approval •()nor. to implementalion. - The sei.eciod
"  veiidoi(s) must ensure the uiilizalion plan incluclr^'S. but Is nol limilecl

lo:

2.22.7.1. internal policies for the dislribulion of Fenlanyl

RrP-'2C?',;^tLiAS Oj PCERK-Ol iLnrtw Maitios uu
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EXHIBIT B

2.22.7.?. OisthtSulion methods and frequency: and

2.22.7.3. Oflier Key flala as requested by Ihe Department.

•  • 3. Exhibits Incorporated

3.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Hoalth information in compliance
v.'ilh tlio Standards for Privacy of individually Identifiable Heaifh Information
(Privacy Rule) (45 CRf>I Parts lUO and 11^4) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accounlat>ilily Act (HIPAA) of 1995. and in accordance with the allached
Exhibit I, Business Associate Aqreemoni. which has been exficuted by the parties.

'■ 3.2, The Contractor shall mat^age all ccmfldofitial dala related to" this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhiljit K. ONUS Infornialion Security Reciuiremenls.

.. 3.3. Tl)e Contractor slrail comply with all Exhibits IJ> through K, which are attached
hereto arid lnc<jr()oraled \y/ reference herein.

"4. Reporting Roquircinents

4.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly updates ol dala c^plured from
' RecoveryLink''-*. incluclinri. Iml not limited to B.ARC-10 scores, in a formal
npprovecl by die Departmonl inc;lu<ling but not limiUMl to SOI? specific reporting.

• 4.-2. Tlie Conlraciof shall provide c)uarioily roport.s with ds-ldenliiied information that
includes, bul ls not limited to:

4.2.1. Updates on the airioiil status far cach RCO under subcontract, including,
but not limited to:

*  *

4.2.'l-i. Status ol mtjutiiig CAlhRSS Co7c and Optional Standards as
.  clesaibeclabove.'

4.2.1.2. Specific areas uf PRSS (J.xperlise.

4.2.1.3. Rocovor^' Coardiiny ennd ciualificalions of staff providing recovery
coaching includinrj supofvision.

4.2.1.4. Telephons Recovery Services.
'  • 4.2.1.5. Location and serWce hours of Ihc current Recovery Centers.

4.2.1.6. Number of staff and voluntoers and percentage of them that have
been credenllalGd a? a Certified Recovery Support Worker
(CRSW).

4.2.1.7. Status of Medicald enrollnienl. contracting and credenlialing vvilh
_.... Managed Care Organizations (ivl'COs) and biliing'for PRSS. .sv

4.2.-1.8. Annual bLidgol 'lo include all funding sources.
4.2.1.9. Status of an organizational suslainnbilily plan.

4.2.2. Information on RCO trainings and Cornmunities of f^ractide conducted.
including but not limited to: I

p.1.0 ' r'.\»>!)o.'If' it cJctc,
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EXHIBIT B

4.2.2.1. .Type ohroining provided.

4.2.2.2. Topic.

4.2.2.3. .Nuhiberot.ciliciKlces.

-  4.2.3. Number of RCOs provided support (or human resource ancJ/or billing
■functions.

4.2.4. Activilies uuderlakeu to promote the :iv<ii)cibilily. purpose and value of
PRSS. ,

4.2.5. Programmatic highiiglits fro'u RCOs.

4.3.-The ;Contraclor'niay bo required to provide other key data and metrics lo" the
Oeparlinenl, including cHenl-level clomographlc. peifoimance. eiiicl service dala.

5. Periormanco Measures ■

5.1. The Conlraclor shall ensure:

5J.1., A mininuim ol i?' Roco'very Cc;iiti:-'s and providing PRSS.
..5.1.2. RCOs are ensurin-g CRSWs on stall receive .siipervision. as required

by the NH Uccnsinci Ooafd.

5.1.3. Gn^ayoriiyo. Iho ihcruase in 6ARC-10 scores Iroin baseline to curreril
for individuals receiving recovery" coaching is sialistically significant.

6, AdditionnI Terms

6.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

C.1.1. The Coniractor afiroes Ihnl. to llie exioni future stale or federal
.  legislalion or court ord'n'is nuiy havo an impcict on the Services

described lierein. ll'ie Slate.lias right lo modify Service priorities '
and expenditure requireiiienls under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance iherov/iih.

6.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriato Programs and Servicos

6.2.1. - The Contractor sliall suljmil. within ten (10) days of lhe Agrocmcnl
Eflective Date, a detailed descripiion ol the comnumlcaiion access
and language assistance services lo be provided lo ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or seivices to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; arid individuals who

'■ have speech challenges.

8.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

0.3.1. All documenls. notices, press releases, research reports and other
maleriais prepared during or resulting from the performancc-efMhe

an••2022-UUAS-05-itf:nn-0« l Hv-hCJ in.: CMiVaclOJ iriiols
T/y/'?:on
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>>

;  services of the AgreemeiU shall include the, following slalemeni, ■The "
r  . preparation of this (report, clocuinenl etc.) was fii-ianced under an

Contract y.ith llie Stale of New 1 lampshire. Department of Health and
*  .-t Huaicin Semcfrs. with funds provided in part by the Stale of Nev/

•  " Hampshire and'or such ollior funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the t^lnlied Slylos De|)riflinenl ol Heallh and Human
Services."

C.3.2. All materials prorluci.-:d or pifrchasecl uhdcir Ihe Ayreemcnt shall l>ave
.  ... prior approval from llio popnrlnienl l,)efore .prinliny. produclion.^

dislribulion or uso.

G,3.3. the Defiarime.-il sliall retain copyriyht ownofship. for any and all'
original materials (woduced.. inr-iudinfi. but not limited to:

'* " . G.3.3.1. Brocbnrn:; \

C.3.3.?. Resuurrvj diructciri'jf. •- n

,  Cv.3.3.3. Protuails ur yii.deliiKrs. * .

G;3.3.d. I'osters " , . ^
R.3.3.S'. Reports.

6.3.4, Tlic Contractor sliall not ropi.uduc-o any inatcrlat.s proriuced under Die"
•• Agfeumcnl wiihoul [irio." writteii approval from the (!)eparlnienl.

y: • t

6.4. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Lasys.pncj Regulations
G.4.1. In Ihf: operulion ol any facilities for providing services, the Conlraclor.

shall comply with nil laws, orders and regulations of federal, state,
county and nnmiclpal authuriHos and with any diveclion of any Public
Officer or officers pursunnl to laws which sluil! Impose ai} order or

>• fiuly.upon lite conlnictor-wilh rospecl to the operation of the,facility or
llib provision of the services at iSi'id'i facility, If any 'governmental
license or perniil shall tie: rrrquired for the operation of the said facility
Of the performance of the said services, the'Contractor will procure
said license or permit, and will at jill times comply with the temis and
conditions of each such license .or permit. In-couriecliOnwith the

!r foregoing requirements, (he Conlraclor hereliy cdvenanis and agrees
thal^ during the lorni of this" Agreement the facilities slial.l comply s'ath
all rules, orders, regnlalions.. and reqiiireinents of the State Office of

•  ' the Fire Marshal and Ihs locahfire protection agency, and atioll be In
•  conformance with" local l)uilcling and zoning codes, by-laws and.

regulations.

(
IhUiaSsRf:P-2022-ODAS OO n-FKf5-f) t i i.hI« I u-.-t.-a i.;:.
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EXHIBIT 8

7. Records

7.1. The Conlraclof shall keep records (i-ai include, hut a/c nol limited to:

7.1.1. Docks, records, tlocumeols and other electronic or physical data
evidencing arid roflocting all cosl.s and other oxpensRs mairred by the
Contractor In Hie performance of iho Contract, and all income received
Of collected by the Contractor.

7.1.?. All records shall bo niainiainnd in oc<;ordnnro witli accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and exfienscs. juid wliicli ore aoceplnble to the Deparinieni. and
to include, without limitstion. all ledgers, books, records, and original

'  evidence of costs sucli.as pitrchc"}se rcquisil'Ons and orders, vouchers,
requicilionsfor inuUrrials. Invcnloriov. valu.-ilioiisof In-kind cojitribulions,
labor lime cards, tj-iyrolls. and {'tiicr records requested or required by
Hio Departinenl.

7.1.3. Stalislica). enrolltnent, allcndan..x;,,gr vlsi rocords-for. each rocipidnt of
services, which rer^ords shall indml-a all VeC'Drds of application and
eligibility {including all fo/iiii: ruciuirot) flelerinine eligibility for each
such rncipienl). tecords regarding tl-ie provision of .services and nil
invoices subi'nitiod to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

7.2. Dgring the.lonn of this Agrcr:nionl and llie period for reterilion hereunder. the
Deparlmenl. the United States Depiirimcnl of Heallh and Human Services, and
any of their designalCHl representatives shall have access to ail reports and
records riiainlainetl pnrsuanl lo liio Agroemcnl for purposes of audit,
dxamination. oxcrpls and transcripts. Ui.>oii Hkj purchase by the.Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in tlic Agreotiienl and upon
.payment of the firice limitation hereunder. the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hnroinulur (oxcojil such obligations as, by the terms o! the
.Agreement are to bo podormod after the ond of llio lerni of this Agreement
*and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall lermlnule. provided
liuvvever. that if, upon reviev/ of Hie Final Expenciilure Report tiic Department
shall disallow ntiy nxponscs claimed Ijy the Contractor as costs hereunder tho
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct iho.amoiinl of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Conlrnclur.

8. fVlaintenance of Fiscal Integrity •

8.1. In order to enable DHHS lo evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the
Contractor agrees to submit to DHHS nicmllily, the Balance Sheet. Profit and'
Loss Statement a! the organization and entity level, and Cash Flov/ Sieilcmcnt
for the Contractor. AH slalemonis siiall he reflective of the entire Harbor Care

organizalirm and shall be submilled once rcviev/cd atid approved by the
Board, but no laler lliati the 30lh of the follov/ing month. Tfie Conlractor^lil

Rr-r-?022-DOAS-05-PEEfW^-0» Ibrhor lio.-. eS UjllinU
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bo evaluated on ihe following; ;

8.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

8.1.1.1. Definition: The days of opcfeUiny expenses that can be '
covered by Ihc unrGstrlclcd cash on hand.

8.1.1.2. Formula: Cnsli, cash equivalents and shorl-ierrn

inveslnicnls divided hy total operaiing.cxpendilures, loss
depreciot'on.'amortizalion omt in-kind plus principal
payments on deb! dwicliVd by days in tlie reporting period.

' ■ Tlie sliorl-tonirinvestniDnls as used aljove must mature

within tliice (3) inotilhs «md stioiild not include common

stock. Any aniounl of cash from n line of credit should be
Ijroken out ssparaioly.

8.1.1.3. Performance Standnrd: Tho ConiroClor shall have enougii
cash and c.Hsh r.-fpiivn'onls/io cover cxprjuclitures for a

^ minimu:n of thirty f.30j cnlonclar days with no variance
allovAxi.

0.1.'2. Cunont Ratio:

8.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of Ihc'Cohiiactor's lotal currenl
"asseis avail.able to cover Ihe cost of current Jiabilitie.V

8.1.2.2. Formula: Total current nr.soU divided l)y total current
liabilities.

r- 8.1.2.3. Performance Standard: Tho,ContriK;t()r shall maintain a

minimum cufiftiit ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance alfowed.

0.1.3. Debt Seivlce Coveraoe Ratio:

0.1:3.1. Rationale: This ratio it'uslraies ilie Coiitrecldr's ability to '
cover. Ihe cos! of ils current portion of its Inng-term (lel)t.

8.1.3.2. Definition: Tite ratio of Neil Income to the year to date debt
service-. ' -j;.-* "

0:l'.3.3, Formutii: f'-.'el In.-oms- filus pepreciation.'Amoriization
Expense plus Inlerosl Expense divided by year to dale debt
service (principal and interest) over thr; next twelve (12)
tnonlhs.

8.1.3.4. Source; oI Doln: The Contractor's Monthly Financial •
Sla'.emonls identifyincj current portion of long-term debt
ixnyments (principal and ihlerosi).

8.1.3.5. Performance Standard: Tfie Contractor shall maintain a

minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

0.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets

ii'-'

MKI*-20?2-h0AS-0S-PEi:{<.'r-0l U L-c. f.o-v-.*clc* >'■ ■ ■
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8.1.4.1. Raiionaio: This raiio. is nil iridicaiion of the Contractor's

al^ilHy to cover its liabiliiies.

■v ' 8.1.4.2. Defihillon: The ratio of lho_Conirnctof"s net assets io total
asset?.

8.1.4.3. Fomiuki: Net nssels (toici! assets less total liabiliiies)
.  ciiviclGd by lolal tissols.

8.1.4.4. Source of Data: Tlie Conlrruilor's fvlonihly Kinancja)
Slaloinents.

8.1.4.5. Perfofniiiiico StandtMcl: Vl>o Coniraclor sliali inaintain a
niinlinuni roliu of ().,30:1. svith a 20r> variance allov/c;).

8.1.5. Total Lines of Ciodii.

8.1.5.1. The conlrnrlor v/ili f.rovicle a lusting of every line of credit
and amount oii'.s'.aiulliT;) fur each linh.

8.1.5.2. The conlraciur v/'ll if.ipofl on nny ney-.' borrov/ing activities.
8.l.5.ft. 'ihri; conlrnnior v.ill ropoil on nny inslaiices of non-

coniplinnoo with any loan cd/enahl or a;.)K;eni'oni.

8.2. In tlic Gvoni ihiil the Contraclor's aonuai'nuUil roflccis an oporaling loss, or •
. the Contractor does not iueel eillK.-r;

6.2.1. Tlie standard rcgcirtllng pay.% of Cash on Haiv.l or the slnndard
regarding Current Raliu for two (2) consecutiW: months; or ^ ^

,  • ' * . • *
8.2.2. Throe (3) or n^ore of any of the MhintenDnc-:; of-Fiscal Iniegriiy

standcirds for three 13) consecutive inonlhs; or :

8.2.3. Goes not inocl llic ruj.KDfling limofriunc: then ,
■ 0.2.3.1. The Oepartmeni may:

0.2.3.1.1. Require the Contractor intut'.wiili'.Deparijnenl staff
^  •• to explain the reasons the Contractor has not met

•  the standards.

8.2.3.1.2. Recjuire the ConTrador to submit a comprehensive
corrective action plan within 20 calendar days of.
notiflcnlion Ihni any provisions oullined in Section
8.2 have not been rnel. The corrective action plan
sliali indude: . •• •

0.2.3.1.2.1. the specific reas.oii(s) the Contraclor
did.nol achieve ihe standard.

8.2.3.1.2.2. SlrfilRyies describing how the
Conlrnclor will inifjIeinenTcorreciiye

I1P|X202Z-UUAS 05 Pl:Cr<R-0»
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7

.V. i?*

actions to address the reason(s) for
. non-compliance.

8.2.4. Nolsvilhslanding. rorrn P-37. General" Provisions. Paragraphs 8. Event
of DefauU^Reinedios. and 9. Tunniccation;

-  ' '8.2.4.1., If a correcliva ac!lo:i plan is reriiiirf-irj. ihe Contractor shall
V. . update the cunooti'/o action i>lan at Inasi evr^ry 30 calendar

_  , days until coniplianco is aciiinvcd.
(*

8.2.4.2. The Cuntr,-Klor sliali (jroviclo nddilional Information to assure '
:• V conlimicd access l:i BC'vicos as requested liy the

Oeparlmotil./fhe Contractor shall p.''ovide revjuested
informaf'on in a timeframo agreed upcm l>y hotb parties.

8.3. The Coniraclor shall inforiP ll«c.' DeparlnienI l>y phone aiv.i l?y email v.ilhln five
(5) business daiys of wlion any key. Contractor staff learn of any actual or .
likely lilirjalion, invCstiyation. cornj)'aint. cUiim. or licinsaction thai may
reasonably be considered to iiovc- a i>jato.-iat fina';»:la) impact on and/pr

r  nialorialiy impact or impair ihn ability of the Conlraetor to perform under this
^ Ayreoment witi'i the Dcparlmunl t

8.4. The nionllily Balance Sheet, biannual IVolil loss Slalcmonl. ntonihiy Cash
Plovv.Stalenieni, and ail otlior finaiuiial reports sliaii he jjosed on the accrual
mellipd of accounting and include liie Contiaclor's total revenues and
expc-ndilures v/helher or not genorated by or resulting from funds provided
pursuani lo this Agroemenl.

8.5. The Coniraclor shall inform llio Depariment by phone and by email vyilhin five
business days when any Ifxeculivo fdanagemenl. Board Officers, or Program
Managers for DHHS conhacls submits a resignation or leaves for.- any other
reason.

8.6. The Program-level Front anrl Loss KSlalomeiil (or 11^-.* f^/jclfilaling Organization
sliall be subniitlcd at Iho limo of invoice. The Prcj{jram-fu-.'Oi Profit ajifl Loss
Statement shall include all revenue sources and all rolaled expendilures for

, that program, and shall include u budgel column allowing for budgol to actual
analysis.

0.7. Additionally. The Contractor sJiall supply a year-io-cjnte program-level Profit
"  ' and Loss Statements for all Harlxrr Care programs Oii a bi-annual basis, for

December 31 (lo be submitted by January 31) and June 30 (submitted by July
31). The program-level profit and loss shall Include all revenue sources and •

*  all rclalcci expendilures" for each program, and shall include a budget crilumn
allowing for budgel lo actual analysis. - •

(»
Si ■■ I ■nrr.20?2-rO/*.s-oo rT.EnR<ii •" •u.nt.y n-voc? c^o-nQciof wioic
'r/rmr^
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{'

Payment Terms

1. Tilts Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 66.?)0%, NH SDK 2 Project, as awarded on August ,9. 2021, by Hie
DMHS Substance Abuse and Montal Hoaiili Services Adrninistraiion.
CFDA 03.708. FAiN'f I00332C: Svibstance Abuse Prevenlion fi

Treaimenl Block Grani as awarded on Sepleniber 16. 2021, by the
DHHS Substance Abuse and Menial He-illji Servic^cs Adminislralion.
CFDA f/93.950. F.MN T!00;M6^ 'and Subsbuice Abuse Prevention &
Treatnicni Block Grunl as civ.iirdi^d on I.larcb 11, 2021. the DHHS

Substance Abuse and Monial hioalUi S'.Tvicos Aflininistratidn. CFDA

f/03.950. FAJN 11083500
♦

1.2. 8.10% General funds.
{'i

1.3. 25.00% Other funds (Governor's ComnJission'j. • "•*

2. Fur the purposes of tills Agioemcnl: -

2.1. The Doparirncnl has Identified Iho Contractor as a Siibrecipionl. in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Departhient has idonlified this Agrefcineal as fvlON-RfiO. in
accorcifinc;ov/ilh 2 GI'R §200.332,

.2.3. The do rnlnlinis Indireci Cost Rate of 10%- applies in accordance with 2
CFR §200.41>1.

3. Paymont sliaH be on a cost rciinbursenK-nt basis for actual expenditures
incurieri in tlie fulfillment of this Agrccnienl. and shall be in accordance wllli
the approved line Hem. as specifiedjn Exfiiliils C-1. Dudg.ei tiirough Exhiliil C-
2. Budnel.

4. The Contractor sliall submit an iiivoice to Hie Doparlmoiil, nolaler than the 15-''
v/Ofking <lay of tlie foliowing month, in a form saiisfnclory to Ifie Department
wiiich identifies and requests reimliursmenl for aulfiorized e.xpenses incurred

■ in the prior month. Tlie Cnntraclor shall ensure the invoice is coinpieted. dated,
and returned to the Department in order to initiate payment.

5. The Contractor stiall suhmit sup[X)fling documents to lite Dofiarlinr^nl wllh eacli
invoice. The Contractor sbal);

5.1. Ensure the invoice" is presented in a form that is provided .l")y the
Depailmenl or is otherwise acceptable to Uie Department. ;.

5.2. Ensure ttie invoice idoMlifios and recjuesls payment for allovvLible costs
incurred In the previous month.

RFP-2C22SOASO>rCl.nn-Ol cn.i Co«ilMcloi lrhi}i!s_ ^
3/3/70ft
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"'EXHIBIT C

5.3. Provide supporting docinnenlation ol allowable costs that rriayinclude.
but is nbi liniited to. time sheets. payroU'records. receipts (or purchases,
and prciof of e>:pondiUires. as applicahle. '

5.4. Provide invoices for eadi sub-coniracior. icieiilified in this Agreement, in
a formal approved by the Department. .

5.4.1.. Ttio OepartmnnI has Ih.fi figlit to rc<incst, from the contractor
supporiincj ciocunienialion of allovvabie costs, from each sub--
contractor. Hint may inolude. Inil is no! limiled to", lime sheets,
p.-ryroll rocords. rijcoiplr. for purcliascsr ai.ui proof of
expenditures, as npplicaljle.

5.5. Ensure tiinesheois and-'or lime card-s suhnijllod support the hours
enipioyeos vvorkeci forvvnges reported under this coniracrin accordance
v/ilh;

5.5.1. Per <15 CHR Part 75.-130(0';i) Cliarges to Federat av/ards for
salaries nncl w.nges must be bvasod on records that.accurately

*■ reflect thb work pcrfoniicil.
5:5.2. AltC'Slaiiun nnot liino trackit)^ templates, which are available to

Ihe-Peparlment upon roci'icsU

:5.C>. Ensure the invoice is coniplelsd, ctaied and reiurned to thepepartmenll
with the supporling docninenlalion for nuthriri^ed expenses^-in 'order to
initialo payment.

5.7. Unallowable expenses, specific to SOR funding include, but are not
limiled (o: ' " " ;

5.7.1. Ainounls behdiyi/ig lu ti'.her (ifoyfcuns.

5.7.2. Ainounls prior to effective date of c-onlrticl.
.  5.7.3. Coiisl'ruotion or ronovnlioii bxpensos., ».

. fv.7.<i. Food or water for employees.

5.7.5. Directly or indirectly, to purchase, prescribe, or provide
marijuana or Ircnlmcnt using inarljuana. ,

5.7.6. Fines, fecfs. or penalties. \

5.7.7. Per SAMSHA foriuireinonts. .meals are generally unallo'wable
unless Ihoy uro an Integra! part of a coiiference grant or
specificnlly stated ns an allovval.ilu expense in the FOA. Grant
funds may l.vzi used for liglu snaOks, not to exceecHhree dollars
(53.00) per person for clients. .

5.7.8. Cell phones and cell phone minutes for clients..

! r-
Hail>ci: < ■' 1-



OocuSigh EnvefofM ID: F698DEl9^0ME9d-6ACD^EC7EB8A8d4C

OocuSion Envetope ID: C55E»ED^S0D-4142^7e-A3028r658B43

OocuSion Rn-z-siopc ID* 4r266sn-5ngc-4r.r5-iMrr.?5nrfi»4?9nr

New Hampsrhire Department of Health and Human Services
Peer Recovery Support Services Facilitating Organization

EXHIBITC

6. ThnContraclor Ismsponsiblefor ceviev/ing. understanding, and compiying with
further roslriclions included in llie Fiinclincj Opportunity Annouccmenls (FOA).

7. In (leu of hard copies, all invoices may t)o assignod aii eleclronic signature and
emailed to djih;'; or invoices may be mailed
to;

Program Manager
Department of Health and Human $er\'ices
1*^9 Pleasant Street v

Concord. NM 03301

8. The Conlraclof agrees that-billing submiilod for review after twenty (,20)
hOsiness days' of tlie last tlay oj the billinn month may he subjecl to non-
pciymenl,

9. Tlie (Department sh.Mli m:-.ke payment to thy Contractor v/i;nin thirty (30) days
•  of receipt of eTich invoice, subsoqiionl to approval of Inp submlUed inyoice'and'

if sulfident funds are available, suhjoct to Paragraph 'I of the Goneraf
Provisions f^orm Numhor P-37 of itii:v AgroomoiU.

10. The final invoice: Shall he clue to liK- Doparimcrit" no laior than foriy ('10) days
after the coiUrncl complatirm (lain spadfiod in Fonn P-37. General Provisions
Block 1.7 Cprnpinlion Date.

11. The Cohiraclor miisi provide the services in Fxhi'nil B, Scope of Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

12. The Contractor agrees that funding un:i?r tliis Agreemenl may be withheld, in
whole or in part in Uie event of non-complinncf; with the terms and conditions
of Exhibit B. Scope of Services, including failufe, to subniil r'equirodmonthly
and/Of quarterly reports.

13. Nolwilhslanding anything to the contrary lioicin, trio Conlrndbr agrees that
funding under this agreGmonl may be wiilihold. in v.-holc or in part. In the event
of non-compliancc with any Ke-cleral or Sl«ato lay/, rule or rogulalion applicable
10 the services provided, or if Hie said services or products have not been
salislactorily completed in accordance wllh Ihe terms and conditions of this
agreement.

VI. Notwithstanding Pafagrapii 17 of the GciiGral Prcasions Form P-37. dianges
limited to adjusting amounls within tl)C price timlialion and adjusting
cnuimljranccs belwcen Slulc Fiscal Years and budgot class lines Ihroug'h iho
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval ol the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

15. Audits

15.1. The Conlraclpr must email an onnual audit lomeiiRsr-t.s.oionivfiVihli.A.rithqov il any of the following condllians|^^t;
Khl'-ZO^V-UDAS-OS-ltliti^-OI U-l.i r.on;i "tn4bl:. X——^

in/2022
lie r>.^;•c• n.ni.5
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New Hampshire Deparlhient of Health and Human Services
Peer Recovery Support Services Facitftatlng Organization

EXHIBIT C

15.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more In
federal funds received as a subredpienl pursuant to"2 CFR Part
200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

15.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:23, lll-b, pertalnlnQ to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

15.1.3. Condition 0 • The Contractor Is a public company and>equired
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit. . . >

16:2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual single audit
performed by an, independent-Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to the
Department within nine (9) months after the close of the Contractor's
Fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR
Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

16.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an

annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days.after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

15.4. Any Coniractor that receives an amount equal to or greater'than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscal year.iregardless of
the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's

. risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

15.5. In addition to, and not in any way in (imilalion of ol)ligalions of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed .by the Contractor that the
Contractor^shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Corttract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

RFP-2022-BDAS^SPEERR-OI C-J.3 Comedo/ln£U8h._^
\3/3/2022

H»fbarHooH»lAC. Pao«4ol4 D«l©
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Exhibit C*1

Spr7022 Bu^t

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human-Services-

COMPLETE ONE BUDGET FORM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

OOdtr Name: Kartwr Homes,-Inc.

Budget Reooeot Mr Peer RecMwy Seppeft Senrlees Feciiitating Orgaribetion
\

Budget Pertodt April 1,3022 threu^ June 30, 2072

•• - - •Tetat-PregreR) cost T'Certtrector We f MatdtrThM'Patv.Peybe.'- Fwtded brrOHMB eorrsaetenefry

l2D»!tem<... OirM-. ..mtareci': Vatali-- '^Dirsa.r- eeYotal>-
t,' Tetsi Salary/Wmcs % t38.6«l S •i3.Ma s tSZ769 } '4- • 4 •4 '138.681 Li 13.888 'S 152.769
2. empiorw Benen. i 3d.887 3. 3.389 i 4zn5 .3'- - .. 3 4 • -39.887- 5. 3.889- i 42.775

3.. CoRSuKsnts i S $ • $ —» . - .■ 3  V 4 » -J 3
4. EOttpment; S  i s .3 s- S 4 . 4- -- . i

Renot s s ..5 •S-. . 3*. s 5: 3
Reootrend Moiraenonce- s •• $ S S-" • — 3. .5 • 4 ■ r.-. s • •

PuTChas^Desreoaoon i 3.000 3 300 3 3.300 ••s- -. -$ i S  3.000 4 300 4 3.300
b. Suttones: s 5 v 3 • r . •y* $ - s, . 4 4 3

•"ecuc8t«r»a» i  .• 3 i 5 S 5
Lob s 5 S S  ' s $- i*- s 3
Pnennacr ■ s  - A  •- $ 3 $  i.»." i 3 i
Meo^ s s .. 3 . .3 • 4 3  f. 4 '4- s ... .

Office $ 47S 3 43 3 468 S 4  43S< 4 43 i 463
6. Trevd s 3.000 S 300 S 3.300 S  ♦' i- 5  : 3  ;i 4  3.000 3 500 3. 5.500
7. Occuoencv $ 3.400 s 540' s 3.940 s 3 s ■S- 3.400 3 540 S 5.94C
8. Current Exoensn s ■i . s - s V S s  -> s 3 • 3 -•

Teicohorv s 1.093 s 110 s 5.203 i .S '!* 5  „ S  1.Q9S 4 110 S 1.205
Porooo s 23 i 3 3 20 5  - 3 S. 4  23 4 3 3 28
SuDSCriptiOr:s s 3 23 i 773 3 4 3  > S  230 4 23 3 .275
Atxftt and Lecst . s 300 S 30 s 330 $  - - 4  ;'V>. 3- r. 4  . 300 4 30 •4 33C

'  Irtsu^s^ s 3M 3 35 s •305 S  - ,5 s'»>^ S i  iib 4' - 16 S 335
Board Exoertaes . & . S ■ s .• 3  ir-? $• .'-1- S  5- •3 4 - 3 :■

g. Softwore s W.525' s 3.963 3 63.380 3- .3,. $• 59.824 S •3.963 S 55.383
ta„ tiitorti^tViatCuiivn'jrtcd'.we' s 3.'50 3 375 3 4.125 J.- • .i. - •S- > 3.. 3.750 5 376 s 4.125,
'•t. Edueattor.and rna^ s ■y.otc 3 ?0l i 7.711 i  • S  • .. r.- . S  . -• S  7.010 $- ?0l $  7.711
;2..'SuBcofrJaai/>^re«n>efn3 r s *.0C«.73O S 100.373 i 1.109.603 S  ii . < 41.008.730 S 0a873 4MC»,G03
t3.' Omcr (soeotic cctsvs mandatory); s 9 - s ,5- -•f' S  I- S  >" 4 - 3

" 3 S - ♦ 3 y 4 5  i s  - 4 s
5 s S • . V. -3- •4- 3  > -3 ' — •4 ■- 4
t. 5 .$■ >, -• -y S  . S  . - S 4 3.

• i  v S s •T S 3 5' " . • s 5  > 8
$  - s s s». . s S . • S" •- .1 y . 8 —• •

» -- s ♦: "■ .'i 1- ^:-n' S.*.*. 'r» 1 •«*. - 1
TOTAL. s. t.2r2.7a .3127.273 i1 .400.000 5  •> ,i 4 41.277.728. 4127.278 41,400.000

Infllreci As A Percent «l Direct

Harbor Hofnes; lh&-
RFP-2022B0AS-0S-PeCRn«1

C«vsrr2022 BuSoet

■V,

S 1.400.000
»  m

OS

3/3/2022'
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I

tcusiffn Envelope to: C55E38ED-4S0CM142.B87B-A3O28F658B43

JCuSlyn EnvebpO tO: 4E^5F3-9D9C-«EF5-e4PE.2SBF652429DF

Exhiettc-2

$m073 BwdpM

New Hampshire Oepertrterrt of Health ami Human Ser^ccs

COMPLETE ONE BUDOET FdPM FOR EACH BUDGET PERIOD

Btddw Name: Hareer Hemet. tne.

Budget Rrqunt for P^ Recovwy Support Servlco FacnHirtng Orgsntzatton

Sudiget Period: July 1. 3022 through DecemOer 2023

t rr.-rrtvieeaJ.ProgremCoef̂ .._C «... •Funded b/DHHSGontrcci:«rM9«y.- I
tinattemic . 5"^ \ •. - 0treet;-^-rf̂  wtaffwCk' ̂ ^ Total — v$Xfect-»— -T" • mdtreet— - Uree^' todUeclfr ■  ••Total»^v

1. Tcui Setsry/vvaoM $ 2S7.9t7 s 25.732 5 •  283.709 .»• • 3 • ;i' ■ i 257.917 3. 21702 3 289.709
2. Smcteyeo Benctttt TZ2ie 5 7.222 S 79.4x0 1 •3 •. . 3 % 7Z218 i 7.222 3  -79.440

i'. Consultants i U.761 s 1.476 S 18.237..S<- if.- s -• & 3 IA761 i- ••1.476 3  16.237
A. Eoutprnent: s • $ 3 .3 i . -T if . 3

Rental s 3  . 5 S  i- 3  ■> t 3 i $  -'I--
Repdtr and Maruenanca s • • 3 3 s i 3 s -  . - 3  • .
PurcnasoiPeoreeaftcn s 3.000 s 300 S 3.300 5 j- •3 3 3.000 3 300 3  9400

5. Suopiies: s ... . 3 i S s i i S
Educatenai s .3 s i  . 3 S  i i  .iv. s .  -r S  V-i
Lao s S 3 V 5. - - s s S 5 5.^ . 3
Pnarmscv s 3 S  i •S 5" - s  • S. -i- Is • S  •••'■—■
Mednat' s - 5 5 3 3 .. 3 3  I.*
OffKO s aso s 65 3 935: 5 -3 ; 5 .; • 3 890 3 85- 3  935

6. Travel 5 10.950 S-. 1.095 3 1Z0*0 5 s • > T 10.950 9 1.09S 3  13.045
Occwancv . $ >0.900 3 i.oeu T~ 11.880 4 .S $  •> s laaoo 3 1.080 3  11.880

S. Current Expenses s 3 .. 5 . 3 •• s- 5 3 9 >. 5
Teiepnone s MSO S 219 s Z409 5 ■ 5 3 3 Z190 3 219 3  .Z409
Posaoe s 50 s $ 6: i  - 3 3  •; S 50 3 5 S  55
Scttseno6on» s 500 3 50 S 5S0 S S 5 3 500 >50 3  550
AuoRsno teoai s 600 IT 60 3 660 s s 3 $ 600 60. 3  660
insurance s 700 3 70 3 770 *8* s  > ■3. T "T 70 3  770
Soaro Expenses s 3 •i'.. 3 3 T — 3 vri

9. —SoRware s 115.250 S 11.525 T~ 131.175 $ $ 3 - 3 . M9.2S0 3 11.929 3  151.175
10. MarKttinc/ConvTurdcstiortt $ 7.500 3 750 3 SZ50 s  - .. J 3 •7.500 S 750 3  &250
11. Staff Eoucaoon and Tramino $ 26.710 S 2A71 S 22.381 s -3 $  ■. 3 26.710 3 Z671 3  29.331
1Z /SuOoDngracts/Aareerneras s ZOI7.<S9 1 S2C1.74S 1 S 2.215.205 S 3 3' 1 &?.at7.«50{13 201.746 1 32.219.205
11 • Other (sceofic oetaas msroa'.orT)' s - [T s 3  - •3 •••.' 3  i. s [3 3

s 3 3 .. s- ••• -3 -• t S  ■'! 3.t  -f.-.- 'iT -  - 3  •---
- & S S 5  . : 3  *'■ s |3 • -. -I

K s S . « $ 3  - - ' 3 -s •- 3 . - 3  '.><
• • 5 3 3 8— •• -rr j«. . . — S ' 3  • -r 1 .$••  ••.— 3  ■ •;

5 3 3  . -> 3*.- T ^ 3 S 3
1 s 1[T 1B- .. . ... $• . . ..'-rJ-' S i i $  •>

TOTAL [. s 2.S45AS9 1 3254.543.1 2.800JMO i Bs*?tTCf:gTOTlTnBF».v-.Trir.*
Indirect A* A Percent o> Direct

Hortor Homes. Ifc.
RFP-2a22«OAS4>$>PEERR4}t

$FY203? Budget

«••

"v r'

SZ800.0DQ
S  (0)

3/3/2022'
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\V/ *

Now Hampshire Dcparlmcni of Hcallh and Human Strn/lccs
Ezhibil 0

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE V/QRKPl.ACE REQUIREMENTS,

TheVendOf kJenlified In Sechon 1,3 o' I'l^f Gtne.-ai Pfo*/sions figrees lo ccmply with Ihe provisio'is of
Sdclions 51 &1-5160 of the Dfug-I'ree VVor^:pbcc Aci of iPub. L V00-G90. Tiilo V. SubtiiloO. 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to fiHve ine Conlreiclo' s fcpfosenln;:ve. os identi'rec) in Sections
1.11 ur.cl 1.12 of the General Provisions cocnU- the foibv.ing Ccdif'.cDlion

ALTERNATIVE t - FOR'GRANTEES OTHER THAN (NOiVlOUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE . CONTRACTORS

This cenificalibn is b/ tht reii'-'i^'i' Tr s impltj.ne'Ving Sncl'mnr. Sl.r-l-.'^lGO of Iho brug.Free
\Vofiq»iace Acl of 198S (Vub. L. I00-C90 Title V. Subbtiv L>. 41 U.S.C, 701 ct ssq.i. The January 31
1559 fcgiil3l'3ns v/ere amended and publiheJ Hs Pnit II o.' thr MA)- 25 1950 Fede.-,-}! Reoistor (osges
2,i65V2l69l1 and rc.'Hii'C con'f.c.n'.-on b; g ':0.\ (jfitl i y ny.iCfonrc- s*.in-n*antfos 0~d sub-
conif'nciors). prior to award. iV.al liioy v/.l! mjnt.ni^ n (iruyj freo wprkpl.ic-,-. Seciiorv 3017.G30icj ol liie
icguialior. jj:ovide.s that a grAitee (a*i:l b/ trfc-'tvr.e s-..b-^:':i-.;c'cs a^d sub-contractcrsi lhal is a Slste .
may dccl to niaKc one ccrlfrcalion to Hk- 0?}';i'lrr,ei'.t *r- uoch fedv'r^l fHcal year in I eu o' certificates for
each giarit cining ihe ferfgral f ■>c'ai yi-.'.r cf-.-.-:.:d by iiu- (•.•■rn-.calinn 1 no co'lificote set oj". beic.v is.a.
material repreiB'itoiio.n'c* io:t upon wh '.'h rda:*:'; is r-L-.:c-d v.hrrJi [t •« uy.;nc/ av/U'ds iherj'ani False-
certification or violalioivol llio ccitifir.«ii.nn shri'l f:a gQ.irrIi br 5.usii.*ins«o't of.paymc-i^ls. suspension or
ie:ndna!ign of Qianij.. o' do-/sirnmer.t •.vi-Je •H-i',; -:n:v.tn o-dct a.'nir-ii'. C-r.-U'aciO's u«'f.j this bmi shautd
send it to

Conr-iiss oner
NH DeparlmcMif.of Heallh an.l Sor'';--.-:?;

■  125"Pl3nsanl Street
Ccncorri. NH0?:O5-S50S ' ' .

1. The g-'anlte.corlifios fh^ri it will oi v.iu L.oi'.ti;i,ic tv pi jv.-l.v n diug-fic-c •.•.orl;pla:e by.
1.1. Publ'Shiag a statement naii'yi^? o.T.pbyeof, inn: the uni.n.-.rul n-.:-»n;iffi:l;i-e. distfroujlon.

dispensing .possesiion or use of a ccin:roii-.Hd snl)5!ancc in fiio!iil)i(od in.ihe grantee's
worisplsnt- f/Hd specifying ini- a:i ons tii.ii vail te-!.a'>en oga-'-.s: employees fo* v;olal:on o' suclt
ptohibjion.

1.?. F.stabl'Shing an onvjoing cirug-fivc- av/prcr-viS pro-vrnrn to.infoiin oinplCi'/iies.abouV
1.2.1. Th:- dangers o! drug hI us--- m (hC; v.orJ-.ptsce.
1.2.2.- Tlie g-rinleo's pokey oljnAvi'ninmg a dug-frce v.prl;pl:>;e. '*
1.2.3. Any available drug coiinsvlmg, rcl'^abil iation. and employee assistance programs, and
1.2.4. Thn perinliies that iivh; !:.•» impoi?--'! itpni-. i»:iiplOyO=3 for clruQ nbuso .violations

occurring in the vrorV.iilace
1.3. flaking i! a rcquiremeni that &3Ch empb/C-i to be- engaged ii: the pt'/formance of die grnni be

givc-n'a copy of the slalemf.-.l i:.t)\;ire(i by paragraph |n)
1.4. Notilying ihe eniployee in the statement ivquueO by paiHgiaph (a) litfit as n condition of

employment under the-grant tnrj nriipbyao y.-jl •
1.4.1. Abkic by the leans ol I'lv sliitoiiVe il and
1.4.2. Notily the employer in v.-riimg of fi.s or hor conviction for n violation ol o criminal drug

staliilo occurring in il-o -.vorltplovc no later thnn five calendar days after sucli
conviction.

1.5. No'.ilying llio agency in writing v.'-.tnin ton cakindar cloys pficr feceivii:g no'.ce under
subpa-'agraph 1,4.2 from an c-niplo/eo oi otherwise ieceaing actual nvticc of such convicUon.
employers of convicted cniploye^s must provide iiotico. l-icluViing {losiiion iUlo, to every,grant
officer onvslVosc grant Eclivlty the conxic'.ed empbyoe ivasworking, unless the Federal agency

Evhi»i: 0 i-J9V<.'jn.i Pm-j F.*m Vw.-.iI--h
•m

W'lvyplHu- =tt-<|H''cnicnli 3/3/202 2
r-ajr U'fi- Datt
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Now Hampshire OepaitmenI of Health and Human Services
Evhlbit D

has designated a central point for (he receipl of such notices. Notice shaQ inctude (he
idenlrficBtion number(e) ofeach affected'grant;

1.6. T^lng one of the follwing actions, within 30 celender d^s of receiving notice under
.  subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1.6^1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
* termination, consbtentwiih the requirements of IheRehabKHation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1 .$.2. Requirtng such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug atjuse assistance or
rehabilitatior) progr^ epproved (or 8uch.purposes by a Federal. Stale, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to contirtue to maintain a drug^free workplace through
implemcntatioft of paragraphs i.i. 1.2,1.3,1.4, l.S. and 1.6.

2. The grantee m^insert In the space provided t^bw the site(s) for the performance of work done In
connectioh with the specific grant.

Place of PerfonriBnce (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (lisi each.locdtioh)
>4 •••:

Che^ O If the~re ere workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Vendor Name:

3/3/2022

Dale

I
Name-te'/ofh '

Chief of operations

OUf>*cnioro

Exh&A 0 - CerOTciDon regirdlng Drug Free
Workplace Reqiiremenii

Page 2 0(2'

(5Vehda>lnMah> "■ '

3/.3/2022
Data.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTinCATION REGARDING LOBBYINQ

The Veridw identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public LsWiOMSi. G^rnment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobt>ylng. and
3t U.S.C. 1352. and further agrees to have the Contractor's represeolatrve. as Identified in Sections 1.11
a/Kf 1.12 of ihe'Generat Provisions execute the following Certincation:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EiXiCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTIVIENT OF AGRtCULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Progromt (indicale applicable j^ogram covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Ne^y Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support EriforcemenI Program under Title tV-O
'Social Services Block Grar^t Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program, under TitldXIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Tille VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Tille IV

The undersigned cerlifies, to the best of his or her Knowledge .and belief, lhat:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influericing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or ̂ ployao of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection wllh the awarding pf any Federal contract, continuallori, fenewal, amendment, or
modiricalion of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or wHI be paid lo any person for
influencing or etlempling to Influence an pfficar or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal extract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific meniion sub-grahtee or sub-
contraclbr), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Forrn LUL, (Disclosure Form.io
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its Instructions, attached end identified as Standard Exhibit E-l)

3. The unders^nied shall require that Ihe language of (his certfication be included In the award
document for cub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperatiye agreements) and lhat ail sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly;

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Submission of this certificaton Is a prerequisKe for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Tille 31. U.S. Code. Any ̂rson who fails to file the required
cerlificalibn shall be subject to a civil penally of not less than S10.000 and not more than $100,000 for
each sucb failure.

Vendor f^ame:

3/3/2022 I (Wl, IhL
Date v ,

Titie'
Chief of Operations

Vendor InlilAlsEjMUI E - CtrtifictSon Regordlng Lot)bying
3/3/2022

cuoNHsnioru Pegelpri Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPfiNStON '
AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS ^

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with (he provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12S49 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative,'as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions'execute the following
Certification: '

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By sighing and subrhittlng this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certincalibh set out below.

2. The inabifify of a person to provide (he certincaUor^ requlred^below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transadion. If neces^ry, the prospective particl^nt ehaO submit en
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification." The certification or explahation.v^D be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnisii a ceitification or an expfanalion shall disqualify such persor) from participation in
this IraAsaclion.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
wheh.DHHS deterrnined to enter into this'trahsaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary partidpani knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to othefr remedies *
available to the Federal Governmerit, OHHS may terminate ihis transaction tor cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the OHHS agency to
wftom^lhis proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Its.certification was errone^s when submitted or has become errorveous.by reason of changed
circumstances. l^...

"  " ■ ' ' ' is,
5. The terms 'covered transaction," "debarredi' "suspended,* 'ineligible,* 'lower tier covered

Irensaclipn.* 'participant/ *pe/»n.' 'primary covered transaction.' 'principal.* "proposal,' and
"voluntarily excluded," as used In Ihjs clause, have the rneanings m out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Pert 76. See the
attached defirtitlons.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submilling this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall riot knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
trensaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from partidpation-ln this covered transection. unless authorized by OHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that It will Include the
clause tilled'Certificatidn Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Inellgibllity and Voluntary.Exclusion • -
Lower Tier Covered Transections,* provided by OHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for bwer tier covered transactions.

6. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant In a
lower tier covered, transaction that It is irtol debarred, suspend^, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knoNvs that the certification is erroneous. 'A participant may
dedda the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibtlity of its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to, check'the Nonprocuremerit list (of exclud^ parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a aystom of re^ds
In order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowtedge and jfT".

10^'
EvhSXl F 7 C^n^lion.RotT^rblng Debarment. Sv«p«n»bn CorWsdor NUah>""" " .

AndOlherRbipontlbllityMatten .3/3/2022*
CUiD»tOrii07tJ P«00lo(2 D*te
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Infonnation of a partidpant.ia not rectuired to exceed (helwhi^ is normally possessed by a pnident '
pefson.ln the ordinary covrse of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if.a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered Irarisaction wiUi a person who is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from partidpation.in this transaction, In
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHKS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

.W •*

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participaht certifies to (he best of Its knowledge and bejjef, that it and Its
pnndpaJs: -
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared inel^lbte, or

^untarily excluded From covered transd^ns by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

e civll judgmorit rendered against them for commission fraud or a crirnlnal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to ob^n. or performing e public (Federal. State or locel)
transaction of a contract under a puUic'Iransaction; vioiation of Federal or Stale anlitmsl
statutes or commission of embezzlemen). theft, forgery, bribery, falsification ardestiucilon of

. records, making false statements, or receiving stolen propctiy;'
11.3. .are not presently Indicted forotf^rwlse crfmlnaiiy or clvtlly charged by a govemrrientel entity

.(Federal. Stale or local) vnth commission ot any of the offends enurnerat^ in paragraph (iXb)
of this certificatim; and

11.4. have not.wldiin a three-year period Receding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactiohs (Federal. State or local) terminated for cau^ of default.

12. Where'.the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this " u
certificaUon; such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this propo^ (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submltting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier pahldpanL as'
defined In 4S CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowtedge and belief that It end its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarredr suspended, proposed for debarment, dectared.ineiiglble. or

yolunterily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federaf department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to cei^ to any of the above, auch'

prospective participant she!) attach an explanation to this prdpoial (contract).

14. The pfbspectjve lovrer tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It wit)
Include this clausdentilled 'Certification Regarding Debarmeni, Suspension, Inetigibllity, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions.' without modification.in a!) lower tier covered
trensactton* end In ell soticiiations for lower tier covered transactions.

t!

Contractor Name:

IwtiHgeed by:

3/3/202?

Date S^aWfsfafl^'Och-
chief of operations

■  ,
Cid^F-CaitincatiooRdotrdlngD^armem.SvftpeAslon cort/aftof LihMtV—

AndO(n«/Aoiponi&))SlyMak»n „ 3/3/2022'
cuoMSntoiu' PapoZorz Palo
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CERTinCATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIReMENTS PERTAINING TO .
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Se^ons 1.11 end 1.12 of the General ProvisiMs. to execute (he following
ccftificatjon;

Contractor will comply, and will require any 6ut>granlees or suboontractors to comply, with any appticabie
federal nondiscriminallon rsqutremenls, wt^ich may Indude: ■>-;
- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1988 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789dJ which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under (his statute from discrimiriatingreither In ernploymenl practices or In
the delivery of senriccs or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origiri, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
• the Juvenile Justice DeDnquehcy Prevention Act of 2(X)2 {42 U.S.C. Section S672(b)) which adopts by
relerence. the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act Redpients of f^eral funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminaUng. either in employment practices or In the delivery of services or
benefits, on (he basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Ernploymenl Opportunity Plan requirements;
- the Civil Rights Act of 1064 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal linandal
assistance frorn discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origiri in any program or acUvity);
• the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits redplenis of Federal finandal
assistance from dischmlnsllng on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and, the delivery of
services or benefils, in any program or activity;
- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrirnlnation and ensures equal opportunity for persons wHh disabilities in enTpldyment, State and local
government seryicet. pubSc accommodations, commerdal facilities, and transportation;
- the Education Amerldments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.1685-86), which prohibits
di^riminstiori on the basis of sex In federally assisted education programs;
• (he Discrimination Act of 1075 (42 U.S.C..Scclions 6106-07), which prohibits disoimlnatbn on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal rmanclat esslstance. It does not include
employment discrimination; .>

•28 C.F.R. p!..31 (tj.S. Oepartmentof Justice Regulations > OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrlmlnatlon; Equal Employment Opportuni^; PoDdes
and Procures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the taws for faitii-based arid community
orgarHzations); &ecutive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and poticy-maXmg
criteria for pai^arships wHh (allh-based and neighborhood orgenizaUons; ,

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and WhlsUablower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The fyational Defense Authorization
Act (NOAA)'fof Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whisileblower Protections, which protects employees egalnst '
reprisal for certain whistle blci^g activities In connection wilh federal grants and contracts.
The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which relianceis placed when the
agency awards the grant False certification or violation of the certincatlon shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination ol grants, or govemment wide susper\sion or
d^armenl.

Exhibao ' I tW"
Con(r>ctof InSMtV—~-

C«rU>OBn i—Jruwrti w r WqraKrt«aw»w>: CfciiJ Twwtoi CVytotiyo

K. " 3/5/2022rto<.iMin4 ,P»P«1or2 Dtle ...
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In the event a Federal or Stela court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a Trnding of
discrirnination aftera due process he^ng oh the grounds of race, color, reDgton. national origin, or sex
against a recipient of Kinds, the recipierit will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rlghts. (o
^ appflcabie contracting agency or division wi^in the Department of Health and Human Servtoes. and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor tdentified.ln Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
repreMotstive as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provlslons.-to execute the following
certification;

(. By signing and submitting this proposal (coniraci) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Contractor Name.

[^aon| /Mt
Mi Hlr^i?:"Woch

Chief'of operations

ExhfbftG
Centredor tfthbh^' ■

U CttiyUw n *» Wcrid<crti»i*cit U &«v<aian»
^  irpwacaafM

e/zfn* 3/3/2022
ff.ioQVM Page 2 Of 2 Dale
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CERTfFtCATJON REQARDING ENVIRONMENTAt TOBACCO SMOKE

F^lic lew 10^227. Part C - Envtronnftonta! Tobacco Smoke, also kno^n as (he Pro-ChUdfen Act of 1994
(Act), rebukes that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facflity owned or leased or
contracled for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to Children under (he age of 19. if the services are funded by Federal i^ograms either
directty or through State or local governments, by Federel grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The

-  does not ap^jo children's services provUed in private re^dences. facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicald funds, and p^ions of facSlies used for inpatienl drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of (he law may result in the imposition of a tivU.monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or ihe imposIUon of an administrative corfiplience order on ihe responsible entity.

the Contractor identified in ̂ ctlon 1.3 of the General Provstons agrees, by signature of (he Contr^or's
representa^easidentifladin Sectionl.ll and 1.12 of the^'neral Provisions, to execule the follovving
certificstion':

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all amicable provlslons.of public taw 103-227, Part'C. known as (he Pro-Children Act of 1994.

5|V

3/3/2022

Date

Contractor Name:

kfr;

I
terteroar
Title; Chief of Operations

cuMtsntoro

Exhbil H - Cerlirotion Resetdlng
EnvVonfnenM Tobjiccc Smoko

P«00lof1

Contrsctorlflkiab

Dste
.3/3/2022
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.  ASfjQCIATE AORCf^ML-r-J'f
jf" ■

The Conlraclor identifiGfl in Ssclion ).3 of Ihe Gonornl Provisions oI II»e Ayreenienl (Form P-37)
("Agreemenl') ayrees. as a Busin{.'ss Assoclaie. 16 comply wiih (he Hoalih Insurance Portability
arxi Accountability.Act. Public Law 10--I9i. ll»n Sinndiirfls for Privacy and Security of
IndiviOuaily IcJcnlifiablc Health information, 'tb CFR Parts 160, 162, and 1B*5 (HIPAA).
provisions of the; HITECH Act. Till%i Xlli. Subttdo D. P<irts 1f«2 of Uio Afncricnn Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 20091 42 USC 17034. oi fioo.. :i;>p!icahlu to lursMioys associales. and as
applicable, lo be bound by Ibe provisiutis of the (loMliclfintiallly of Substance, Use Disordor

.  Pallenl Records, 42 USC's; 290 dd-2. -13 CPR Pi:ri (Pjrl 2). as an>^may be amended from
lime It) lime.

(-1) t^nfiurikms.

a. "Business Associate" shall mean I'ne Conliactor and 4s a-jonts v.lio receive, use. or have
access lo prolocled liGvilih InSorm.^l on (PI ll) as tl-dmod.h tbiF fiusino.<s A^scKiiauv
Agroem&ril ('BAA'") and th<; 7v'j'f;.:.'iv.;:il and "Coveted Fniiiy" shall mean Ihs Stale of Nevv
Hampshire. Depntlmont of HoolCn pnvl Hutnari

b. Thf; follOiV'ny tbrnis,l»:-«vo Uiv s.-uuv tnu iri.n.t n f d-. t mid Ijj HIPAA. ibo Hl.TECI-l Act, and
Pfiit 2, as Ihoy niay'hc amonrk-c: from limn Ik iniin;

"Breach.^ 'Covered Entity 'Oeoignolcd Record Set." "Data Aggrcyation."
Dosiynaied Record Set." Healiii Care Opc-rabons,' HITECH Act," "Individual."
■privacy-Rule." "RequirGCl by law."' Security Rule." aitrl •Secfelary' v

c. "PfOlected Heallb Information' ( PHI") a.s used in ibis Afimnmnni moans jifulected health
information dufintKl in HIPM 45 Cff-t 160.103. 1;iijij»;cl to the information creaied, rncodvod.
or used by Business Associaia from or on hr.-hnlf of Crr/r.-rod Entity, iind includes atiy Pait
2 rocords iftlating lo subsiaiico use disordor. if ai))'licablo. as defined Ixrlow.

d. "Part 2 record" means rui^)iili5}nl 'Record." ro!-:iting to a "Patlc-nt." chkI 'Patient Identifyiny
lnlormalion."',os defined in 42 CFR Pa.'t 2. 11.

$

c. "Unsecured Proiecled Health Information' means protected health informatiorS that is not
secured by a ttichndlogy siatidard tinil renders protected hcolih information unusable,
unreiidable. or indecipherable lo unauthoriiod Individutits and is dKvnInpuU or endorsed by
a standards developing urrjani.'^ahi'in thai i.s ;K;t:rftdiiod by Uie American National Stnndarch;
Institute.

(2) Biisinnss Assoc'iatn llso .-inil Disdosure ol Protnctnd Hea'lh Information.

a. Bdsincss Associate sliall not use. dtsclnse, maintain, slcxe. or Ifansinjl Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the scmiccs outliruwtcmder

.  Exhibit B, Scope of SeivicOs. (4 tlK; Af-jreemenl. Further. Business Associate, |npf|y:li09
h»-v;' I'V.j-ji' • iv."-l- An'

i;\. s y.-.u

■J/3/20>2
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'r

but noi limited lo.all its directors, orficors. emptoyees. and agents, shall protect any PHl-as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2. ond not use. d'sdciso. mninlain, store, qr Iransmii PHLiji
any manocr th^ v.xiu'd constiJulh n vlol;i:k)n of HIPAA or 42 CFR Part 2.

* * S* '.

h. Business Associate ntay use or disclo'so Prtl. us nppl'ical»l<r:
I; Foctho proper manag>inu,:nl .-ind adniini.sifalion of iho Business Associalo:
II. • As r(;quirt'd by lav/, pursu-i.nt to the terms set forth In paragraplt l. and d.

bolow: .
Ill According lo the HIPA.'a ntiniinuiu noccss-ir^' sln.nd-ird; anrt
1^^ For da'ui uggrcsiatian i.tufposcs fc tt-o hoaltii ceit.; oporuUons.ql the Covered

Entity.

c. to4h'e G-xtcnl Business Asso::i:i::) is [junmllvC! under ihc BAA o' the Agrecmonl lo
disclose PHI lo any thircl parly ur sulrxjnIrav.Uij. prior lo indlung any disdosuro. tlte
Business Associ-iif; nmsl {jbtn.'ti. .a l.i.isin-.HSs nf:ri-.-;mr:ni vvidi inc Ihird pytty ci
subconlraclof. that complins v.-idt (IIPAA and cnsuru's thii! t:ll roviuircmcnts and
rcslriciions pluood on the Busit'ess Assodjl'; a? pail r»f ilsis OAA v/ijii lite Covered-Emily,
are "indiidcvl In itinsc; tjusim.-ss jiss-j-vIuIC; a:i'V':.';jc;nl& v.'.th iho Ihi'd parly or subcontradoi.

d. Till: Business Associate shall iioi. rlir'cins:: nny PHI iu to a icquesl or tlontand
.  for fjiscbsuro. su.^h ms by h t ub{.»>j:ia o: coud ordrtr. on It-.o t;.:is:s tirii i; \a required by

law. v.ilitoul first notifyinfi Covorecl bnliiy .s«.i Uvit C^.'voK'rtl Cii'iiy can itoiermino hc.v In best
prolecl the PHI. If Covtirod Entity ol/jccta to liv- discbsurfj, moBusinost? Associate agrees
to refrain from disclosing Ihn PHI and sli.:;ll with Iho.Covorrid Entity In any effort
the Coyofod Entity uudonakc-'.^ io contosi liv,- roqjosi for disckjsurt;. subpoona,- or oithGr
legal process. If applicnbii: ru'iaUiiy lo Pfsrt 2 recor^. the- Business Associate sh.nll loi^isi
any nfrorls to access part 2 recoids in on/ juclidnl proc/vodiiKj.

t»

(3) Oljlioatians and ActKnlios fif B'.isiiv::.<;s AssyHii*'!'/''.

Vr

a. Buslniiss Assciciale shall Irnplemsni nppropriaio safeguards lu p/evcwil unauliiorizrxl
use or disclosure of nil PHl in accordance wiih HIPAA.Privc]-..y RCiio and Security Rule
v.ith regard lo eleclronic PHI. and Part 2 as a;.tp!n-.nl)).:.'.

ti. Tho Business Associate shall imtneduncly notify the Covered Efitity's Privacy Officer at
die fotlnv/i/Ki drnail address. DHHSPri\'ac»/Ortl-cer(?t>dhhs.nh.uov after the Business ' , I
Associate has determined thnl any u-.-e or disriosure noi provided for tiy its cf)niraci.
includlr>g any knov/n or suspected .prlynty c»r securiiy Incident oi broach has occurred -
potenliallyoxpusincj or ccirnprornising llio PHI. This iivdudot; IriadveiienI or accidental

- uses Of disclosures qr brcnchc-.s of unsbjurcd (.'loiocted haallh inlonnation.

C;r In (he event of a tirench, the Business Associate shall comply v/iiti the terms of this
Business Associate Agreomont. all applicable slate and federal laws and regulations
and any additional rcquinnivMils ol ttis AgrocmcnI.

—It*

{\P- :V

H -.r*!'! Irju-V*,- Vv"J I'.-i" 3/3/20<{2 '•
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d.. The Business Associate shall perfunn <i rlsH assessnioni. baseO-oivlhe Information
available at iHe time it becomes av/?iro of .any kn<i\vn orsuspnclncl privacy or senuriiy

■  breach as described abov'e aivd comnumicato'ihc rlsk'asscssmcnijo ihe Covered
Entity. Tho risk assessment shnll indadti. (lilt not hri liinilwl lo:

. ̂ I. Thn naUiro and cxlr.-n- of Iiuj prntocind hnallh iiifo/inatian'involvc'd. including tlic
types of identifier's and the lii:ol:)ioocl oi rc-idftntificailon;

II. The unauthonzod per.^on v/l»o accessed, used, tlisciosod. o? >ou^ivoJ the
prctocied hoallh inforntntion;

III. Whether H^o proicf.icd tinalth infoannlion was ;v;l(j.'tlty af:qtiiri.Hl or vinwoil; jjrwJ

IV. Hosv the risk of loss of u-jiifiUcnlu'iliiy lu the pfoiecied hcalli)
information hasboo" mid'iniird

a. The Business Associate sl'.ah C'..»m}>lol'j :i risk assussm'ont rcjroii aj tiro conclusion of its
incvlent or hre.acli Invoslrna'.l'.n rrnd p-owf'"? ilvj fnr!inr|> in a vyrilifai report In. ilio-
Covered Entity as soon as ('«ra:.ti:a!il<; alter Hv.: conciusio;! c»f tho Business Assdciaies
invcslkjalinh.

f. Business A.ssodatn sliall,rn.'tk*j,ov:!ilM!>l:; .-.vT of il> po'-cios and i.irocflduies. lK»oks
and fccords retatiiKj to tiia osr: anc! dlsclf-sur? r.| PH! ro 'oivc.-c! from" or r.fF;.nind or'
ft.T.i.ivod l}y llio BusitirrSf. Asso-ji.'ito OH Ijel.i.ilf C'f Cove'':'-!l (:n'dv to Ih^:.- US Secfetar>' of
Health and.Huinan Scr\'icf:s for purposes of dotf-iminii)^ tno, Business Associalo's on<l
the Covered Entity's compHanc'i with Hlf\A.'\ a-id Ihiv Privacy and Sovurity Rule, and

,  l^art 2. if apptirahlo.
ii-

• -

<v y. Business Asiswiate stxail requird all rJ its lv.Hiness associates U.iot receive, use or hnve
across to PHI under lIur .BA/\ or the Atireeinenl. lu rigrc-u iii wrilimj to adhor« (u the.

•  .. same rcstficlions .and condition^ on llie use and flifirlpsurr: of PHI contained t>err:.in;
:  including the duly to relirn or destroy the PH) as ivovidc;.! und(:.r EVjciton (3)n. and an

agroemeni tlial thn Covnrod Fntityshnll U; (:onsi(lercd ;i direct.llurd pui1y lA'noliciury of
the Business Associalc's business assoc-bie agreements with-Busiriess Associate's
Intrmried husinpss associates. vWio \yill l.'C lucviviuy Pi ll puisuiinl to this BAA. with •
rights of enforcement anci irv.!en»nification from such liusincss ussuciutes v.Iki sled! jit
fjoverned tv/ sUn)dard.provisio:i fUd of this Agreement fpr the pirposo of use and
disdosufo of proliXled lienlih inlormalinn.

h. VViiliin leu (10) business days of luccipt.uf u v.ritton reguesl Irdm Covcrcd Entity. •
Business Assnciaio shall moke nvnilalilc during normal trrusiiK'ss tvjiirs tU its offices all
records. bo«:iks; agroemonts. poiicifts >jnd [jrocednros rolatuMj la lh.e use.tjmldisclosuro

?. nf PHI If) Iho Cuverurl Entity, for piu[)0HCi Of (jnabling Covcred^-Enlity to deiermine
Business Associate's complmnno wi'li dr.; inrinis uf the B/vA.u.ndthe Agreement.

'i. Within ten (10>ljusiness day's of receiving a written rcc|ug?l from Covered Entity.
•  . Business A.ssociale shall provide access tvn PHI in a Oc.-skinalc.-d.Rucord Set Id the

Ci'jverecl Enlily*'of as directed by Covererf Entity, to an itKlividual.in order to meet the
requirements under -15 CFR Section 164.524.

V  « [iW-

1:- U-'t* - ■
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Wilhin.len |10)1»usinb}ss days Ot receivinc) a wriUen request from Covered Entily for an
arnendiDenl ol PHI or a record alx>ul an ̂ dividual (:on{i«inr:(l in ;i Dr.-s'igniilcd Record "
Set. thfj Business,Associato shall tiiakc such F*HI vnvdilabic lo-Coverod Entily for
amendment and Incorporate any such anicndmcnl lo onahln DivurcMl Entity to fulfill its
obligaticins under 45 CFR Snction 164.52G.

k. Business Associate shall dncuni«jr[ any disclosures ol PHI nnd inf()rrnnli()n related lo
any disclosures ms would bo requiiod for Coyerod Enlily (o respond to n roqtre^it by an
ijKlividuPl for on accounimq of (Hsciosuros of PHI In occord-inni; v.-iih 45 CFR Seelion
■164.523.

,,c- • ■ ,jK.v.' 'Within ten (10) business doys t'f rr.-ttiivinri a wriii'jn requosi frofn Covered Entityfor a
ro:)uest.fyr art.accounling ol disclosures o'. PHI, Business Ass(r;;i:-iie shall make available

. • trj Ccy/ered Entity such iiifer.noiinn .is Co\c;fefi Enlily nny rijciuire lo fulfill its oblicj.^ilions
i- Ui }»iT»vi(lH nccoun'.iiK) ol disCln.;u-05 with rexp.':':.t I"* PHI in necordance w.ih 45 CFR

Section 15-152B.

in. In'lhe event any indiVirJunl requv'.-:^!.'! necev? l^. amondnienl of. (,i nenii-.inlinn of PHI
diri;f.lly frorii the B-.isii>e5iS Ous-ne-s Asforav shall v.iihin f.vc (5) •
business (lays forward such fo.jue.-:: to C-jvnrt.-d Fntity. C-nvu-'od Enlily sU*ill have (he

u. rospnnsibililyDf rosjiunding to fo;v/jrde<l lequesls. hl:iv;ovcr."if forw.^rdinq the
individuars request to Coverc<l Entity v/nulcl cause Covered Enlily or IheBusiness

,  Assuutrile lo violate Hlf^/NA and tn-*: frivacy ;«n(f i'loourjiy Rut,-;, iiv:: flu'si.iossAssociate
shall i;istead respond to the indiv.dunl s rcriuest us requ rod by such lav; tHKl nolify
Covered Entity ol such responso as soor. as praclicoblo

'i.

n. Within thirty (30) Ixisiness days of ternun.ition df llu; Ari:f;uin&ril. foi any reason, the
Dusiness Associate shall rclurn or tloslroy. as sp(.cit>cv.' hy Covorcd Eniiiy, all PHI
received from or crucilwl or lucuivc-d by iho Ous'ncss Associate in conncciion v/ith the
AqfufOivienl. and shail not rc-lain any f.o|;i<-:s or back-ups of such Pi-jj in any lorm or
platform. .

5; If return or dostandi'Ki is nol frjusibl-j. <ir Ih-j ^li?p?silion ol (he PHI has
beon olhsn-/lsr; aqre/td lo i'*i thn Aorr.-omrjnl. nii.s-.'ioss Assoclnlo shall
continue lo exiend Iho prolurdinns uf the /Ngroernenl. to such PHI and limit
(yrthcf uses aiKl disclosures of such PHI to those purposes th-al mako the
fplurn or tlosluiction inlonsiWe for as long ns thu Businoss Associnlo

■maintains such PHI. If CovureU Cnliiy. in lls s'.'Ie dlsorelloa requires (hat
lbs Business•A.ssocUili; destroy any rj.' .'ill PHI. Ihe Business Assocuate
shall certify lo Covcrhd Entity iluil II lu PHI has been Ofesuoyod.

H  *

(4) Oljliaations ol Covorod Entity

a. Covered Emily shall noiify Business Associate ol any cViangcs or limilalion(s) in its
Notice of Privacy'Practices proViiled to intlividuals In accnrdnnce v*/ilh 45 Cf^fR Section
164.520. to ihe extent that such change or limitation n>ay affect 8usin8SS-As5o;:l3tq's "
use or disclosure of PHI. A curronl vcrsina of Covereci Enlily s Noticf

f

rn-jV" I

.isiness-Assoclstq's "
lice of Privacw

il. ..lit; b>'.u-.iiM .• I'.Ki.iIri*.: V ^ 3/.a/202'^
l  '5 baii- -
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Praclices and any changes therelo v/iil be posted on the Covered Entity's website:
hltos://wvw/.<lhhs.nh.aov/oos'hioan.'{nthlicolic»n?.iitm .

b. Covered Entity shall prontplly notify Duslnrrss Associcito of any chan.:|OS in. or rovocotK>n
of pern^i^sion provided 16 Covered Entity by IndivldnnSs whosr^ PHI tony Ik» osed or
disused by Business Assonialfr undijr this BAA. inifsnani to <15 CFRScction ,164.506
or 45 CFR Section 164.503.

c. Corcre:d entity shail promptly r:nt fy 8tisinr;ss Assc»-viiil<i of any restrictions on the use or'
.disclosure of PHI lltat Coverod Entity lias agr.iod to in accordance wilii 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that sttcii restriction may affect Business Associate's ̂ isc or clisclosure of
PHI,

¥

(5) T^^r^ninnt^on of Anfoiiiiiont for Cn'tse

In addition to Pa'arimph-9 of ine G'.;;mtl Provisons tP-37j of ihe Arirentiiunl. the
Covered Cnlily may immocliatoly lorminnlc the Ayrceinonl upon Covoied Emily's .
knov.lcdgo of n niuterini !»rr;:i-;h try Businn.s^ /vsS':«':iatc o' th:/ Bus:nes-> Asr.pcliito
Ayret.-mt.-nl. Th- Covered Entity may Gilh.v'ninv'Kl'nifily Iprmtnuir: the A(.}ieement or
j)r07i(lc; aivopporlur.iiy for nu:"d:KS'< Ass<>-:i:ilo"lt» euro liv; ai'oe-vd breach wilhin n
limeftirtK! Sjievifiod by Cnvered bniil/.

v;

(G) Miscolianeous ..

a. Detihiikms. Lav/s. and R'3fiul:4'ory Rofereneos. Ail lav.'S <:'v.l rchiiluti'.ins userj; herein,
shall refer to U>ose laws nrul tccinlntuMis as nniciidod from time to llnio.-A rcfnrnnco in
the Ajrrjomonl. as arncmded so inck:rlc'ii;is Eyhi!)il t. to n S;;ctioii in HIP/vAor 42 Part 2.
means the SwCtion as In uIir.-A-.! t-t ;is unu.ni.led

I). Amend merit. Covered Gtilijy an:) Biisinoss Associate arjrco to inkn siuh DClion osis
nr.'cejiSiiry to amend the BA.A. from lime to tiiiK: as is necessufy lor Covored Entity
nnd-'or Business Ast^cinio i«.> '.:o:M|>ly v/Iiii ihc- chnrVjCS in th') rhr)iiiromenls of
HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other appliciihle federal an;! slate lav.'.

•

jC: paia Ownershin. Tne Businrrss Ar.socinio ncknovd'-Kl-jies that it lias no ownacshifi riglits
with respect to the PHI provided hy or croalod on bcjh-ilf of CovGred Entity.

.d. Intermeration. The parlies ajireo that any ninhlguily In Ihg BA.A and the Agreement
shall be resolved to |.»erniii Ctivirrui! Entity aivd (he Business Associaip lo crnnply v/iiti
HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2.

.,.5
i.« .• r«fj 3/3/2U22

wi<i .



DocuSJgnGnv«lop«tD: F69BDE1S^0ME9S-ftACC>-CEC7EBaA884C

p!;SuSionEnvelop«D:CS5£38£DuSOD-4142;8S7B.A3026F6S880'

• Ood(Si9nEn»«lop0tO:4E2M$F3-SO9C*4EF5-a4PE-2SBF6S24»DF '

New Hampshire Depsrtment of Neallh and Kumftn Serytces

Exhibit I

e. SaQfeoation. If anv temi or condition of ihis BAA or. the appllcaUon thereof to any
perMn(s) or drcumstanco is held invalid; such inyalidity shall not affect other terms or

'/ conditions which can'be Qiven.effect with^t the invalid term or condition; to this.end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared SGverable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this BAA r^arding the use and drsclpsure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, tensions of the protections of the,BAA In seci'ion (3) I. the. •
defer^se and rhdemnification provisions of section (3)'e and Piaragraph 13of the
General Provisions <P-37} of the Agreemerii, shall survive the termiriation of the

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit (.

Department of Health and Human Services Harbor, homes inc.

JiagiftiyLtiU^ Contractor

I M**- S- (Wti i'.
<  -.lirrvtH-t - . :—

Slgnaiufe oTAuthorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

KStja S. FOX , Henry Och

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative

Director
Chief of opcraclons

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

3/4/2022 3/3/2022

Date •Date f - (.

l&iiiu

HciXh tnutfinci PofiabtBty Act

Butlnen Xuecl«te AafctmtAl

Cpni/Kto/iflbiab'

ftp

Ojte.

V3/26?2



OocuSign Envelope ID: F69BOE19W^1-4E9&^CD-CEC7E66Ad84C

. OocuSign Envelope ID: C5Se3B£[M50IM142-eG7&-A3O2BF65aB43

"  OkuSIqa Envelope IO:4£260SE3-SD9C^E^9>B4F£-25Sf8^429OF

Now Hampshire Dopartmcnt of Health and Human Sorvlcea
Exhibit J

■Cfc.

CEftTinCATION REQARKNQ THE FEDERAL FUNDINQ ACCQUNTABiLrTY AND tNANSPAREWCY
ACT (FFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accoun^binty end Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees oflndivldual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October i, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation end associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. It the
initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant itiodificatiohs result in a total award eqiia! to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the

Department oi He^ end Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contri^ award subject to the FFATA reporting roqutremanls;
1. Name of entity
2. Arnount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFOA progrem.rumber for grants
5. Progrem source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity •-
6. Principle place of performance ' ,
9. Unique tdentifter of the eritity (DUNS 0)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:

10.1. More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, ^d those
revenues are greater than $25M annually end

10.2. Comperisation informatlbn is rvot already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime gi^nt recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of (he month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Contractor IdentiOed in Section' 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees to comply with the pro^ions of
The Federal Funding Accountat^lity and Transparency AcL'Pubiic Law 109-262 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of (he General Provi^ns
execute the following Certification:
The below n^hed Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above b the NH
Departrnent of Health arid Human Services and to com^y with all applicable provisions of (tie Federal
FInanciai Accoun(ab9ity end Transparency Act

ConliBctor Name:
i'- • •

3/3/2022 , ■

Date "
Chief of Operations

-09

ExWt)ll J - Ccrtificabn RogjrtlftQ IN) Kotforal FunflJnj Contridof InWvb'
AocounUbtty And Trantpxwnqr Act (FFAT^ Complinco 3/3/2022

CWMMSIKPU P»8®lrf2 Dlte
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

13ie$43S7
1. The DUNS number for vour entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding com^^ted fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) SOpercent.or rrx^re of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, end/or.cooperative egreements;.and (2) S25.000,000 or more In annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal poniracis. subcontracts, loans, grants. subgranls. and/or
cooperative agreements? ^

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above Is NO. stop here

If (f^ answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following:

3. Does the pubQc have access to intormalion about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.7em{a), 760(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1985?

NO .YES

If the answer to P3 above is YES. Stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

A. The names end conpipertsalion of the five most highly compensated officers In your tTuslrtes's or
organizaltoh are as fdlows:

7)-

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:.

AmounI:.

Amounl:-.

Amount:,

Amounl

cuD»e<3riioru

M

Edibft J - CttftXicstifin RftOsnCng tho Feders) Funding
AcoounUbffity And Tf«n»p»rpncy Act (FFATA) CompBante

P«S*2of2 ,

Contnctor tnttiab

w-

Date
3/3/2022
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.  Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following-tefins may lie fOlU'tC'od.and tiiivo the descfibecl nuxminci In'this tlocum(:ni;

1. "Bfcadi"' means Die loss of control, compromise, unauliiorizocl disclosure,
unauthorized acciuisillon. iinaulhnrized access.' or any siniiln-; term ftilcrrUvj |6
slUialioMS where persons oili-^r than ajihorjsoJ users and for an other than
aulhofizod purpose havi; access n; pt>l4.:nli[il yqcoss to persojiajly identifiable
infarmation, .whelhor piv/sical or t-lecironic With rnQard In. Pfoleclnti Health
Informalion," Brnach' siiall have thu SKime meaoinri-ai Ihc (ortu ' Breach" in section
10'1.'102 ol Titl j -if). Coilo of Fedorfil Rtvau':iii' >ns.

2. ■'Computer Secorify jncideri'" VImli ha/e {lu; same moaning ■Computci Security
Incidcnr in section two (.?» of MIST Put'Iuilion SbD-6l. Curnpuier Security Incident
Handling Guide. Nalion i" Insiiiule of Su-md-m!? •inrl Tecliiiolociy,' U.S. ORpartnienj
of Commorc'.c

3. "Ojnfidential Inlornialivn r.r •Confidenti.-il O-il.-r m:::ri<,afl r.-unfKfenllal information
rlisnlosfKl hy one (mrly i'» tin- oVner such as a'l m'cfical. hcafth, financial, puhlic
nsS'Slahct.[jeneiils and ;c.r».sf):vil liid'i'nati-jn iiv.-l'.Kli-'.g wi'.hout limitation, Subsltmcc

c- Ahuse Tfoalmeni ftdco.'d?. Case Rnnonls. Proieetecl Hc.cillh Inferniuljoii anr.l
Porsnnally kinnlifintilrj Infonnahon. •

Con'iderUial Information u'sn iiiv;lut):;s :riy aih! iiil information owii'^jd or niianagcd by
the Slnle of NH - created, iucc«\*t-d frohi c-r on hch-aif nf the Onpartiiionl of Hodfifi and
Human Services {DHf;IS). nr accessed .in llie course of porforining dorilraclGd
sctviccs • of which coiie'c;h-.i!V disckisuro. pro'lcchon. and di!;|i-i.vlion is governed by-

- stato Of forJoral liv.v oi fupui-iii'in. This infonnat'on ,includes..'.but, is not limited to
Protected Health Infomialipn {Pl-ll). Personal InJorrnalion (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFl). Fedora! Ta--. Informahon (FTl). Saciai Security■Numhers (SSN).
Payment CarcNnduslry (PC:i). ami or oilK^r i-ensilKv air.! eonhdon'.Tal informallon.

4.. -End User' means any i>er50n or cnlily (e.g., contractor, conlructors eniployee.'
•' busir>ess associaiu. sul'Uo.ili<iclc>f. oilier .ilownslmam user.^ otc,) lhal rccolvos

DHHS data 6: derivative data in accordance wiih the ierms nf Ihi.s Contraol.

5: -HiPAA" moans the Hriniiii Insumiico Pfuiahility a:icl Accounlahility Act oj 109S nnd the
regulations iKomulgatod ihoreundur. " *

6! -Inoldonr means an act Itial (lotcntially violalcs on explicit or irnjiliud se^rurity policy.,
which Includes alicmpt's ((:iiher failed or successful) to goin unnullforizecl occo.ss lo o
system or its dnio. umvanted dir.rupiirjn oi ilmhal.of soivice. the unauthorized use ol
0 system for the processing or r.lorago of <laia;' and. cliangcs to iSyslem hardware,
fimrware. or software chv.racteiistic? without ihr; rr.vnor's knuvdedge, inslVuction. or-
conserii. Incidonls includc llie loss of data ihrouglvthefl or doyico mfsplncnmnni. loss
Of misplacement of hardcopy rlocumtinl.s. and itilsioulirx) ol physical or electronic

m
vO.Uvagpi^loitm'lB CU-WlK •.liiUy,:

OiJilS

Paw lot 9 * C-
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DHHS Information Security Roquironients

•> moil. «nll of v/liich n>ny h;ive the |.«u;-:;nHri! to (>111 Iho tloln nl risk of unoulhorized
access, use. clisclhsijfo. nwh'icaiion or flr.'Siruclion

7. "Opon Wireless Network- means any ae;vA.irk or sovin^cnt of 3 nolwork that is
not doskjnatt><J by ilic S!;ilo (if Now Hr,un|.ishir(;s Depurlinfenl of Informoiion .
Ttchriolony ^or clGlOfjsalc as a pro!ocio<.! network (rtesioned. tested, ar>d
afipfuvod. by moans of toe Slate,-jo transmi'J t.io ccwisidcrcd an open
network ancl nol adeqiuiloly secure loi the Iransmiss.on of un-::ncryptc<l PI. PFI.

'  PHI or cxjnfidenlbl OMHS dat-i.

8. "Personai Inlornialioa" (o.' PI } inear.s inlofmruion wtw.h t:n;i bo used to dislinrjutsb
or Iracc an individucils l-doniily. such as (heir iKinie. s-aoutl securiiy.number."personal
infonnaljon as define-1 i i f-fev. Han psltire- RS/\ 3sn?-C:l9. liiomctric records., etc..
-alone. orAvhen combine-:! v.iih'«:.tiv:;r.pors(inal or idoni-fyinp InformaiKin which is linked
or linkable 16 a specilic iiKiiviilunl. siicii as dcr.e and place- of birlh. molhdf's niaidan
ivjme. etc. * .

I* '•

9. "Piivaty Rtile" Sb-ifi nKian iii«- Si;ind?:s(is fik Privvnc-/ o' lrK.hvii.l\i:i';-/ Idenliliable Health
Infonnation y| fl5 C.F.R. Pints 1G0 and Kt-"-. j.ir(»riiu!:.j*.iU;'d undefHlPAA by ItiO United

. State? Ocparlnienl'ol a vi Huntan S'iivi';c-<

"10. 'Prutectecl Hcallli inform-iliun" (or "PHI ) has Ih-j snme moaniiyj ns provided in the
definition of 'Protected H«:ai|]i Inforii-.ri-ioir In tiK: HIPAA Privacy Rule.at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11.'Security Rule" sliatl iivjan the Socuriiy Standards fu-" tlif; ProlC'clion of 'Eloclronic
Protcclc:! Health lnfoar.":'.i:i-"i nl 45 C.F.R Pad 1G4. Sutip.irl C, and anHJndinonls
Iherolo.

12. "Unsecured PfdlccU;d Hc-idth Infurriudiorr in-etin? Protected Health Information that Is

'not SfcCUfCd by a lecliir.i'vKiy sl-md-ird tiiut rofvinrs Proioolnd llfsa'lh Infornintioii
umisnble. unreadvablc-. ur iii:Jociphefat.^!o to unaulaonzed individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a s'.andriids devclcipinf) ofvjanizalion that is accrcdiied.by

.  tho Anterlcnn f>^a;ioiiaI Si<inrlu:d:i liiiMutn.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Uso and Oisdcsu "U of Crrafid-^niial In-orm,iiion

1. The Contrador must not use, ifiscJoso. maintain or transmit Conlldential InrormotioM

except as reasonably necessary as (Hillincd under this Conlracl. Furihor, Contractor.
Including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents,- must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PMI in any mannor ll^al would constitute n violation
of llm Privacy and Security f?ule.

2. Tlio Contractor must not disclose any CoiMKicnlinl Informalion in response to a

fit/'-
V5 UsUqvLnUi tawia K)l.iliiK CfvaiAfJrtf Initials
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request for disclosure on Iho basis In^it It Is recjuirod by law. in icsponse to a
subpoGnp,; cte.. wilhuui iirsi nulifyiiKi DHHS so thai DHHS hoS ah opportunity to
consent or object to the.iiisclosurc;.

3. If DHHS notifies the (ronirncloi ihTil DHllslM»y. nyiowt to be bound 1/^' nrtdilional
rcstriclions over and above ibosf; u<n> or disclosures (>f S':curiiy safeguards of PHI
puisuant to the Privacy aiui S-Jcurliy f^ule. the Contractor nuisi' t)o lx)und by suc.h
additional <.restriclionf- mvi must no: dir.ctoso PHI in violation of such addlilona!
rustficlions and imisfabidc b/ any additional security safcyuaids.

4. The Contractor agrees IIki! DHHS Dala or derivative ihuc from riiscl'jsrjd to an,ErKi
User" must only be u.sed nu'sunnl tn tlio tcnns t)''tt)li. Cpnlraci.

f). The Conirnctof .rKgrnes OHl IS Dnln obininuil undi.-r liiis Contract may not be used for
;i!»y oliiof (jur:>oses liiat u*o n.»i iivlir^altid in (hlo Crmir.'.- 1.

6. Tiie Contractor agree? In gra.-M access to ihr; data lu ilu: ;i\i-i;urii:C!(l ropresentativos
of DHHS fur the pu'in'isu oi insjoc-t.rj t^' c.oniifn ain-.pliancr; v.-iih the torms.of lliis
Conlracl.

11. fiflETHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION Of* DATA

1. Application Ennryplion. If Ebt! Us;t Is transmitting DHHS data nontaining
Cuniidontial Data Uotweon applications, ili-:.- C;on:rar.ior nttost.s Iho applicolipns.have.
I^een ovaluoled .'by on 'c>;pc-rt knov-'UKlgrrahlr; in cybor security and that .said
application's oncryjiti.xi Ciipatiil.i-es.ensiiff secure Iransmlrjsion vi.i the Internet.

2. Compulof Disk.s and Pnri.n!.lo.Sto'aue Dc-.i tos. Eti*.rt.l.N'.i rnny not usO'compuler disks
or porlnlilc storage devices, such as a Ihurn;;' drlyO. 0.=; a nicthnd of trnnsmilliny DHIdS
data. ^

3. Gnci'yptud Email. End User may only onij)!:))' cnKiil to transmii Con'idenlkil Data if
email is encrypted and brjing sonl to and l,»ojpg rocoivor.r by email addresses of
persons <uilliori;rcd In rocnivn such Inlofmalion.

4. EricrypiCd Web Silo, if End User iy L-mployiiig tiio Wob to transmit Confidential

Data. Ih^ secure socket tciyors (SSI.) miKl he usorl and Ihrr wob sile n>uS! be
secure. SSL oncrypls data liansniilled via n Web site.

5! .File Hosting Services, also kiiova> as Fil-j £|juiifi;;i Sites. End User may not use filo
fioslinrj 'sRrvices, such as Uropbox or Google Cloud Slorrigo. to Iransmii
Conlideniial Daua.

6. Ground Mail Service. End Usar may only transniil Con'iiitimltat Data vla cer/Z/ief/ ground
mail within iho rtontintrntal U.S. ami when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End Usrir is oinploying portable: , devices lo Iransmil
Cohficlenlial Dala snid.di.'viues must be cnoryplcd and })ass\vor(|.i.irotcclcd.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not Iraijsmil Conndential Data via an open

p
A'i. Ln5lwix1ntc JOW.MD EUiollK CCNUoclof
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wireless nelv/ork. End User must employ n viritio! (>fiv<ilo nciwurk (VjPN) when
remotely transn^iliing v'ia nn open v/irel-::v.y luviwurk.

9. Remote User Communicniion. If End Usi;r is umpluyliu,] lomote comnuinicnlion to
access or irnnsmii Confidc'Uift! OM?.. n virtual pPvam nctwod; (VPN) must be
InslaHed On the End Ur.cr s mcbilo dcv}r:ij(s) or Inptop frotn which infon'nalion will bo
Irnnsmilled or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Prolocnl (SFl]'), ;4l50 Ktiown as Scciure Fllo Transfer Protoool, If
End User is omployiiuj an SFTf^ to Iran-sini: Confidominl Data. Etui User will .
.sifunturc tfie Folder, and .accoss phviiogr.'S lo pros'cnl In.npi.vr^priiitc disclosure of
infuifDalion. SFTP folders and snh-foUnrs iistsl foi lra'isni!lliu«.| .Conlldenlial Oala will
l.-^e coded for 2'1-houf aiik^-dV-riir.-t i:y.:l'.! (i o CunfideolM* I'te dolejed evcry Jd •
hours).

11.Wireless Devices. if'End Us-:.' transnvaing Cotjficli'nJi-ii 0:-Jia'«/ia wireless devices,-all
d«1ia must be e:icryplr.:fl |fj prr v'.ml inajjjinipri.ite disclosure ol Infonnaiion..

ill. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABI:E RECORDS "

Tltr; CoiUiaciof will only retain tlv;- d.c::! and an/ ilorlvattvi- of ih-; d fta l-jj ine du'ralid^rj of this
C:on[facl. After such litiK;, Ihe will have -30 days to do.'sirdv thealata iuul any
deriyalivt; in whale-.'ur fqrin it n»nv' evi.sl. uihsmlc-^ retiuiro:} by lasv or perniiue-j
under this Conlracl. To this dad, iho ix'irties Jivjst

A. Rctontinn

1. Tl>e Conjractor agroc.^ ii wili n;>l slore. ldi:::;for. or prp-^ess data collected ;iri
conj)oction v/lih the seivicvis rendered under thi:s Cojtlracl uUlstde.pf the United
Slates. TItis pliysif:nl ioc-Jlioh lequiremenl shall also npplyTn Ihe.lmplemenltilioh Of.'
cloud coinputinfj. cloud .•sc-.'^.'lr.o r«r ckjud slorup-i- capabilities, and Include? I)ackup
data chkI Oisaslor Recovery ••

2. The Conlra-:tor :ayrccs in onsirc; jiroper secudiy tnoniteriiifj" capa!)ilitios are in
placo to detect polenlial socgriiy* evenis thai can impnr.l "Slnle of' NH systems
andifor Depadtne/tl cb.nlideniial information for cofUr.ictur provided systems.

3. The Conlraclor ngices d) prnvlde s(}r:nrlly nvMruness and education for itS'Enrf
Users in supjxjrl of prolecliny Depiclmenl 'Y.»nf!(1enll:jl infortnalion.

■A. Tfie Conlraclor at/roes to rutaitt at! i.-leciroiiic and liard copies of Confidftntlal Data
in n secufo lucalion and Idcinlilied in section I'v. A 2

5. The Conlraclor npreos Confirieniinl Dnla_ stored it> a Cloud must be in a
FedRAfvlP/HiTECH compllahi solution and compfy with nibnj>p|:cable statutes apt)
regulations regarding ihtj privacy aiKl security. Alt servers «nnd devices must, have

. currenily-suppprted and hardened opdroiing sysiuinS. the latest "anti-viral, anti-
hacker. anti-spon). nnij.sp^v.'tire.^iin'J afiii-mahvaro utilitiaS; The envirdnmenl. as a

■ ftp
A'S l.trftuiKJut-ylOWnB •. 6»»i!iuK
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y.'hole. nuisl have agyrci^sivc iniiii5:loM-rj.;:if;r.ii',v) and fi.'cwall protection.

6. The Conlractoi agrei^s Ut und cn.iurcs iis cvmpiole r.ofj|H;ralion vvilh the Stale's
Chief InJonnalion Ofilcer in the dctoclion .of any socurity .vulnvrabilily of the hosting
inlraslfucluro.

B. Disposition

1. 11 the Contm.:irir v;ill nurniaio any Conticonllal Intonnatior. on'its syjjtoinr. (or its
sub-contractor syslen-is). iIia Qunirardoi '.'.ill ,in?iini;;«n o cJocuinentecl pnK:ess for
st.'curoly ili.s;K)sin^^ of «I;Um upon ruciuesi or <:oiVitaci lermlnalion: and svill
obtain written cenlticntior. for a.ny Stnto cif How Hatapf-hW/ dai.-i dtssl'oyod by Iho
Conironlor or any sn!>':on'.r;i ;iors ns n parl pf o:v;rnri.p. nmorfioncy. arvd of disasler
recovery opbraiions. Wiv:-n no lon'jor in u<o. elcclrui.ii'j media coniaiiiing Stale u.'
New Hampshirt' daln sinll bo iniul<;r»"Kl nMrry;oV«:rn!rlo via n sOwUre wipe proc^ram
in. accordance with in.iu^iry-accep'.ed t.:orid:-.*rds fni" i-ocuio c'olsiioii and rijcdiii
sanilizalioii. or olhrr.vi-^-.; phy.'iically dosircv/loij the- inodin (for example,
dogaussinp) as do$cri!-iil in KlST Spojial r^ub'icatioii o00-c3. Rev 1. Guidnlinrrs
fol fdridi;! S;-iriiti-.ol»o«i. H:ilio;i:il Ir.sli'.iH': ol SUi'Klar.ls hiKl Technolo<)y. U. S.
Dspartmont of C?«m:no'w'. l.'iv Cnn'ractor '.vii; docu'ivyr.t and cedily In v/ri'.in^ at
time of Ihr; rlaln d';stKi."ti'n and v.l:i f/rovidn written ceriifi.^albn to the Departmont
U{)on fCK|ucsi. The v.ntfcn corirfi nation •.vllf inc'udo all details necessary to
demonstrate data has l.»*:jeii piupudy desli'nycd and vntidatcd. WlKjrd iipplicabln,
ro{)ulnlr»»y and prcifcssia.n'ii! siandartis for r€loj"^iion requirements v/ill bo jointty
evaluated by the SlnUr and (.^onlrar-tor firior to-desiridii':i.

2. Unless ollKrrv/iso s)>ucilied. wiiliin ihiiiy (30) days uf the leriiilnatlqn of this
Conlrcict.X/.inlracloi af;rec.-s to dosiroyaii hard copie.s o''Conf'dQntlal Oaia usinci a
secure method such as shroddmci.

3. Unless oii!s;iv.ijc spvciwed. vathl«> Uiidy {3'Jj d<iys ul llie lunuifjalion (»f Hiis
'Conlrncl, Cnnlrnclor'nii'mos to comfiletCsly destroy nil electronic Confideniial Dala
l)y n>eans of rjalo erasure, jtlsn kn^.vn as secure data wipinq.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITV.

A. Contractor nqrees to saferiuard 1-K' OrlHS Oats receivi:d under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follov.'s:

1. The Contractor \vili maintain proper sccurily controls to protect Deparln>eni
conndentiarinfumnilion coliit;c;led. processed. .rnyn:-r'jed. and-or stored in the dclK'nry
of conlractGd services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and (yocodures to protect l>eparlrnenl
confidcn.lial infoiiririlion Ihrouplirnil llin iiiformntiuu l;u.*cyi:Uj. wheri) applicable, (from
creation, irnnsfprmalion. use. sloraqo arKi sctcurc destruction) rGqardiess of the
media used io store the ciriin (i.e.. iaiK^, tlisk, pnptir.etc.).

' r (v/i
I  I ". vri.u:jlii.->d.iw IftOtyifl CMirnOWlrtilol*
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3. Tho Cpnlractor will niainiain approprialo authc-nlicaUon an<J access controls to
conlraclor systems thnfcoHcci tran.'.mjt. or sloro Divparlmynt conndenlial iriformalloii
o/heri; n|>pliciibiu. >• v,

A. Tho C<»ttifficU)f will ciisurc; [Vfopef secoflty mo'iiioriiKj Cfipaljiliiles am In place to"
doled polenlial socurily evenls thai can iinpad SinU; of NH systems and/or
Department conltdenliai inloimatloj^ vr c(.'nlractor provided sys-lsms.

5. The Conlraclof v/ill provide lOijul.nr se=:(jriiy rxlucaiion for its End
Users In sopporl.of proloclnfj 0:•par.l■^v^n5 conlifJenii-ii »nfvvmnlion.

6. If Iho CoiUrac.l'ir will .I'f selM.-oniicic'.i-vg any coro fiinciioos of Ihe nngagcineni
supporltnjj (he servirtss f-i.'- Si.t.o of Neo/ Uanip-.hiri;. the Cnriirridor will niaintoin a
program of an inl(;nini- pro.^nss or {'fcv;d&''-cs thai rJofme.s specific secorily
cvjMsClalions. and monitorir»:i cfj-nplanv.e lo s-jconly i wuuiremen'.s thai at a niinitninh
.pKitch thPS<j (or the (,'onlia';tor. incli.dinfj'hro.'icii noiifir.ali.-»n rrsriu'roinsnis.

7. Tho Conl'ractorwil- v.nrk v.l-a ih-v Dji-ctfl nent lo si;; i ;vu! comply v.'ilh all applicahla
St;Ht(; of New Hstnpshirr: and (Jc;|:orijni:nl sysleiu :i!:c(}ss and aulhoriralion policies
a:vj procor1um.<«. ^:yslf;rn'> a;..ess f.»rrii:;. and ccjtap.i'.yr use aarcomonls as pari of
,(jt)tninin'g and niainlaining access to any Oripartmoni systomfs). Ayreeriienis will be
compleled and S'ghod hy tho Qintfajjloi and any appli^hle soh-c^nlractors prior to
sysicni access buimj uiiliu>/i.-;',<d.

8. II liio pepririniRnt ddcnninos Ihc Conlr-ic'.Of is n business Associate pursuant i<» 45
CFR 160.103. (ho Contraalfu'wlii (rvacuti: a HIPAA Gasiness Associatc- Agreemont
(BA/v) vAiU iho Depailnie'ii and is lOsjKHisihIe for niainlain'mj complianct; vyilh Ihe
"apreameot.

0. Tho Contractor will y.-ork with tho Dop-idmc-nl at its roviuusl to coinplele a Systetn
Management Sun-Cfy. Tlu; pnrpbs?; of UVi survey i.s to enablo tho Doparinient and
Conliactor lo monitor 'or any charvios'in risks, threats, and vulfionabilities thai may
occur ovor the hie of' the Contracts* ir-i;iagorni"nl The sue/oy v/ill lie completed
annually, or on olloinaio ilmu hutno at the Doparlmcnls cliscrntinn with agreGinenI by
the.Conlra.'iloi. or tha Depailmonl may rcnuosi tho suivcy be comfjlolod %vhen tho
scope of the crxjagoiiionl l»olv/(.i)r» ihe □■spnrlmen! h-kI the Contractor changes.

10.. The Conimciof vail no; otorc. I.noyflnyly or unknov/in|ily. any Sinio of f>lov/ Hti.mpshiro
■  or Dojwtflineril data olfshoro or ouisido ilio boundaries of ilio United Stales unless

pripr express v/riiier> consent Is oblaitied from the Inlornialion Security Offico
Icndorshlp member v/iihin the Depojimonl

11. Daia Securiiy Breach. I.bbiliiy. In Ihe e'.'onlpf any s^-urity breach Contraclor shall
make eflnrls lo invesllpote the- 'Causc.-; of the liroach. (jfomplly take measures to

.  prevent future broach and mininiizo any darnacjo or toss resulting from the brooch.-
The Staid shall recover fiom the Contractor alt co-sls of ro.spGi^se "and recovery from

M

(If'
V5 I »f.H'rirt.l5f> lO'iKT'lS r;)h4HtK ^ cWt.v.l^f rnlliob^'
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the breach, including but not limited^to: credit monitoring se/vrces. mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

1Z Conlradof. must, comply with all applicable statutes arxl reguia.llons regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential informatldn, and rnust in ajt. other respects
maintain the privacy and securify of pl and PH) at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and. scope of requirements applicable to federaragendes, including,
but notjimlted to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations"'{45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy artd Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for irxjividually identifiable health
information and as applicable under state law. . ,

13.. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technlcali and
physical ^fegu'ards to protect the conridentlatity of the .Confidentiial. Data and to
prevent unauthon^ed use or access to It. The,safeguards must provide 8 levei and
scope of s>ecurity that-ls.not less than the leyoi and scope of s^urity requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at htlps:/Avww.nh.gov/doil/veiidor/indexhtm
for the Department of Information Technology policies guidelines, standards, and
procuremerit irtforrfialion relating to vendors.

14. Cpritractor agrees to maintain a documented breach nottncalion-and incident
response .process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security OfTicor of any security breach Immedialety, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes .a confldehtial information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any Slate of New
Hampshire systems that connect to thie State of New Hampshire network. '

15. Contractor must restrlcl .access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those auUiohzed End Users yvho need such pHHS Data to
perform thelr-officlal duties in connection with purposes identified In this Contract.

16. The Contractor rriust ensure that ail End Users:
a comply with such safeguards as referenced In Section IV A above.

Implemented to protect Confrdential Information that Is furnished^ by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard thisjnformation at all times. ' •
c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media oonlalning PHI. PI, or

PFI are encrypted and password-protected.
d. send emails containing iConfidential Information only If pncrypted and being

sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. LB3liedate1O09/lB EiditoRK CohlracioirlnftWi
DHHS infonnttlon
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p.-

0. limit cli.vjIoRure of the Confideuliul Infoiinalion-to llva fixtent permitted by lav/.

f. Confirlenllnl Ink-rninlK'n fcr:|?tyi;t) under thi.-i Contract and individually
iUcnli/idWc (lain derived front DHHS Data. mnv. hn stornd in an area thut is
physically and t«';chno!o9ir.fiily frtim by uit.authorizod persons
durii>9 duty huufs well as non-du-.y hours (o.q.. dnor locks, rufd keys.

•• biomclfic idcnlifiors. v' ,.

9. only aulhoiuod End Us(;is n uy [iriasuti; lit': Confid-JiHiar Data, includinci any
deriviitiyp files cunluinifKi peisomliy klenlifial.ilj inforrrtalion. <ind in all (;;ises.
such drita ntu.ii l-y. onr/yplu:! ul ;«!! Umos v.hun in transit" at resl, or v^heh
siofcd on |iwliibl;'; (lunliu ns o;quiiocJ in socikin iV above.

h. in al! {rUi-'f in:i'. i-i.;.;S Confiden". .jl' Da-n ir.-jst Ito ma nUvr.OMl. uvcd and
disclosed usin;!) a;tf»fOi)fiate safi':{iiiartl.>. as iloiormiiicd. by a risk-hased
assrss'iinni of Uk- ciit.umsiai'co? itivolvcJ.

1. . undnrsinnil thai llv:-ir usor crcvK.-n'.lvalv- {user iiaaio nu.-.l pussv/ord) nuisl not be
sh.irod •.viih anvo.?:; Dvl U-K-fi- '-vi.! Koo;> ch-i* onKl'niaa! irtf:>ftaaliO{i'se-;uro.
This applies t;"» rn;d:.*niialv. usv;:: !•) a'XC;ss ih-:* sl'.i/ duccii/ or Indircellv Ihrourio
third parly apjVicaticm. , :

Cortlracjor is rosjTonsiblo f(>r ovciskjl'it hiuI eoniplianc-.i of ihuir^End USO'S- OMHS
res'.ffvus llv3 rio.hl to coiidJCt onsiio !ns(K:/:;ionH 1,0 nin-ppn coihpliancc with this
Contracl. IncliirilrKj the privacy and security ruquirem^nls provided in herein, HIPAA,
and olhcr applicahio law? and Hcderal rr;o.Italians until su--.li Unto f t-.) Conflclentlal Data
is disposed ol.in a.-rcordanco with tlii? Cunirai--.

LOSS.REPORTING
*

The CunUaclor must iKMify iho Sinti.-s Privacy Officer arv.! S-jcuii;y Officer of any
Security incidents anrl D;u:ichc*s at the ontail ndd.'cr.Rns pfO'vkiod In
Section VI. *

The Conlraclof must furtiicr h-indio and roixtrl-lnr.ldonls and BfoachtJS involving PHi in
nccorcluncc with the a/juttcys dotumcnled incHloni Handiiiut aiKl Biwach Notlficalion
procedures.and in accurdtii-ci: with d2 C.T;R. §5 *131.300 • 300. In addition to. and
nolv/ilhslahOuXj. ConUactor s compliance wilii nil ujiplic-fitOf? obligalions and proccduros,
ConUaclof's piucodums must a!?-j address l;o-.v iho Conlfnclcr v.nll. ••

1. Idenliry Incidents: •

2. Oetcrmino if pnr.Ronally i:ionvifi:-ii)!G information is involv-:.-'.! in liicidcnB; r;

3. Rci-jurl suspeclcd (n cun'iiinud Incidents av- required in this Extjibil or P-37:

A. 4den(ify and convene a (x.'fu response group to dolerndne* the lisk level of Incldcnis
and dfilerniino risk-hased resj^onsc? to Incidents: and

'A'--

VS. ItivluvHiJblCr'OO'.ia .  l;>,!ulA K
i)HHSInl-;riuH'Wi<

r.ino D oi 6 DaIa
3/3/20X2
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Exhibit l<

DHHS information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Broach nniificaiion is roquifc<!. or.tj, 11 so. kieniify approprinle
Breach noilftcalion mclhuds. liming, source, and contents from amony difffirHiH
options, and boar costs ?issnc.i;ji'.}(l with the B'ftacti iiolico as wc-tl as any milioallon
measures.

tncidenis and/or Broactios it»n! Implicate P) iiuist Ik; ncldresscKi and ref)0i1ed. as
. appllc<ilj!e, in accordnnce witti fJH RSA 359-C;20.

V), PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Pri.'acyOffiO,;!.

UHHSPr;vacyO'i';Ci":i(^'Jhlis.t^h.cj-jv

B. (j'HHS Security Ollicoi;

()HHSlrJarr,lnl•orlS(:r::u!S;y()^il::^•^^.|il!l■s.oh.(fl•JV

v5 LnsUipPoift Kyoflas K
i»iHS ir'f>»/r.jik.».".

Sfrtu^iy Hi'Quif>:;fi-}nis
Pogc 9 ol 9

Ccti^lfncior loHlata

■ {\l^

l/i//022
p,ilo_'


